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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
(‘the Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’ preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’ Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) 1in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath
Partner
Membership number: 202841
Place : Bangalore

Date: January 8, 2016
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Balance Sheet
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in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 1,66,31,47,500 1,66,31,47,500
Reserves and surplus 2.2 1,31,48,05,871 1,19,61,81,102
297,79,53,371 2,85,93,28,602
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Unsecured loans 23 36,94,70,943 36,67,08,044
Other current liabilities 2.4 6,33,175 9,55,500
Short-term provisions 2.5 51,95,369 14,71,470
37,52,99 487 36,91,35,014
3,35,32,52,858 3,22,84,63,616
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Non-current investments 2.6 1,76,09,32,700 50,34,00,027
Long-term loans and advances 2.7 12,81,019 26,47,057
1,76,22,13,719 50,60,47,084
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2.8 4,70,05,976 1,72,02,032
Short-term loans and advances 2.9 1,54,40,33,163 2,70,52,14,500
1,59,10,39,139 2,72,24,16,532
3,35,32,52,858 3,22,84,63,616
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Bangalore
January 8, 2016

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting Holding
AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

Sanjay Purohit
Chairperson

Rajesh Krishnamurthy

Director

U. B. Pravin Rao

Director

Jurgen Bauer

Chief Executing Officer

Manish Tandon

Director
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Statement of Profit and Loss

(in X except per share data)

Particulars Note Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

Other income 2.10 11,41,87,385 24.20,77,236
Total revenue 11,41,87,385 24.20,77,236
Expenses
Professional charges 6,32,874 12,44,430
Other expenses 2.11 10,70,19,933 99,65,988
Finance cost 36,80,551 53,23,155
Total expenses 11,13,33,358 1,65,33,573
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 28,54,027 22,55,43,663
Tax expense

Current tax 2.12 1,05,58,099 8,85,363
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (77,04,072) 22,46,58,300

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER EQUITY SHARE
Class A Equity shares of par value CHF 1,000/- each

Basic and diluted (293) 8,545
Number of Class A shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic and diluted 23,350 23,350
Class B Equity shares of par value CHF 100/- each

Basic and diluted 29) 855
Number of Class B shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic and diluted 29,400 29,400
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting Holding
Chartered Accountants AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
Firm’ registration number: 0066735
M. Rathnakar Kamath Sanjay Purohit Jurgen Bauer
Partner Chairperson Chief Executing Officer
Membership number: 202841
Rajesh Krishnamurthy Manish Tandon
Director Director

U. B. Pravin Rao
Bangalore Director

January 8, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement
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in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 28,54,027 22,55,43,663
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Interest and dividend income (17,87,19,803)  (19,09,37,330)

Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities
Changes in assets and liabilities

Loans and advances and other assets

Liabilities and provisions

Income taxes paid

NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investments in subsidiaries

Interest received from bank and dividend received

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan (given to) / repaid by subsidiary

Loan received from subsidiary

Interest on loan given to subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

12,63,28,841  (19,46,46,581)
2,59,407 16,19,754
(3,22,325) (6,76,22,398)
4,95,99,853  (22,60,42,892)
(54,68,162) (11,17,478)
5,50,68,015  (22,71,60,370)
(1,57,68,461) (6,40,29,388)
15,51,58,000 8,67,68,571
13,93,89,539 2,27,39,183
(8,08,42,282) 3,26,42,016
27,62,899 8,24,25,785
2,35,61,803 10,41,68,759
5,45,17,580 21,92,36,560
2,98,03,944 1,48,15,373
1,72,02,032 23,86,659
4,70,05,976 1,72,02,032

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner Chairperson

Membership number: 202841

Rajesh Krishnamurthy

Director

U. B. Pravin Rao

Bangalore Director

January 8, 2016

Sanjay Purohit

Jurgen Bauer

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting Holding
AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

Chief Executing Officer

Manish Tandon

Director
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
(‘the Company’) renders professional management consulting
services to domestic and international corporate clients, thereby
enabling its clients to enhance business performance. The Company
was incorporated on August 17, 2005 as Lodestone Management
Consultants Ltd. and domiciled in Zurich, Switzerland.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’s reporting currency is Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Examples of such estimates may include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts and income taxes.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

8 | Infosys Consulting AG

1.6 Benefits to employees
Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences
which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined
by actuarial valuation based on the additional amount expected to
be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated
absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

1.7 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair
value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabilities measured at historical cost are translated
at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

1.8 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based
on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability
due to disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company
offsets, on a year-on-year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets, in situations where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exist, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets, other than in situations of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if
there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally



enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks.

1.10 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.11 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable
had the shares been actually issued at fair value which is the average
market value of the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless
issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented.

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus share issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

2 Notes on accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2015

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified,
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital
in%

As at December 31,
2015 2014

Particulars

Authorized

23,350 (23,350) of Class

A equity shares of CHF

1000/- par value and 29,400

(29,400) of Class B equity

shares of CHF 100/- par

value 1,66,31,47,500 1,66,31,47,500
Issued, subscribed and paid-up

23,350 (23,350) of Class

A equity shares of CHF

1000/- par value and 29,400

(29,400) of Class B equity

shares of CHF 100/- par

value 1,66,31,47,500 1,66,31,47,500

1,66,31,47,500 1,66,31,47,500

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Name of the shareholder

As at December 31,

2015 2014
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Infosys Limited (Class A shares) 23,350 100 23,350 100
Infosys Limited (Class B shares) 29,400 100 29,400 100

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are

as follows:
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Shares at the beginning (Class A) 23,500 1,48,84,90,482 23,500 1,48,84,90,482
Shares at the end (Class A) 23,500 1,48,84,90,482 23,500 1,48,84,90,482
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Shares at the beginning (Class B) 29,400 17,46,57,018 29,400 17,46,57,018
Shares at the end (Class B) 29,400 17,46,57,018 29,400 17,46,57,018
2.2 Reserves and su rplus Particulars As at December 31,
in% 2015 2014
Particulars As at December 31, Surplus — opening balance 1,37,37,49,435 1,16,09,90,495
2015 2014 Add: Net profit / (Loss) after

Currency translation reserve —

opening balance

Add: Movement during the

year 12,63,28,841
(12,38,52,122)

(25,01,80,963)  (5,55,34,382)

(19,46,46,581)
(25,01,80,963)

Legal reserve — opening

balance 7,26,12,630 6,07,13,270
Add: Transferred from
Surplus 87,42,600 1,18,99,360
Legal reserve — closing
balance 8,13,55,230 7,26,12,630

tax transferred from Statement

of Profit and Loss (77,04,072) 22.,46,58,300
Add: Amount transferred to
(from) reserve for own share 87,42,600 1,18,99,360

1,35,73,02,763
1,31,48,05,871

1,37,37,49,435
1,19,61,81,102

Surplus — closing balance

Infosys Consulting AG | 9
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2.3 Unsecured loans 2.5 Short-term provisions
in% in
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Unsecured loans 36,94,70,943 36,67,08,044 Provision for income taxes 51,95,369 14,71,470
36,94,70,943  36,67,08,044 51.95,369 14,71 470

@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries

(Refer to Note 2.14) 36,94,70,943 36,67,08,044

2.4 Other current liabilities

in¥
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Other liabilities
Provision for expenses 6,33,175 9,55,500
6,33,175 9,55,500
2.6 Investments
in X, except as otherwise stated
Particulars As at December 31,

2015 2014

Non-current investments

Others (unquoted)

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
Infosys Consulting GmbH  (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH)
1,720 (1,720) equity shares of EUR 50/- each, fully paid 1,83,19,383 1,83,19,383
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, LDA 4,05,11,835 4,05,11,835
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
1,200 (1,200) equity shares of CHF 100/- each, fully paid 1,28,85,589 1,28,85,589
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0.

10,000 (10,000) equity shares of PLN 100/- each, fully paid 2,61,52,019 2,61,52,019
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty. Limited
300 (300) equity shares of AUD 1/- each, fully paid 5,44,51,700 5,44,51,700

Infy Consulting Company Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.)
1(1) equity shares of GBP 1/- par value, fully paid 117 117
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A.

999 (999) equity shares of EUR 489.32/- each, fully paid 6,92,37,445 6,92,37,445
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.(formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)

6,000 (6,000) equity shares of RON 100/- par value, fully paid 1,85,37,023 1,85,37,023
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.

100 (100) equity shares of USD 1000/- par value, fully paid 62,07,500 62,07,500
Infosys Consulting s.r.0.

(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.o.) 7,71,362 7,71,362

2,00,000 CZK (2,00,000 CZK)

Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd.

29,30,000 USD (22,60,000 USD)

Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS)

14,76,56,679 14,76,56,679

8,000 (8,000) equity shares of EUR 10/- par value, fully paid 52,73,472 52,73,472

Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH, Austria

EUR 80,000 45,56,916 45,56,916

Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda.

7,58,24,615 (1,50,000) equity shares of BRL 1/- par value, fully paid 1,24,53,27,621 35,63,409

Lodestone Management Consultants BV 41,41,463 41,41,463

Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)

83,100 (60,600) equity shares of ARS 100/~ par value, fully paid 6,77,71285  520,02,824

Lodestone GmBH (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH)

480 (480) equity shares of CHF 100/- par value, fully paid 50,90,265 50,90,265

Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd)

1,00,000 (1,00,000) equity shares of SGD 1/- par value, fully paid 3,40,41,026 3,40,41,026
1,76,09,32,700 50,34,00,027

10 | Infosys Consulting AG



2.7 Long-term loans and advances

in
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured, considered good
Other loans and advances
Advance income taxes 12,81,019 26,47,057
12,81,019 26,47,057
2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Balances with banks
In current accounts 4,70,05,976 1,72,02,032
4,70,05,976 1,72,02,032
The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
follows:
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
In current accounts
UBS Switzerland AG (CHF) 36,41,968 69,60,805
UBS Switzerland AG
(EURO) 3,55,81,145 84,60,259
UBS Switzerland AG (USD) 4,56,263 17,80,968
Deutsche Bank (CHF) 66,65,000 =
Deutsche Bank (USD) 6,61,600 -
4,70,05,976 1,72,02,032
Total bank balances 4,70,05,976 1,72,02,032
2.9 Short-term loans and advances
in¥
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to subsidiary
(Refer to Note 2.14)
Others
Advances
Prepaid expenses
Withholding and other
taxes receivable
Others ¥

1,54,35,50,861

2,70,44,72,791

4,56,009 —

26,293 9,557
- 7,32,152

1,54,40,33,163

2,70,52,14,500

@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries

(Refer to Note 2.14) - 7,32,152
2.10 Otherincome
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Interest received on deposits with
banks and others - 19,571
Interest on loan given to
subsidiary 2,35,61,803 10,41,68,759
Dividend received from
subsidiary 15,51,58,000  8,67,49,000
Miscellaneous income, net 3,57,781 -
Gains / (losses) on foreign
currency, net (6,48,90,199) 5,11,39,906
11,41,87,385 24,20,77,236
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2.11 Expenses

Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Other expenses
Insurance charges 24.88,545 -
Auditor’s remuneration
Statutory audit fees 1,59,393 5,29,804
Bank charges 92,537 1,25,461
Miscellaneous expenses 10,42,79,458 93,10,633
10, 70,19,933 99,65,988

2.12 Tax expense

Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Current tax
Income taxes 1,05,58,099 8,85,363
1,05,58,099 8,85,363

2.13 Quantitative details

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of consultancy
services. Hence, it is not possible to give the quantitative details of
sales and certain information as required under paragraphs 5 (viii)(c)
of general instructions for preparation of the Statement of Profit and
Loss as per revised Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
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2.14 Related party transactions

List of related parties:

Name of holding company Country
Infosys Limited" India
@ Holding of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) from October 22, 2012

Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia do Brasil Ltda (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. (Infosys Public Services) us.

Infosys Americas Inc., (Infosys Americas) U.s.

Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. (formerly Infosys BPO s.r.0) ) Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp. z 0.0 Poland
Infosys BPO S. de R. L. de C. V. V@ Mexico
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC " uU.s.
Portland Group Pty. Ltd™” Australia
Portland Procurement Services Pty. Ltd® Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC.1® U.s.

Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) @ Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) 7 India
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. @ uU.s.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited © Australia
Lodestone GmBH (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH) @ Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH  (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) © Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) © Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. @ China

Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) © UK
Lodestone Management Consultants BV © Netherlands
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. © Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. @ Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, LDA. @ Portugal

SC Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly SC Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) @ Romania
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova)® uU.S.

Panaya Inc. (Panaya) * U.s.

Panaya Ltd." Israel
Panaya GmbH"" Germany
Panaya Pty. Ltd."? Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd."? Japan

Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)"? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus)™ uU.s.

Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ U.S.

Noah Information Management Consulting Inc (Noah Canada) "> Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO

@ Under liquidation

& Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
& Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG))

@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014
@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

1DWholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

920n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

990n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.

9 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015
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The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:
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in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured loans
Infy Consulting Company Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 36,94,70,943 36,67,08,044
Loans and advances to subsidiaries
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 11,15,21,436 10,39,23,974
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited 15,69,32,767 19,24,92.423
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 33,52,23,444 52,24,73,291
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 14,43,02,976 -
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 21,35,53,642 11,23,52,871
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, LDA. 2,16,45 446 -
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 43,76,46,974 33,67,15,673
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 7,04,92,412 7,41,30,610
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH Austria 1,06,34,407 1,89,97,643
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. 4,15,97,357 7,40,85,231

Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda.

Other receivables
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.

1,26,93,01,076

1,54,35,50,861

2,70,44,72,792

7,32,152

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are

as follows:
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions
Conversion of loan to investment
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 1,24,17,64,212 =
Investment in subsidiaries
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 1,57,68,461 2.,41,08,650
Revenue transactions
Dividend income
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 15,51,58,000 8,67,49,000
Interest income
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited 57,29,775 94,68,014
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. 12,583 =
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 83,889 -
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) - 60,151
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 75,44,455 78,49,950
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 7,00,342 14,31,778
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 24.57,610 32,21,892
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 47,46,983 1,77,11,320
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH Austria 1,79,128 3,95,920
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 14,15,090 22,89,828
Lodestone Management Consultants BV 6,91,948 15,72,883
2,35,61,803 4,40,02,336

2.15 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single

segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH)

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants
GmbH) (‘the Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions

of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’ preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’ Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
For Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath
Partner

Membership number: 202841.
Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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Balance Sheet

in%
Particulars Note December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 65,36,435 65,36,435
Reserves and surplus 2.2 2922 45,731 35,55,93,315
29,87,82,166 36,21,29,750
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 2.3 14,43,02,976 =
Trade payables 2.4 25,79,63,757 42,73,60,388
Other current liabilities 2.5 1,10,11,53,157 1,90,12,71,913
Short-term provisions 2.6 15,50,15,904 26,79,64,989
1,65,84,35,794 2,59,65,97,290
1,95,72,17,960 2,95,87,27,040
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2.7 1,25,98,234 2,24,78,963
1,25,98,234 2,24,78,963
Long-term loans and advances 2.9 21,21,05,259 16,99,18,683
22.47,03,493 19,23,97,646
CURRENT ASSETS
Current investments
Trade receivables 2.10 05,49,86,885 1,42,56,59,100
Cash and cash equivalents 2.11 39,31,63,599 51,06,13,683
Short-term loans and advances 2.12 38,43,63,983 83,00,56,611
1,73,25,14,467 2,76,63,29,394
1,95,72,17,960 2,95,87,27,040
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting
Chartered Accountants GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH)

Firm’ registration number : 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath Michael Dietz

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in %, except equity share and per equity share data

Particulars Note Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

Income from consultancy services 5,71,30,81,095 6,79,60,55,913
Other income 2.13 (21,57,745) (2,81,32,564)
Total revenue 57,19,23.350 6,76,79,23,349
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.14 2,64,1837,211 3,52,59,22,936
Cost of technical sub-contractors 2.14 2,10,94,46,408 2,25,96,44,302
Travelling and conveyance 69,58,32,755 74,20,75,569
Cost of software packages and others — for own use 8,57,833 6,060,653
Communication expenses 440,14317 5,99,79,484
Consultancy and professional charges 17,00,22,652 16,37,18.915
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.7 97,93,517 98,89,795
Other expenses 2.14 7,59,58,569 10,95,68,001
Interest expense 83,758 =
Total expenses 5,74,78,47,020 6,87,14,65,655
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (3,69,23,670) (10,35,42,306)
Tax expense

Current tax 2.15 1,47,53,622 6,46,54,560

Deferred tax 2.15 = =
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (5,16,77,292) (16,81,96,866)
PROFIT / (LOSS) PER EQUITY SHARE
Equity shares of par value EUR 50/- each

Basic (30,045) (97,789)

Diluted (30,045) (97,789)
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic 1,720 1,720

Diluted 1,720 1,720
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting
GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH)

Firm’ registration number : 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement
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in%

Particulars

Year ended December 31,

2015

2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities

(3,69,23,670)

(10,35,42,306)

Depreciation and amortization expense 97,93,517 08.,89,795
Interest and dividend income (11,307) —
Interest expense 83,758 -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 70,35,738 2,12,44.962
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities (1,02,26,009) (2,28,22,436)
Other non-cash items 10,52,820 2,09,77,750
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables 46,36,36,477 (35,58,28,549)
Loans and advances and other assets 45,66,12,227 (52,96,87,002)
Liabilities and provisions (95,98,20,500) 1,20,10,23,545
(6,87,66,949) 24,12,55,759
Income taxes paid (19,15,56,589) (6,35,35,839)
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (26,03,23,538) 17,77,19,920

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment towards capital expenditure (13,57,071) (1,78,87,310)
Interest and dividend received 11,307 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (13,45,764) (1,78,87,310)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan received from parent 14,43,02,976 -
Interest expense (83,758) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 14,42,19218 —

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash
equivalents

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,74,50,084) 15,98,32,610
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 51,06,13,683 35,07,81,073
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 39,31,63,599 51,06,13,683

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants
Firm’ registration number : 0066735

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting
GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH)

M. Rathnakar Kamath Michael Dietz
Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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Significant accounting policies

Company overview

Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management
Consultants GmbH) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting
Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG), Kloten (Switzerland).
The company renders professional management consulting services,
thereby enabling its clients to enhance business performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’s reporting currency is the Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during
the period. Examples of such estimates may include computation of
percentage of completion which requires the Company to estimate
the efforts expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to
be expended, provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under
employee benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support
and the useful lives of fixed assets.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other
sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.
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The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered. An
expected loss on a contract is recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.

1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the
outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure
is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-time frame contracts. Costs associated with such support services
are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded and
included in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company estimates such
costs based on historical experience and the estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use.

The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed assets
as follows:

Plant and machinery @ 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles ! 5 years

@ For these class of assets, based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects
to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives
as prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT of the Companies Act 2013.



Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
(Refer to Note 2.7)

1.11 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

1.12 Benefits to employees

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences
which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined
by using projected unit credit method on the additional amount
expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in
which the absences occur.

1.13 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair
value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of transaction

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabilities measured at historical cost are translated
at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction

1.14 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax, based on the tax
liability computed, after considering tax allowances and exemptions.
Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to
disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company offsets, on
a year-on-year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where it has
a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situations where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exist, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets, other than in situations of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if
there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

1.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of
the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

1.17 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.18 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets
acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever
is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the lease term.
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2 Notes to accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2015

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified,
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014

Authorized

1,720 equity shares of EUR

50/- par value 65,36,435 65,36,435
Issued, subscribed and paid-up

1,720 equity shares of EUR

50/- par value 65,306,435 65,360,435

(Of the above, 1,720 equity shares
are held by the holding company,
Infosys Consulting Holding AG
(formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are set out below :

Name of the shareholder As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of No. of
shares 9% held shares % held
Infosys Consulting
Holding AG (formerly
Lodestone Holding AG) 1,720 100 1,720 100

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount
of share capital as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is
set out below :

Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
No.of  Amount No.of  Amount
shares shares

Number of shares
at the beginning
Number of shares
at the end

1,720 65,36,435 1,720 65,36,435

1,720  65,36,435 1,720 65,36,435

2.2 Reserves and surplus

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Foreign currency translation
reserve — opening balance 5,81,58,445 8,30,72,722

Add: Foreign currency
translation during the year
Foreign currency translation
reserve — closing balance
Surplus — opening balance
Add: Net profit / (loss) after tax
transferred from Statement of
Profit and Loss

Surplus — closing balance

(1,16,70,292)  (2,49,14,277)

4,64,88,153
29,74,34,870

5,81,58,445
46,56,31,736

(5,16,77,292)
24,57,57,578
29,22 45,731

(16,81,96,866)
29,74,34,870
35,55,93,315
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2.3 Short-term borrowings

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured loan ¥ 14,43,02,976 -
@ Includes dues to holding company
(Refer to Note 2.17) 14,43,02,976 -
2.4 Trade payables
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014

Trade payables 25,79,63,757 42,73,60,388

25,79,63,757  42,73,60,388

@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries

(Refer to Note 2.17) 20,78,41,558 37,05,47,774

2.5 Other current liabilities

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Accrued salaries and benefits
Salaries and benefits - 6,38,046
Bonus and incentives 16,37,02,002 16,99,85,853
Unearned revenue 5,21,94,719 16,14,24,518
Other liabilities
Employee advances - -
Provision for expenses 62,27,29,712 46,50,21,684
Withholding and other
taxes payable 19,21,39,139 60,23,30,444
Advances received from
clients 92.25,750 5,36,130
Other payables 6,11,61,835 50,13,35,238

1,10,11,53,157

@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries

1,90,12,71,913

(Refer to Note 2.17) 6,00,37,150 48,51,26,832
2.6 Short-term provisions
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 13,14,72,899 12,00,74,662
Others
Proposed provisions
Provision for post sales client
support and warranties 2,35,43,005 2,41,93,535
Income taxes (net of advance
tax and tax deducted at
source) - 12,36,96,792
15,50,15,904 26,79,64,989




Provision for post-sales client support and warranties

The movement in the provision for post-sales client support and warranties is as follows

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Balance at the beginning 2,41,93,535 49,52,248
Provision recognized / (reversal) 10,52,820 2,09,77,750
Provision utilized - -
Exchange difference during the period (17,03,350)  (17,36,463)
Balance at the end 2.,35,43,005 2,41,93,535

Provision for post-sales client support is expected to be utilized over a period of six months to one year.

2.7 Fixed assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2015:

in%, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets Total
Plant and Office Computer Furniture and Vehicles

equipment equipment equipment fixtures
Original cost
As at January 1, 2015 2,57,456 3,20456  5,84,19,749  1,03,98,546 6,94,846  7,00,91,053
Additions during the year = = 13,57,071 = = 13,57,071
Deductions / adjustments / retirements
during the year (15,060) (54,517)  (1,13,90,187) (6,36,871) (40,6449 (1,21,37,279)
As at December 31, 2015 2,42,396 2,65939  4,83,86,633 97,61,675 6,54,202  5,93,10,845
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2015 21,584 3,20456  4,06,66,403 65,01,991 1,01,656  4,76,12,090
For the year 47,690 - 80,41,026 15,76,091 1,28,710 97,93,517
Deductions / adjustments / retirements
during the year (573) (54,517)  (1,02,52,341) (3,81,480) (4,085) (1,06,92,996)
As at December 31, 2015 68,701 2,65939  3,84,55,088 76,96,602 2,26281  4,67,12,611
Net book value
As at December 31, 2015 1,73,695 - 99,31,545 20,65,073 427,921  1,25,98,234

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2014

in X, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets Total
Plant and Office Computer Furniture and Vehicles

equipment equipment equipment fixtures
Original cost
As at January 1, 2014 - 3,56,062  5,01,41,104 85,69,129 - 590,66,295
Additions during the year 2,71,991 - 1,40,43,247 28,37,996 734,076 1,78,87,310
Deductions / adjustments / retirements
during the year (14,535) (35,606) (57,64,602) (10,08,579) (39,230)  (68,62,552)
As at December 31, 2014 2,57,456 3,20456  5,84,19,749  1,03,98,546 6,94,846  7,00,91,053
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2014 - 3,56,062  3,69,36,504 52,00,440 4,24,93,006
For the year 21,871 - 78,49,930 19,12,345 1,05,649 98,89,795
Deductions / adjustments / retirements
during the year (287) (35,606) (41,20,031) (6,10,794) (3,993)  (47,70,711)
As at December 31, 2014 21,584 3,20,456  4,06,66,403 65,01,991 1,01,656  4,76,12,090
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014 2,35,872 - 1,77,53,346 38,96,555 5,93,190  2,24,78,963

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Management, based on internal and external technical evaluation, reassessed the remaining useful
lives of assets primarily consisting of computers with effect from April 1, 2014. Accordingly, the useful lives of certain assets required a change

from the previous estimates.
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2.8 Leases The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
Obligations on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases follows: in%
The lease rentals charged during the period and the maximum -
Lo . Particulars As at December 31,
obligations on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases payable
as per the rentals stated in the respective agreements are as follows: 2018 Ul
inz In current accounts
Commerzbank (EURO) 39,31,37,900 51,05,31,899
Particulars Year ended December 31, Commerzbank (USD) _ _
2015 2014 Total bank balances 39,31,37,900  51,05,31,899
Lease rentals recognized during
the period 2,63,44,549  1,47,26,084 2.12 Short-term loans and advances
in< in<
Lease obligations payable As at December 31, Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Within one year of the Balance Unsecured, considered good
Sheet date 1,66,48,949 87,24,826 Others
Due in a period between one year Advances
and five years 3,28,57,931 3,48,99,306 Prepaid expenses 1,66,183 32,34,098
Due after five years 2,76,78243  3,82,43,823 Withholding and other taxes
] o ; receivable 4,86,16,038 48,71,02,339
The operating lease arrangements, are renewable on a periodic basis Others ® 1.14.83.561 1.68.30,191
and extend up to a maximum of nine years from their respective 6,02,65782 50.71,66,628
dates of inception and relates to rented premises. Some of these lease Unlbiillzdl mevemmes 30,69.20278 31,33.97.339
agreements have price escalation clauses. TLoris aiidl FeNERTEsS @@
employees
2.9 Long-term loans and advances . Salary advances 23.50.387 5
Rental deposits 1,48,18,536 04 91,725
Particulars As at December 31, 38,43,63,983 83,00,56,611
2015 2014 (1) Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
Unsecured’ considered good (RCfCV to Note 2.17) 1,14,83,561 1,14,83,561
Advance income taxes 8,87,75,591 3,56,69.416
Loans and advances to 2.13 Other income
employees 12,33,29,668 13,42,49,267 in%
21,21,05,259 16,99,18,683 Particulars Year ended December 31,
. 2015 2014
2.10 Trade receivables Interest received on deposits with
in% banks and others 11,307 =
Particulars As at December 31, Miscellaneous income, net 10,65,727 1,47,607
2015 2014 Gains / (losses) on foreign
Debts outstanding for a period currency, net (32,34,779) (2,82,80,171)
exceeding six months (21,57,745) (2,81,32,564)
Unsecured
Considered doubtful 2,54,15,035 = 2.14 EXpenseS
Less : Provision for doubtful in%
debts 2,54,15,035 - Particulars Year ended December 31,
- - 2015 2014
Other Debts Employee benefit expenses
Unsecured Salaries and bonus
Cons;dered good 95,49,86,885 1,42,56,59,100 including overseas staf
Considered doubtful 5,44,899 2,01,66,214 expenses 2629795312 3,51.65,80.365
3 ESEREIRECY  1,44,58,25,314 Staff welfare 1,20,41,899 93,42,571
Less: Provision for doubtful 7641837211 3.52.59.22.936
debts 5,44,899 2,01,66,214 Cost of technical
e e T
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries — — pesem sgb—contractors -
(refer to note 2.17) 27,07,11,576 50,19,35,246 related parties 1,03,74,15,720 1,28,54,87,109
Technical sub-contractors
2.11 Cash and cash equivalents - others 1,07,20,30,688  97,41,57,193
inz 2,10,94,46,408 2,25,96,44,302
Communication expenses
Particulars As at December 31, Telephone charges 4,40,14,317 5,99,79,484
2015 2014 4,40,14,317 5,99,79,484
Cash on hand 25,699 81,784 Other expenses
Balances with banks Office maintenance 36,80,796 56,56,126
In current accounts 39,31,37,900 51,05,31,899
39,31,63,599 51,06,13,683
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Particulars Year ended December 31, 2.15 Tax expense
2015 2014 in%

Power and fPel 9,30,468 15,15,395 Particulars Year ended December 31,
Brand building 11,76,922 72,25,040 2015 2014
Rent ‘ 2,63,44,549 1,47,26,084 T Tt e
Rates anc_l taxes, excluding T py— 1.47,53.622 6.46,54.560
taxes'on income 55,44,725 26,04,338 Dt s _ _
Repairs to plant and 1,47,53,622 6.46,54,560
machinery 35,854 21,213
Computer maintenance 7,24,665 18,76,988 P :
Insurance charges 20,36,085 4,43 351 2.16 Quantitative details
Provision for post-sales The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management
client support and consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy
warranties 10,52,820 2.09,77,750 services cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not
Priovision Kor el zinl possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information
denliffall dlelbis @ as required under paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for
adhEnEEs 70,35,738 21244962 preparation of the Statement of Profit and Loss as per revised Schedule
Auckiens e eEten ' 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory audit fees - 82,51,140
Bank charges and
commission 9,07,681 13,00,697
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,64,88,266 2,37,24917

7,59,58,569 10,95,68,001

2.17 Related party transactions

List of related parties:

Name of holding company

Holding as at December 31,

2015 2014
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 100% 100%
Name of ultimate holding company Country
Infosys Limited India
Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infosys Public Services) U.S.
Infosys Americas Inc., (Infosys Americas) UsS.
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. (formerly Infosys BPO s. r. 0) Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp Z.0.0 Poland
Infosys BPO S.DE R.L. DE.C.V ®@ Mexico
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC " Us.
Portland Group Pty Ltd™® Australia
Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd® Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC. V19 U.S.
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) ) Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) India
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. © U.S.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited® Australia
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) © Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH @® Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) © Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Infosys Consulting s.r.o.(formetly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) © Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. © China
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) ©) UK
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. © Netherlands
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. @ Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. © Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. Portugal
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Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.(formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Romania
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova)® uU.s.
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) 1© U.S.
Panaya Ltd."? Israel
Panaya Gmbh!" Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd."V Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd."? Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)"? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus)"? uU.S.
Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ uU.s.
Noah Information Management Consulting Inc (Noah Canada) ! Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO.

@ Under liquidation

& Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
" Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
) Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014.
)
)
)

“

5)

©

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

B

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014
@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

1D Wholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

190n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.

19 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015

The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:

in%

Particulars

As at December 31,

2015 2014

Trade Receivables
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.)
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS)
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH
Lodestone Management Consultants China Co., Ltd.
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.)
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V.
Total

Trade Payables
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A.
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.)
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH)
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.)
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V.
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS)
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0.
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda.
SC Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda.
Lodestone Management Consultants China Co., Ltd.
Total

Other Payables
Infosys Limited
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
Lodestone Management Consultants China Co., Ltd.
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0.
SC Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.)
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.)
Total

Other Receivables

1,46,81,882 1,60,91,932
4,27,16,100 12,18,55,875
- 10,63,399
4,43,72,924  3,52,67,119
33,81,957 =
- 1,99,134
16,29,74,985 30,82,28,750
25,83,728 1,92,29,037

27,07,11,576  50,19,35,246

7,76,82,499 8,10,03,706
63,30,195 88,069,209
2,52,72,188 56,56,694
- 1,55,00,248
1,88,43,806 13,08,58,368
54,95,219 2,34,81,377
- 76,50,303
4,55,02,748 2,95,52,248
64,067,654 1,30,79,771
1,73,05,059 3,99,72,241
1,63,562 47,08,595
47,78,628 1,02,15,014

20,78,41,558 37,05,47,774

75,05,776 79,72,090
2,4191,399  2,12,35,752
29,34,758 -

2,01,52,738 =
144 -

- 44,84,58,151

- 29,47,971
52,52,335 =
45,12,868

6,00,37,150 48,51,26,832
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Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 10,13,031 9,71,805
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 35,99,666 -
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) 17,93,687 =
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 18,53,029 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 32,24,148 =
Lodestone Management Consultants China Co., Ltd. = 1,57,05,206
Total 1,14,83,561 1,66,77,011
Unsecured Loan
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 14,43,02,976 =
14,43,02,976 -
The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are
as follows:
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital Transactions:
Unsecured Loan Taken
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 14,43,02,976 -
Total 14,43,02,976 -
Revenue transactions:
Purchase of services including shared personnel and facilities
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH 4.76,53,556 3,36,542
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 4,64,97,830 7,75,44,098
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 24,07,57,552 44,08,89,480
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) 11,06,36,019 7,49,69,876
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 8,84,66,159 22,77,58,868
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. 2,48,48,053 3,15,62,766
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 26,46,75,561 25,90,25,848
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. 3,98,74,282 5,29,63,234
SC Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 12,30,22,011 9,55,31,767
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) - 64,48,160
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 1,04,96,725 27,48,548
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) = 8,84,66,832
Lodestone Management Consultants China Co., Ltd. 8,65,94,462 4,34,05,631
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 1,88,926 50,39,719
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 97,80,466 84,78,714

Total
Sales of services
Infosys Limited
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A.
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS)
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.)
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.)
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V.
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda.
Lodestone Management Consultants China Co., Ltd.
Total
Interest expense
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
Total

1,09,34,91,602

35,44,620
68,16,43,337
1,08,63,644
64,26,58,299
10,15,67,088
1,83,39,354
1,72,17.919
34,26,505

1,41,51,70,083

4,17,30,086
2,87,04,269
85,59,92,346
3,85,86,526
70,45,15,357
4,23,32,365
57,53,792
2,40,38,016

2,08,364

1,47,92,60,766

83,758

1,74,18,61,121

83,758

2.18 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single

segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.
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Statement of financial position

In dollars Note 2015 2014
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 76,373 687,521
Trade and other receivables 9 4 377,579 4,306,262
Other assets 2,880 18,257
Total current assets 4,456,832 5,012,040
Property, plant and equipment 10 295,516 389,262
Net deferred tax assets 7a - 839,808
Total non-current assets 295,516 1,229,070
Total assets 4,752,348 6,241,110
Liabilities
Trade payables 11 (113,097) (255,415)
Other payables 12 (2,752,757) (2,004,346)
Loans and borrowings 15 (3,241,073) (3,724,699)
Current tax liabilities = (121,673)
Provisions 14 (2,235,244) (1,695,705)
Deferred income 13 (22,583) (52,238)
Total current liabilities (8,364,754) (7,854,076)
Employee benefit obligations 14 (118,129) (86,023)
Total non-current liabilities (118,129) (86,023)
Total liabilities (8,482,883) (7,940,099)
Deficiency in net assets (3,730,535) (1,698,989)
Equity
Share capital 16 300 300
Accumulated losses (3,730,835) (1,699,289)
Deficiency in equity (3,730,535) (1,698,989)
The notes form integral part of these financial statements.
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2015
In dollars Note 2015 2014
Revenue 5 29,014,261 30,055,111
Cost of sales 6b 7,274371) (27,105,207)
Gross profit 1,739,890 2,949 904
Administrative expenses 6d (776,040) (744 ,483)
Other expenses 6¢ (1,902,009) (1,283,376)
Operating profit (938,159) 922,045
Finance income 6a 2,440 8,118
Finance costs 6a (164,360) (480,952)
Net finance costs (161,920) (472,834)
(Loss) / Profit before tax (1,100,079) 449211
Income tax expense 7b (931,467) (244,226)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (2,031,546) 204,985
Other comprehensive income
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss: - -
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: - -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — =
Total comprehensive (loss) / income (2,031,546) 204,985

The notes form integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015
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In dollars

Share capital ~ Accumulated  Deficiency in
losses Equity

Balance at 1 January 2014

Total other comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners of the Company
Issue of ordinary shares

Dividends to equity holder

Total transactions with owners of the Company
Balance at 31 December 2014

300 (1,904,274) (1,903,974

- 204,985 204,985

- 204,985 204,985

300 (1,699,289) (1,698,989)

Balance at 1 January 2015

Total other comprehensive income

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss

Transactions with owners of the Company
Issue of ordinary shares

Dividends to equity holder

Total transactions with owners of the Company
Balance at 31 December 2015

300 (1,699,289) (1,698,989)

- (2,031,546) (2,031,546)

- (2,031,546) (2,031,546)

300 (3,730,835) (3,730,535)

The notes form integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015

In dollars

Note 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations

Interest (paid)/received net

Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings from holding company
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/(increase) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

31,830,091 52,032,333
(31,548,962)  (49,977,704)
281,129 2,054,629

6a (116,821) (171,898)
(213,332) -
18 (49,024) 1,882,731

(78,498) (183,936)
(78,498) (183,936)

(483,626)  (1,323,847)
(483,626) (1,323,847)

(611,148) 374,948
687,521 312,573
76,373 687,521

The notes form integral part of these financial statements..
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Significant accounting policies

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015

1. Reporting entity

Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd (the “Company”), previously Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Ltd, is a company domiciled
in Australia, whereby the Company’s name was changed on 1 February 2016. The address of the Company’s registered office is Level 10, 77
Pacific Highway. PO box 1885 North Sydney, NSW 2060 Australia. The financial statements of the Company are as at and for the year ended 31
December 2015. The Company is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in specialised IT consulting service.

2. Basis of preparation

(@) Statement of compliance

In the opinion of the directors, the Company is not publicly accountable nor a reporting entity. The financial report of the Company has
been drawn up as a special purpose financial report for distribution to the members and for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.

The special purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with the recognition, measurement and classification aspects of all applicable
Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The financial report does not include the disclosure requirements of all AASB’ except the following minimum requirements:

AASB 101 Presentation of financial statements

AASB 107 Cash flow statements

AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors
AASB 1048 Interpretation and Application of Standards

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures

The annual financial statements were authorised by the directors on 29" day of April 2016.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise indicated.

() Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

(e) Going concern

The Company generated a loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2015 of $2,031,546 (2014 profit after tax of $204,985). At 31 December

2015, the Company’ current liabilities exceeded its current assets by $3,907,922 (2014: current asset deficiency of $2,842,036) and the Company

has a net asset deficiency of $3,730,535 (2014: net asset deficiency of $1,698,989).

Notwithstanding the net current asset deficiency and net asset deficiency at 31 December 2015 the Directors consider that it is appropriate to

prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis for the following reasons:

* the parent entity, Infosys Consulting Holding AG., has formally agreed to provide continued financial support to the Company that is irrevocable
until such time as the Company has positive working capital and produces positive operating cashflows; and

* the Directors have also received confirmation from the Company’s parent entity, Infosys Consulting Holding AG, that the related party payable
of $3,241,073 (note 15) will not be called for repayment for a period of at least 12 months from the date that the annual financial report of
Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd (previously Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Ltd) is signed in respect of the financial year
ending 31 December 2015, or until such time as the loan can be repaid.
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3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, and have been applied
consistently by the Company.

(a) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange
rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at
the exchange rate at the end of the year. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign
currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity,
otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in profit or loss .

(b) Financial instruments
(1) Non-derivative financial assets
The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated

at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company
has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial assets:
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised

initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments
in the current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(ii)Non-derivative financial liabilities
The Company initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial liabilities

(including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts and trade and other payables.
(iti)Share Capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effect.
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(c) Property, plant and equipment
(i)Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit
or loss.

(ii)Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the
day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii)Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-

line basis in profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of each
component.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date
that they are installed and are ready for use, or in respect of internally
constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready
for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

Leasehold improvement/

installation 5 years
IT equipment 3 years
Office machine 2 years
Furniture 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at each reporting date.

(d) Intangible assets

(1)Other intangible assets - software

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have
finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

(ii)Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
(iii)Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss
over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available
for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

Software 3 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

30 | Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd

(e) Impairment

(i)Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other
than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested annually for impairment. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its
related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU unit is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group of CGUs), and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

(ii)Non-derivative financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired.

A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default
or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the
Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic
conditions that correlate with defaults or the disappearance of an
active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity
security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its
cost is objective evidence of impairment.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for financial assets
measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity financial assets) at both a specific asset and collective level.
All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment.
Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk
characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Company uses historical trends
of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of
loss incurred, adjusted for managements judgement as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses
are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or



loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables.

Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through
the unwinding of the discount. When an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised causes the amount of impairment loss to
decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss.

()  Employee benefits
(i)Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan
under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans
are recognised as an employee expense in profit and loss when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(ii)Long term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long term employee
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods plus related
on costs; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and
the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at the reporting date on corporate bond rates that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company
is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal,
to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the
normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination
benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if
the Company has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy,
it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably.

(iv)Short term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are expensed as the related
service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under
short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

1f the amount of the leave is expected to be settled beyond 12 months
from the reporting date, the amount is measured in accordance with
a long term benefit as noted above (note 3(f)(ii)).

(9) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as a finance cost.

(1)Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost
of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the
Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated
with the contract.
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(h) Revenue

(D)Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting

date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of
work performed (fixed price contracts).

Client contracts are billed based on time & material and are invoiced
monthly based on the rendered hours and expenses for the individual
project/client. If not invoiced, an accrual (work in progress) is
calculated.

(ii)Contracts in progress

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract
plus any variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments,
to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and
can be measured reliably. When the outcome of a contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of
completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed.
When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable.

Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless they create an
asset related to future contract activity. An expected loss on a contract
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Contracts in progress represents the gross amount expected to be
collected from customers for contract work performed to date. It is
measured at costs plus profits recognised to date less progress billings
and recognised losses.

Contracts in progress are presented as part of trade and other
receivables in the statement of financial position for all contracts in
which costs incurred plus recognised profits exceed progress billings
and recognised losses (note 9). If progress billings and recognised
losses exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits, then the difference
is presented as deferred income/revenue in the statement of financial
position. Customer advances are presented as deferred income/
revenue in the statement of financial position (note 13).

(i)Leases

(i)Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives

received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense,
over the term of the lease.

(ii)Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether
such an arrangement is or contains a lease. This will be the case if the
following two criteria are met:

« the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets; and

« the arrangement contains a right to use the asset(s).

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Company
separates payments and other consideration required by such an
arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on
the basis of their relative fair values. If the Company concludes for a
finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably,
then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the
fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced
as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is
recognised using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

(j)Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, gains
on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, changes in
the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
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and reclassifications of amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in
profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and changes
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(except impairment on trade receivables).

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit
or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either
finance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency
movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

(k) Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for temporary differences on the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied
to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Company
takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether
additional taxes and interest may be due. The Company believes that
its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based
on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax
law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future
events. New information may become available that causes the
Company to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing
tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense
in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits
and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

(1)Goods and service tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of
goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is
included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross
basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing and
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financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO
are classified as operating cash flows.

(m)New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1
January 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on
the financial statements of the Company, except for AASB 9 Financial
Instruments, which could change the classification and measurement
of financial assets, and AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, which replaces revenue recognition guidance included
in AASB 118 Revenue and AASB 111 Construction Contracts, which
could change the measurement and recognition of revenue. These
standards become mandatory for the Company’s 2019 financial
statements. The Company does not plan to adopt these standards
early and the extent of the impact has not been determined.

4. Determination of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures
require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following
methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions
made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to
that asset or liability.

(i) Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables, excluding construction
contracts in progress is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest.

(ii)Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, is discounted at the market rate of
interest at the reporting date.

Notes to the financial statements

5. Revenue

In dollars 2015 2014
Related party revenue 26,912,438 24,763,074
Third party revenue 2,101,823 5,292,037
Total 29,014,261 30,055,111

At 31 December 2015 the Company has deferred revenue of $22,583
(2014: $52,238), which represents the fair value of that portion of the
revenue. Refer to note 13.

6a. Finance income and finance costs

In dollars 2015 2014
Finance income
Interest received 2,440 8,118
2 440 8,118
Finance costs
Interest expense on loan and
borrowings (119,261) (180,016)
Net unrealised/realised foreign
currency loss (45,099) (300,936)
(164,360) (480,952)
Net finance (expense) (161,920) (472,920)
6b. Cost of sales
In dollars 2015 2014
Travel 815,704 792 479
Employee benefits expense 18,167,416 15,188,867
External contractor expense 8,291,251 11,123,861
27,274,371 27,105,207




6c. Other Expenses

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
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In dollars 2015 2014 In dollars 2015 2014
Depreciation expense 172,244 300,766 Profit before tax (1,100,079) 449,212
Other expense 1,729,765 982,610
1,902,009 1,283,376 Tax using the Company’s
domestic tax rate of 30%
6d. Administrative expenses (2014: 30%) (330,024) 134,764
i @lollluis 2015 2014 Non deductible expenses - 7,264
Communications 324,836 219,869 Derecognition of previously
Legal and accounting 59201 168,476 recogmsed(ummg differences 839,808 -
Back office expense 38,240 63,160 Der'ecogmtlon of the current
Employee benefit expense 353,763 292,978 period tax losses and temporary
776,040 744,483 differences 330,023 <
Under / over provision for the
6e. Employee expense year 91,660 102,198
ol 015 5017 Income tax expense for the year 931 467 244226
Employee salary 13,766,138 11,118,443 :
Employee bonus 1,402,805 1,555,874 8. Cash and cash equwalents
Annual leave and long service In dollars 2015 2014
leave 776,881 743,524 Cash and cash equivalents 76,373 687,521
Superannuation 1,420,244 1,232,478
Other employee related expenses 1,304,048 956,186 9. Trade and other receivables
18,670,116 15,606,505 In dollars 2015 2014
. Trade receivable due from related
7. Tax (expense)/ benefit party 3.839.620 3,080,528
(a) Deferred tax asset Trade receivable — external
parties 352,106 726,316
gle(fjeilrl:crlstax assels — Gming 2015 2014 Other receivables 92,455 122,359
differences : 839 808 Work in progress 03,398 377,059
T 2 4,377,579 4,306,262
Deferred tax liabilities - -
- 839,808
10. Property, plant and equipment
In dollars Leasehold IT Equipment Furniture Total
improvement/ / Office
installation machines
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 540,402 338,315 24,079 902,796
Additions 10,724 141,904 31,308 183,936
Disposals/write off - (1,660) B (1,660)
Balance at 31 December 2014 551,126 478,559 55,387 1,085,072
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2014 (153,887) (219,978) (22,842) (396,704)
Depreciation for the year (118,913) (167,995) (13,858) (300,766)
Disposals/write off - 1,660 - 1,660
Balance at 31 December 2014 (272,800) (386,310) (36,700) (695,810)
Carrying amounts
at 1 January 2014 386,515 118,340 1,237 506,092
at 31 December 2014 278,326 92,249 18,687 389,262
In dollars Leasehold IT Equipment Furniture Total
improvement/ / Office
installation machines
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2015 551,126 478,559 55,387 1,085,072
Additions - 78,498 - 78,498
Disposals/write off = (294,859) = (294,859)
Balance at 31 December 2015 551,126 262,198 55,387 868,711
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2015 (272,800) (386,310) (36,700) (695,810)
Depreciation for the year (107,620) (60,017) (4,607) (172,244)
Disposals/write off = 294,859 - 294,859
Balance at 31 December 2015 (380,420) (151,468) (41,307) (573,195)
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In dollars Leasehold IT Equipment Furniture Total
improvement/ / Office
installation machines

Carrying amounts
at 1 January 2015 278,326 02,249 18,687 389,262
at 31 December 2015 170,706 110,730 14,080 295,516

11. Trade payables

In dollars 2015 2014
Trade payables due from related party 69,208 255,415
Other trade payables 43,889 -

113,097 255415

12. Other payables

In dollars 2015 2014
Accrued superannuation expense 461,083 330,072
Accrued bonus 680,617 472,298
Accrued subcontractor expenses 799,895 890,069
Accrued provision for fixed price project 4,560 1,963
Other accruals 235,322 127,159
Payroll tax 95,560 68,614
Other payable 22,365 -
GST payable 141,087 101,041
Payroll deduction payable 12,268 13,130
Payable — Infosys Consulting Holding AG (related party) 300,000

2,752,757 2,004,346

13. Deferred income/revenue

In dollars 2015 2014
Revenue billed in advance 22,583 52,238
22,583 52,238

14. Provisions
Employee benefits

In dollars 2015 2014
Current

Annual leave 1,807,128 1,233,912
Long service leave 428,116 461,793
Total current 2,235,244 1,695,705

Non-current

Long Service leave 118,129 86,023
Total non-current 118,129 86,023
Total employee provisions 2,353,373 1,781,728

15. Loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured at
amortized cost.

In dollars 2015 2014
Current liabilities
Loan due to Infosys Consulting Holding AG 3,241,073 3,724,699

3,241,073 3,724,699

Interest is payable at 3.5% pa. As per the letter of support received on 26 April 2016 from Lodestone Holding AG, repayment will not be sought
or demanded for at least one year from the date of this financial report. Refer to note 2(e) for further details.
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16. Capital and reserves
Share capital

In shares 2015 2014
On issue at 1 January 300 300
On issue at 31 December 300 300

Ordinary shares

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. All issued shares are fully paid. All shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets, except that preference shareholders participate only to the extent of the face value of the shares.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. In respect of the Company’s shares that are held by the Company, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.

No dividend was paid during the year, and no proposed dividend has been made or anticipated at the date of this report (2014: $nil).

Dividend franking account

In dollars 2015 2014

30 per cent franking credits available to shareholders of Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd for subsequent

financial years 549,782 458,122
549,782 458,122

The above available amounts are based on the balance of the dividend franking account at year-end adjusted for:

a. franking credits/ debits that will arise from the payment/ receipts of the current tax liabilities/ assets;

b. franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognized as a liability at the year-end;

c. franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognized as receivables by the tax consolidated group at the year-end; and
d. franking credits that the entity may be prevented from distributing in subsequent years.

The ability to utilize the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to declare dividends.

17. Auditors’ remuneration

In dollars 2015 2014
KPMG Australia

Audit of financial reports 30,510 30,452
Other services - 64,352
Total 30,510 04,804

18. Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities

In dollars 2015 2014
Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Profit after Income Tax

(Loss)/Profit for the year after tax (2,031,546) 204,985
Adjustments for:

Depreciation expense 172,244 300,766
Income tax expense 931,467 244226
Operating profit before changes in working capital (927,835) 749,977
(Increase)/decrease trade and other receivables (55,940) 19,473,104
Increase/(decrease) trade and other payables 606,093 (18,672,613)
Increase/(decrease) in provision and employee benefits 571,645 738,743
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue (29,655) (406,480)
Income tax paid (213,332) =
Net cash from operating activities (49,024) 1,882,731

19. Related party transactions

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise
stated. International transactions with related entities in the group were as follows:

(a) The Company received revenue in accordance with chargeable hours and recovery allocations of Australian employees working on
overseas assignments for $1,590,074 (2014: $355,794) and working on Infosys Limited assignments for $25,322,364
(2014: $24,407,279).
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(b) The Company was charged interest on advances made to it from the holding company for $119,261 (2014: $180,016).

(c) The Company paid the cost of chargeable hours and recovery allocation of international employees working on Australian assignments

for $48,905 (2014: $270,478).

(d) The Company has been charged management fees which includes the recovery of the training and licences, international employees

and a general management fee in accordance with the Infosys Group’s transfer pricing benchmark report for $278,659
(2014: $317,123).

20. Operating leases

Leases as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows.

In dollars 2015 2014
Less than one year 208,071 208,071
Between one and five years 54,520 262,592
Total 262,591 470,663

21. Ultimate parent entity

As at, and throughout the financial year ending 31 December 2015, the parent entity of the Company was Infosys Consulting Holding AG,
incorporated in Switzerland, and the ultimate parent is Infosys Ltd., India.

22. Events subsequent to reporting date

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material
and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the Group, the results of those
operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.

23. Capital management

The Board’s policy is to improve its capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. The Company is net asset deficient as at 31 December 2015, due to accumulated losses from 2011, 2012 and 2015. The Board of
Directors will continue to monitor the return on capital, and level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantaged and
security offered by a sound capital position. There were no changes to the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, other than any requirements that exist by way of arrangements entered
into by the Company’ ultimate parent entity.
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Independent audit report to the members of Infosys Management Consulting
Pty Ltd

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd
(the company), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, notes 1 to 23 comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the special purpose financial report that gives a true and fair view and have
determined that the basis of preparation described in Notes 1 to 3 to the financial statements is appropriate to meet the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The directors’ responsibility also includes such internal control
as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company’s preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in accordance
with the basis of accounting described in Notes 1 to 3 to the financial statements so as to present a true and fair view which is consistent with
our understanding of the company’s financial position, and of its performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We confirm that the independence
declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd on 28 April
2016, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

Independent audit report to the members of Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd (continued)

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion the financial report of Infosys Management Consulting Pty Ltd is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 31 December 2015 and of its performance for the year ended on that
date; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 2 and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis of accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial
report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the directors’ financial reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001. As a
result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.

KPMG

Dana Bentley
Partner

Melbourne
29 April 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG).

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG).
(‘the Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’ preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’ Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account ; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered accountants,
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

Place : Bangalore M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner
Date: 201
ate: January 8, 2016 Membership number: 202841
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in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 ,2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 57,30,000 57,30,000
Reserves and surplus 2.2 85,88,96,073 36,55,65,516
86,46,26,073 37,12,95,516
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 2.3 33,52,23,444 53,97,31,792
Trade payables 2.4 45,88,36,598 4342,15,175
Other current liabilities 2.5 1,83,48,69,350 1,31,67,55,956
Short-term provisions 2.6 51,54,85,569 39,39,25,561
3,14,44,14 961 2,6846,28,484
4,00,90,41,034 3,05,59,24,000
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2.7 8,94,19,903 15,64,42,608
Intangible assets - -
8,94,19,903 15,64,42,608
Non-current investments 29 90,18,145 58,05,145
Long-term loans and advances 2.10 7,41,26,684 10,26,72,312
17,25,64,732 26,49,20,065
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 2.11 191,31,20,768 1,71,02,79,529
Cash and cash equivalents 2.12 50,53,06,072 33,20,93,769
Short-term loans and advances 2.13 1,41,80,49,462 74,86,30,637

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3,83,64,76,302

2,79,10,03,935

4,00,90,41,034

3,05,59,24,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting AG

(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG).

Jurgen Bauer
Director
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in X except per shared data

Particulars Note Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

Income from consultancy services 9,78,00,52,421 8,75,08,76,385
Other income 2.14 22.09,21,860 13,31,56,399
Total revenue 10,00,09,74,281 8,88,40,32,784
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.15 4.20,40,61,657 3,70,85,09,133
Cost of technical sub-contractors 2.15 3,91,51,10,822 3,63,30,76,445
Travelling and conveyance 2.15 56,55,69,714 46,98,12,428
Cost of software packages and others 2.15 3,1827,973 3,80,25,132
Communication expenses 2.15 5,59,21,004 4,77,46,327
Consultancy and professional charges 11,17,22,002 10,04,63,057
Depreciation and amortization expense 2.7 6,80,94,700 6,95,22 497
Other expenses 2.15 20,49,19,354 23,61,59,058
Finance cost 56,31,841 1,66,25271
Total expenses 9,16,28,59,067 8,31,99,39,348
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 83,81,15,214 56,40,93,436
Tax expense :

Current tax 2.16 20,21,81,589 30,50,07,117

Deferred tax 2.16 - -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 63,59,33,625 25,90,86,319
EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Equity shares of par value CHF 100/- each

Basic and diluted 5,29,945 2,15,905
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic and diluted 1,200 1,200
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants
Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 83,81,15,214 56,40,93,436
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Provision for doubtful debts 55,74,788 52,86,280
Depreciation and amortization expense 6,80,94,700 6,95,22 497
Loss on sale of assets 1,43,57,306 1,15,36,075
Finance cost 56,31,841 1,66,25271
Interest and dividend income = (98,246)
Provision for post-sales client support 9,90,963 96,07,049
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities 1,15,65,932 1,04,41,335

Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables
Loans and advances and other assets
Liabilities and provisions

Income taxes paid

NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment towards capital expenditure

Proceeds from sale of assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Interest and dividend received

NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase / (decrease) in loan from parent

Finance cost

Dividends paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(20,84,16,027)
(66,16,82,606)

(10,42,31,467)
(45,06,16,193)

60,59,11,017 34,82,67,642
68,01,43,128 48,04,33,679
(12,39,79,335) (3,49,80,138)
55,61,63,793 44,54,53,541

(1,38,81,328)

(5,08,97,265)

(15,47,973) 83,26,985
(32,13,000) =

- 98,246
1,86,42,301 (4,24,72,034)

(20,45,08,348)
(56,31,841)
(15,41,69,000)

(4,42,87,867)
(1,66,25,271)
(8,67,49,000)

(36,43,09,189)

(14,76,62,138)

17,32,12,303 25,53,19,369
33,20,93,769 7,67,74,400
50,53,06,072 33,20,93,769

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants
Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Jurgen Bauer
Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG).

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting AG
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants
AG) (‘the Company’) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lodestone
Holding AG, Kloten (Switzerland). The company renders professional
management consulting services, thereby enabling its clients to
enhance business performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year
The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to
December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or its
revision requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’ reporting currency is the Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Examples of such estimates may include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee
benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and the
useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets.

Accounting estimates could change periodically. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
based on changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates and
are reflected with material effects, if any, in the financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other
sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.

The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered. An
expected loss on a contract is recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.
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1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably that may
require an outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the outflow of
economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the reporting
date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure is made
as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made,
when no reliable estimate can be made, or when a possible or a
present obligation may require an outflow of resources. Where there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
is made.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-time frame contracts. Costs associated with such support
services are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded
and included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
estimates such costs based on historical experience and the estimates
are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and
likelihood of occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition
of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development
costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial
feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits
are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete
and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.

1.11 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use.



The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed assets
as follows:

Plant and machinery @ 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures @ 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

@ For these class of assets, based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to
use these assets. Hence , the useful lives for these assets is different from those prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual value

are reviewed at each reporting date (Refer to Note 2.7)

1.12 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s
net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset
and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if,
and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an
asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

1.13 Benefits to employees
Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences
which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined
by actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method on the
additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

1.14 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements in Indian rupees is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of transaction.
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1.15 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax, based on
the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability
due to disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company
offsets, on a yearly basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where it
has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified and,
thereafter, a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situation where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exists, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets, other than in situation of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if
there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the
deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash-on-deposit with
banks.

1.17 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.18 Leases

Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense
on a straight-line basis in the Profit and loss account over the lease
term.

1.19 Government grants

The Company recognizes government grants only when there is
reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them shall be
complied with and the grants will be received. Government grants
related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income and are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Government grants
related to revenue are recognized on a systematic basis in the Statement
of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs which they are intended to compensate.
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1.20 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable
had the shares been actually issued at fair value which is the average
market value of the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless
issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus share issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

2 Notes to accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2015

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified,
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital
in

As at December 31,
2015 2014

Particulars

Authorized
1,200 (1,200) equity shares of
CHF 100/- par value
[Of the above, 1,200 (1,200)
equity shares are held by the
holding company, Infosys
Consulting Holding AG
(formerly Lodestone holding
AG)]

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
1,200 (1,200) equity shares of
CHE 100/- par value
[Of the above, 1,200 (1,200)
equity shares are held by the
holding company, Infosys
Consulting Holding AG
(formerly Lodestone Holding
AG)] 57,30,000

57,30,000 57,30,000

57,30,000 57,30,000

57,30,000

The Company declares and pays dividend in Swiss Francs. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval
of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the amount of per share
dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was
CHF 1916.67. The total dividend appropriation for the year ended
December 31, 2015 amounted to CHF 2.3 million.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no
such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at December
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows :

Name of the shareholder As at December 31,
2015 2014

No.of % held No.of % held
shares shares

Infosys Consulting

Holding AG

(formerly Lodestone

Holding AG) 1,200 100 1,200 100

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the
amount of share capital as at December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014 is as follows :

Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of  Amount No.of  Amount
shares shares
Number of
shares at the
beginning 1,200 57,30,000 1,200 57,30,000
Number of

shares at the end 1,200 57,30,000 1,200 57,30,000

2.2 Reserves and surplus

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Currency translation reserve 13,21,63,569 13,53,47,481
Add: Movement during the year 1,15,65,932 (31,83,912)
Currency translation reserve 143729501 13,21,63,569
Legal reserve — opening balance 28,65,000 28,65,000
Add: Transfer during the year - -
Legal reserve — closing balance 28,65,000 28,65,000
Surplus — opening balance 23,05,36,947 5,81,99,628
Add: Net profit after tax
transferred from Statement of
Profit and Loss 63,59,33,625 25,90,86,319
Amount available for
appropriation 86,64,70,572 31,72,85,947
Appropriations :
Dividend paid to holding
company 15,41,69,000  8,67,49,000
Surplus — closing balance 71,23,01,572 23,05,36,947
85,88,96,073 36,55,65,516
2.3 Unsecured loans
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Loan from related party
— unsecured”’ 33,52,23,444 53,97,31,792
33,52,23,444 53,97,31,792

Refer to Note 2.18



2.4 Trade payables
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2.6 Short-term provisions

in% in%
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Trade payables 45,88,36,508  43,42,15,175 Provision for employee benefits
458836598 43.42.15.175 Compensated absences 15,62,96,237 9,35,60,987
@ Includes dues to holding company and Other provisions
fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.18) 27,94,84993 27,65,13,508 Provision for post-sales client
support and warranties 1,73,29,326 1,58,97 413
2.5 Other current liabilities Provision for income taxes 34,18,60,006  28,44,67,161
in 51,54,85,569 39,3925 561
Particulars As at December 31, Provision for post-sales client support and warranties.
2015 2014 in%
Ac;;lfgler?eza;ir(lie}s)::e(ifit)seneflts 6.91.002 _ Particulars Year ended December 31,
. . == 2015 2014
Bonus and incentives 13,11,94,863 17,04,23,302 —

Unearned revenue 449592 087 2242 01 314 Balance at the beginning 1,58,97,413 7797817

Other liabilities T B Provision recognized / (reversed) 9,90,963 96,07,049

Provision for expenses ) 37,92,14,656  14,6525,167 Pt Wil tzd , - -

Withhelding and ofie: Exchange difference during the

taxes payable 449266496 412904062  peried e (D 07155)

Other payables © 31.79.71,178 27.91,05365 Balance at the end 1,73,29,326 1,58,97,413
Advances received from Provision for post-sales client support is expected to be utilized over

clients 10,69,39,068 8,35,05,846 a period of six months to one year.

1,83,48,69,350 1,31,67,55,956

@ Includes dues to holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.18) 68,806

30,97,20,377

82,67,497
25,26,94,799
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2.8 Leases
Obligations on long-term, non-cancelable operating leases

The lease rentals charged during the period and the maximum
obligations on long-term, non-cancelable operating leases payable as
per the rentals stated in the respective agreements are as follows:

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Less: Provision for
doubtful debts 68,16,556 12,41,768

1,91,31,20,768
1,91,31,20,768

1,71,02,79,529
1,71,02,79,529

inx o i
Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
Particulars Year ended December 31, (Refer to Note 2.18) 62,61,67,196 44,58,38,317
2015 2014
Lease rentals recognized during 2.12 Cash and cash equiva|eﬂts
the period 6,07,71,802  6,31,94,087 in
in% Particulars As at December 31,
Lease obligations payable As at December 31, 2015 , 2014
5015 2014 Cash on hand 64,937 71,952
Within one year of the Balance Eellicces ool e s
Sheet date 6.51.00385 62218.972 In current accounts 50,52,41,135 33,20,21,817
Due i iod between o . === o 50,53,06,072  33,20,93,769
ue in a period between one yea
and five years 24,86,47,303  24,88,75,890 The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
Due after five years - 5,18,49,144 follows
The operating lease arrangements, are renewable on a periodic basis in?
and extend up to a maximum of 10 years from their respective dates Particulars As at December 31,
of inception and relates to rented premises. Some of these lease 2015 2014
agreements have price escalation clauses. In current accounts
UBS Switzerland AG (CHF) 8,73,47,225 25,20,49,906
2.9 Non-current investments UBS Switzerland AG (AUD) 8,49,857 6,33,762
in% UBS Switzerland AG (USD) 1,04,39,781 3,22,68,999
Particulars As at December 31, UBS Switzerland AG (ZAR) 2,07,815 34,612
5015 2014 UBS Switzerland AG (GBP) 22,15,441 63,80,426
Investment in equity instruments UBS Switzerland AG (HKD) 3,09,639 5,32,987
N, UBS Switzerland AG (EURO) 28,34,15,118 4,01,21,125
Lodestone Augmentis AG 4775000  47,75,000 Deutsche Bank (CHF) 6,79,54,005 -
1000 (1000) equity shares of Deutsche Bank (EUR) 4,08,72,795 -
CHF 100/- each, fully paid Deutsche Bank (GBP) 52,97,010 -
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. Deutsche Bank (USD) 63,32,449 -
(formerly Lodestone Management B 352021817
Consultants S.R.L) 4243145 10,30,145 Total bank balances 50,52,41,135 33,20,21,817
Z;%Ofolé)/ozifﬁugzl;l?;ej of 2.13 Short-term loans and advances ,
90,8145 58,05,145 in?
Particulars As at December 31,
2.10 Long-term loans and advances 2015 2014
in% Unsecured, considered good
Particulars As at December 31, Loans to fellow subsidiary
5015 2014 (Refer to Note 2.18) 5,54,74,713 —
Unsecured, considered good Others
Other loans and advances Advancgs
Advance income taxes 14011 2,08,23,420 fiicraldicspenses 3.82,58,697  3,35,00,404
Loans and advances to Withholding and other
Employees 74112673 8.18.48.892 taxes receivable 10,46,34,180 8,75,53,663
741260684 102672312 Others 85,23,55,273 15,54,50,091
99,52,48,150 27,65,04,158
211 Trade receivables Unbilled revenues 32,71,76,715 46,58,60,541
in%T Loans and advances to
employees
Particulars As at December 31, Salary advances 3,99,02,062  58,74,748
2015 2014 Rental deposits 2,47,822 3,91,190
Debts outstanding for a 1,41,80,49,462 74,86,30,637
period exceeding six months @ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
Unsecured (Refer to Note 2.18) 85,23,55273 15,74,58,328
Considered doubtful 1,30,35,764 =
Less: Provision for
doubtful debts 1,30,35,764 -
Other debts - -
Unsecured
Considered good™ 1919937324 1,71,1521.297

1,91,99,37,324 1,71,15,21,297
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2.14 Other income

in%

Particulars Year ended December 31,

2015 2014
Interest received on deposits with
banks and others - 08,246
Miscellaneous income, net 20,64,57,173 19,70,37,636
Gains / (losses) on foreign
currency, net 1,44,64,687 (6,39,79,483)

22,09,21,860 13,31,56,399
2.15 Expenses
in
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and bonus
Staff welfare

Cost of technical
sub-contractors
Technical sub-contractors —
holding company / fellow
subsidiaries
Technical sub-contractors
— others

4,16,92,72,651
3,47,89,006

3,69,27,00,987
1,58,08,146

4,20,40,61,657

3,70,85,09,133

2,20,33,49,717

1,71,17,61,105

2,59,77,87,166

1,03,52,89,279

3,91,51,10,822

3,63,30,76,445

in%
Particulars
2015 2014
Other expenses
Office maintenance 64,53,591 66,37,180
Power and fuel 6,55,703 12,24,031
Brand building 1,91,96,045 2,28,32,950
Rent 6,07,71,802 6,31,94,087
Rates and taxes, excluding
taxes on income 74,79,278 3,62,742
Repairs to plant and
machinery 64,696 1,85,531
Computer maintenance 3,16,18.313 6,03,42,199
Insurance charges 40,44,257 1,31,16,152
Provision for post-sales client
support and warranties 9,90,963 96,07,049
Provision for bad and doubtful
debts and advances 1,74,77,685 52,86,280
Auditor’s remuneration
Statutory audit fees 43,06,048 23,20,987
Bank charges 18,85,260 11,33,142
Others 49975713 499,16,728
20,49,19354 23,61,59,058
2.16 Tax expense
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

2.17 Quantitative details

Current tax

Income taxes

20,21,81,589 30,50,07,117
20,21,81,589 30,50,07,117

The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy services
cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information as required under
paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for preparation of the Statement of Profit and Loss as per revised Schedule III to the Companies

Act, 2013.

2.18 Related party transactions

List of related parties:

Name of holding company Country Holding as at December 31,

2015 2014
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)  Switzerland 100% 100%
Name of ultimate holding company Country
Infosys Limited India
Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infosys Public Services) us.
Infosys Americas Inc., (Infosys Americas) U.s.
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. (formerly Infosys BPO's. 1. 0) Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp Z.0.0 Poland
Infosys BPO S.DE R.L. DE.C.V "@ Mexico
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC U.s.
Portland Group Pty Ltd™ Australia
Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd® Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC.1® uU.s.
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) @ Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) India
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) Switzerland
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Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. © U.s.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited © Australia
Lodestone GmbH (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH) © Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH  (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) © Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Infosys Consulting s.r.o.(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) © Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. © China

Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) © UK
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. @ Netherlands
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. @ Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. © Portugal
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Romania
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova)® uU.s.
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) "% U.S.
Panaya Ltd."? Israel
Panaya GmbH"" Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd.“? Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd."? Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)"? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus)™ U.s.

Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ U.S.

Noah Information Management Consulting Inc (Noah Canada) ** Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO

@ Under liquidation

9 Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formetly Lodestone Holding AG)
Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG))
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014

@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

IDWholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

990n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.

9 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015

)
)
)
©)
)
)
)

()

The details of amounts due to or from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured loans
Infosys Consulting Holding AG
(formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 33,52,23.444 53,97,31,792
Loan to fellow subsidiary
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 5,54,74,713 —
Trade receivables
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 3,49,92.664 5,77,92,253
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited = 1,25,98,459
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 38,59,837 4,14,55,127
Infosys Consulting GmbH
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH), Germany 7,76,82,499 8,10,03,706
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH, Austria 4,44 349 =
Infosys Consulting SAS
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 7,08,47,153 4,98,42,048
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. 3,70,20,762 1,53,10,905
Infy Consulting Company Ltd.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 27,77,81,326 18,10,77,567
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. 73,36,125 55,67,890
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 52,29,678 11,90,362
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Particulars As at December 31,

2015 2014
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) 24,75,658 =
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 1,37,53,143 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. 26,02,615 -
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 34,76,797 -
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 43,52,482 =
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB 8,43,12,108 -

62,61,67,196 44,58,38,317
Other receivables

Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 2.,88.44,000 2,29.77,000
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited 1,64,97,967 —
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 20,39,82,729 -
Lodestone Augmentis AG 36,35,402 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. 31,98,49,941 1,83,58,277
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH), Germany 2,41,91,399 2.,43,20,665
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) 1,06,80,000
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 18,78,807  1,68,49,800
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) - 9,00,343
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 57,95,931 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 22,23,36,097 3,34,75,556
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. = 2,65,62,687
Infosys Limited 1,46,63,000 1,40,14,000
85,23,55273 15,74,58,328
Trade payables
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 1,36,13,365 11,48,515
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. 1,37,40,596 55,54,757
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 1,59,99,439 1,47,09,466
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited 11,92,504 42,92,164
Lodestone Augmentis AG - 1,01,00,952
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 68,25,025 1,19,35,236
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. 6,065,624 =
Infosys Consulting GmbH
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH), Germany" 427,16,100 12,18,55,875
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd)" 31,44,733 66,20,320
Infosys Consulting SAS
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS)" 70,53,167 2,13,36,570
Infosys Consulting s.t.0.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.)" 35,52,612 3,96,984
Infy Consulting Company Ltd.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.)" 1,80,85,630 84,03,822
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 8,09,74,481  1,01,58,303
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 4,13,54,073 4,39,20,874
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. 191,16,326 1,23,41,127
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)" 1,14,51,318 37,38,543
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 27,94,84,993 27,65,13,508
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 8,09,74,481 1,01,58,303
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 4.13,54,073 4.39,20,874
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. 191,16,326 1,2341,127
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.
(formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 1,14,51,318 37,38,543
27,94,84993 27,65,13,508
Other payables
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 8,82,701 -
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH, Germany = 30,84,913
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd. 29,82,68,756 24,67,58,100
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 67,93,819 -
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 4,68,300 =
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 32,93,547 28,39,119
Infosys Limited 13,254 12,667

30,97,20,377  25,26,94,799

Provision for expenses
Infosys BPO Limited 68,806 =
Infosys Technologies S. de. R.L.De C.V. 82,67,497

68,806 82,067,497

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are
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as follows:
in
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions
Loans borrowed
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) (20,45,08,348) (4,42,87,867)
Loans advanced
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 5,54,74,713 -
Investment in subsidiaries
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 32,13,000 -
Revenue transactions
Purchase of services
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 1,86,09,730 56,53,827
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited 88,69,709 1,71,75,326
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 5,34,32,057 3,71,30,040
Lodestone Augmentis AG — 3,27,05,610
Infosys Consulting s.r.0. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) 1,98,38,451 89,98,263
Infosys Consulting GmbH
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH), Germany 68,48,46,041 85,74,77,571
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 14,86,62,711 13,19,81,312
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 37,44,49,485 46,07,90,648
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 9,46,49,189 9,08,79,882
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. 1,65,80,303 86,23,514
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 38,23,65,172 34,28,37,991
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. 13,41,32,887 17,97,06,263
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 5,73,33,628 7,01,22,307
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 3,59,96,946 2,77,60,022
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 16,14,08,979 31,96,20,866
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. 1,51,48,238 60,45,699
Infosys BPO Limited 68,724 -
Infosys Technologies S. de. R.L.De C.V. 12,86,644 88,11,045
Dividend paid to holding company
Infosys Consulting Holding AG
(formerly Lodestone Holding AG) - 8,67,49,000
Interest expense -
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 47,46,983 1,77,11,320
Interest income -
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 21,70,651 =
Sales of services
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 35,19,051 -
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 39,06,746 56,26,267
Infosys Consulting GmbH
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH), Germany 24,17,93,120 51,66,69,277
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH Austria 4,49,749 -
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 2,09,62,412 4,03,29,974
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited 1,32,84,900 1,71,51,011
Infy Consulting Company Ltd.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 1,35,30,53,768 82,33,04,765
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. 26,34,245 -
Infosys Consulting s.r.o.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) 25,05,745 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. 2,12,54,681 =
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. 7425281 69,83,226
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 52,06,08,804 10,98,80,108
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 4,57,96,906 -
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.
(formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) 44.,05,378 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 1,38,71,060 93,16,699
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB 8,16,51,026 —

2.19 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single

segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Lodestone GmbH (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH).

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GmbH (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH) (‘the Company’), which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

For Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath
Partner
Membership number: 202841
Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

56 | Lodestone GmbH



Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

Balance Sheet

in
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 22,92,000 22,92,000
Reserves and surplus 2.2 (13,02,699) (12,54,252)

9,89,301 10,37,748
9,89,301 10,37,748

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2.3 9,87,605 10,36,547

Short-term loans and advances 2.4 1,696 1,201
9,89,301 10,37,748
9,89,301 10,37,748

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone GmbH
Chartered Accountants (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH)

Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath Jurgen Bauer Peter Odman
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in X except per share data

Particulars Note Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

Other income — 158
Total revenue — 158
Expenses
Consultancy and professional charges 16,663 -
Interest expense - 411
Other expenses 2.5 79,628 59,610
Total expenses 96,291 60,021
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (96,291) (59,863)
Tax expense

Current tax 2.6 = (264)

Deferred tax 2.6 - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (96,291) (59,599)

PROFIT / (LOSS) PER EQUITY SHARE
Equity shares of par value CHF 100/- each

Basic and diluted (201) (124)
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic and diluted 480 480
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone GmbH
Chartered Accountants (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH)

Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Jurgen Bauer Peter Odman
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement

in%

Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax (96,291) (59,863)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities

Interest and dividend income = (158)

Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities 47,844 (94,500)
Changes in assets and liabilities

Loans and advances and other assets (487) 97

(48,934) (1,54,424)

Income taxes paid 8) (23,021)
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (48,942) (1,77,445)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividend received = 158
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES — 158
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (48,942) (1,77,287)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 10,36,547 12,13,834
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 9,87,605 10,36,547
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone GmbH
Chartered Accountants (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH)

Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Jurgen Bauer Peter Odman
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Lodestone GmbH (formerly Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH),
(‘the Company’), is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lodestone Holding
AG, Kloten (Switzerland).

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

On January 21, 2016, the Board of Directors of Lodestone Augmentis
AG have passed a resolution approving in principle the liquidation
of the Company. On February 5, 2016, the Company was officially
registered in the Schweizerisches Handelsamtsblatt (Swiss Official
Gazette) and is under liquidation since then. Accordingly, the financial
statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis. Instead,
these financial statements have been prepared on a liquidation basis.
Assets and liabilities are presented as current. Assets have been
recorded at their net realizable value and liabilities recorded at their
known estimated settlement value.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’ reporting currency is the Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Examples of such estimates may include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee
retirement benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support
and the useful lives of fixed assets.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the
outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure
is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

1.6 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
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of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

1.7 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair
value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetory assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetory assets
and non-monetory liabilities measured at historical cost are translated
at the exchange rate prevalant at the date of transaction.

1.8 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based
on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability
due to disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company
offsets, on a year-on-year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situations where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exist, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets, other than in situations of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if
there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally



enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks.

1.10 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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1.11 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value
which is the average market value of the outstanding shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus share issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

2 Notes to accounts for the year ended December 31, 2015

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital

in¥
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Authorized
480 (480) equity shares of CHF 100/- par value 22.,92,000 22,92,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
480 (480) equity shares of CHF 100/- par value 22.,92,000 22.,92.000
22,92,000 22.92,000
The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is set out below:
Name of the shareholder As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of shares % held  No. of shares % held
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 480 100 480 100

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is set

out below:
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
Number of shares at the beginning 480 22,92,000 480 22,92,000
Number of shares at the end 480 22,92,000 480 22,92,000
2.2 Reserves and surplus 2.3 Cash and cash equivalents
in% in%
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Currency translation reserve 3,03,070 3,97,570 Balances with banks
Add: Movement during the year 47,844 (94,500) In current accounts 9,87,605 10,36,547
Currency translation reserve 3,50,914 3,03,070 9,87,605 10,36,547
z;iél;eser\ffe — opening balance 6,685 6,685 The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
: Transferred from surplus - =
6.685 6.685 follows: ,
Surplus — opening balance (15,64,007) (15,04,408) in¥
Add: Net profit after tax Particulars As at December 31,
transferred from Statement of 2015 2014
Profit and Loss (96,291) (59,599) In current accounts
Surplus — closing balance (16,60,298) (15,64,007) UBS AG (CHF) 3,21,105 10,36,547
(13,02,699) (12,54,252) Deutsche Bank (CHF) 6,66,500 -
9,87,605 10,36,547
Total bank balances 9,87,605 10,36,547
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2.4 Short-term loans and advances

2.6 Tax expense

ink ink
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Unsecured, considered good Current tax
Others Income taxes = (264)
Withholding and other taxes - (264)
receivable 1,506 1,019
Advance income taxes 2.7 Quantitative details
(net of provisions) 190 182 The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management
1,696 Lol consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy
services cannot be expressed in any generic unit.Hence, it is not
2.5 Expenses ) possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information
inX as required under paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for
Particulars Year ended December 31, preparation of the statement of profit and loss as per revised Schedule
2015 2014 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.
Other expenses
Bank charges 60,530 59,610
Miscellaneous 19,098 =
79,628 59,610

2.8 Related party transactions

List of related parties:

Name of related party Country Holding as at December 31,
2015 2014

Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) Switzerland 100% 100%

Name of ultimate holding company Country

Infosys Limited India

Name of fellow subsidiaries Country

Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India

Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China

Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico

Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB (Infosys Sweden) Sweden

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China

Infosys Tecnologia do Brasil Ltda. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil

Infosys Public Services, Inc. (Infosys Public Services) u.s.

Infosys Americas Inc. (Infosys Americas) U.S.

Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o (formerly Infosys BPO s.r.0) V Czech Republic

Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp. z 0.0. ¥ Poland

Infosys BPO S. de R. L. de C. V O@ Mexico

Infosys McCamish Systems LLC " uUs.

Portland Group Pty. Limited Australia

Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd © Australia

Infosys BPO Americas LLC (V¢ uU.s.

Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) ) Australia

EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) India

Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. © U.S.

Lodestone Management Consultants Pty. Limited Australia

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) © Switzerland

Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland

Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S. A. @ Belgium

Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) @ Germany

Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formetly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) © Singapore

Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France

Infosys Consulting s.r.o.(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) © Czech Republic

Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria

Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. © China

Infy Consulting Company Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) © UK

Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. © Netherlands

Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. ¥ Brazil

Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. © Poland

Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda @ Portugal

S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly SC Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Romania

Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) @ Argentina
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Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC (Infosys Nova) uU.s.
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) 1© U.S.
Panaya Ltd."? Israel
Panaya Gmbh " Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd. 1V Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd."" Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems) % India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus) @ U.S.
Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ U.S.
Canada

Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada) >

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO
@ Under liquidation

& Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
& Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)

@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014

@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

1D Wholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems
190n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.
9 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah
19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015

2.9 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single

segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.
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Independent Auditor’s report

To the Members of Lodestone Management Consultants Co. Ltd.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lodestone Management Consultants Co. Ltd. (‘the Company’), which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st December 2015 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

For SHENOY & KAMATH

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’s registration number: 006673S

(M Rathnakar Kamath)

Partner
Membership number: 202841
Place: Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

66 | Infosys Consulting AG



Balance Sheet

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 15,82,28,571 15,82,28,571
Reserves and surplus 2.2 (40,64,72,954) (22,48,58,894)
(24,82,44,383) (6,66,30,323)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 2.3 4,84,23,540 2,60,03,102
Other current liabilities 2.4 60,53,42,982 27,20,92,681
Short-term provisions 2.5 3,12,05,519 1,47,38,659
68,49,72,041 31,28,34,442
43,67,27,658 24.62,04,119
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2.6 99,55 427 62,51,612
09,55 ,427 62,51,612
Long-term loans and advances 2.8 12,612 12,852
99,68,039 62,64,464
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 2.9 15,99,73,856 11,93,49,420
Cash and cash equivalents 2.10 7,99,21,350 4,70,35,781
Short-term loans and advances 2.11 18,68,64,413 7,35,54,454
42.,67,59,619 23,99,39,655
43,67,27,658 24,62,04,119

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Bengaluru
January 8, 2016

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone Management Consultants Co. Ltd.

Peter Odman
Director

Lin Li

Director
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in%
Particulars Note Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Income from Consultancy services 1,29,46,09,399 59,42,86,695
Other income 2.12 (27,84,973) 68,61,550
Total revenue 1,29,18,24,426 60,11,48,245
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.13 65,56,17,110 43,03,82,698
Cost of technical sub-contractors 2.13 48,25,53,325 15,56,56,627
Travel expenses 20,25,87,941 10,05,08,150
Cost of software packages and others - For own use - 7,83,560
Communication expenses 55,60,064 43,25,309
Consultancy and Professional charges 6,85,15,810 1,67,10,282
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.6 39,77,142 42,14,358
Other expenses 2.13 5,38,67,916 2,69,69,500
Total expenses 1,47,26,79,308 73,95,50,484
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (18,08,54,882) (13,84,02,239)
Tax expense :
Current tax 2.14 - -
Deferred tax 2.14 - 2,30,18,674
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (18,08,54,882) (16,14,20,913)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Peter Odman

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Bengaluru
January 8, 2016

68 | Infosys Consulting AG

Lin Li
Director

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone Management Consultants Co. Ltd.



Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

Cash Flow Statement

in%
Particulars Note Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (loss) before tax (18,08,54,882) (13,84,02,239)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation expense 39,777,142 42,14,358
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 81,03,212 550
Interest received on deposits with banks and others (1,04,017) (13,272)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities (7,56,751) (42,85,544)
Other Adjustments 47,05,397 21,24,408
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables (4,87,27,648) (9,26,73,009)
Loans and advances and other assets (11,33,09,959) (4,54,44,553)
Liabilities and provisions 36,74,32,202 22,58,13,269
4,04,64,696 (4,86,66,032)
Income taxes refund / (paid) 240 10,60,226
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,04,64,936 (4,76,05,8006)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards capital expenditure (76,83,384) (53,28,549)
Interest received on deposits with banks and others 1,04,017 13,272
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (75,79,367) (53,15,277)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 4,08,29,800
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES — 4,08,29,800
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,28,85,569 (1,20,91,283)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 4,70,35,781 5,91,27,064
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 7,99,21,350 4,70,35,781
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone Management Consultants Co. Ltd.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Peter Odman Lin Li
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 202841

Bengaluru
January 8, 2016
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Lodestone Management Consultants Co. Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone
Holding AG), Kloten (Switzerland). The company renders professional
management consulting services, thereby enabling its clients to
enhance business performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’ reporting currency is Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating
to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Examples of such estimates may include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee
benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and the
useful lives of fixed assets.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other
sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.
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The stage of completion is d,etermined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in the profit
and loss account.”

1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the
outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure
is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-time frame contracts. Costs associated with such support services
are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded and
included in statement of profit and loss. The Company estimates such
costs based on historical experience and the estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use. The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed
assets as follows:

Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

@ For these class of assets, based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to
use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
(Refer note 2.6)



1.12 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses using, external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

1.13 Benefits to employees

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated
absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is
determined by using projected unit credit method on the additional
amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

1.14 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains
or losses resulting from such translations are included in the Statement
of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to INR is performed for
monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect at
the balance sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow items
using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The gains
or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabilities measured at historical cost are translated
at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

1.15 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based
on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability
due to disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company
offsets, on a year on year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
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aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situation where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exists, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
Deferred tax assets, other than in situation of unabsorbed depreciation
and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if there is
reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values
at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority. Tax benefits of deductions
earned on exercise of employee share options in excess of compenstion
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss are credited to the securities
premium reserve.

1.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of
the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

1.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

1.18 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.19 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets
acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever
is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss over
the lease term.
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2 Notes to accounts for the year ended

December 31, 201

5

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified,
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Authorized
2,260,000 USD (2,260,000 USD)  15,82,28,571 15,82,28,571
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
2,260,000 USD (2,260,000 USD)  15,82,28,571 15,82,28,571
15,8228 571 15,82,28,571
2.2 Reserves and surplus
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Currency Translation Reserve 96,56,579 1,39,11,394
Add: Movement during the
year (7,59,178) (42,54,815)
88,97,401 96,56,579
Surplus- Opening Balance (23,45,15,473) (7,30,94,560)

Add: Net profit / (loss) after
tax transferred from Statement
of Profit and Loss

(18,08,54,882)

(16,14,20,913)

Surplus- Closing Balance

(41,53,70,355)

(23,45,15,473)

(40,64,72,954)  (22,48,58,894)
2.3 Trade payables
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Trade payables ¥ 48423540  2,60,03,102
48423540  2,60,03,102
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
(refer to note 2.16) 2,49 49288 1,87,61,472
2.4 Other current liabilities
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Accrued salaries and benefits
Salaries and benefits - 21,237
Bonus and incentives 3,63,58,584 2,09,99 524
Unearned revenue 32,41,070 2,11,77,716
Other liabilities
Provision for expenses 12,72,44,164 5,49,61,439
Other Payables 432222296 14,32,19,337
Withholding and other taxes
payable 62,76,868  3,17,13 428
60,53,42,982 27,20,92,681
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
(refer to note 2.16) 43,02,09,111 14,28,72,619
2.5 Short-term provisions
in¥
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 2,38,33,403 1,20,91,795
Other Provisions
Provision for post sales client
support and warranties and
others 73,72,116 26,46,864
3,12,05,519 1,47,38,659
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Provision for post-sales client support and warranties and others

The movement in the provision for post-sales client support and

warranties and others is as follows :

in¥

Particulars Year ended December 31,

2015 2014
Balance at the beginning 26,46,864 -
Provision recognized / (reversed) 47,05,397 21,24,408
Exchange difference during the
year 19,855 522,456
Balance at the end 73,72,116 26,46,864

Provision for post-sales client support is expected to be utilized over

a period of six months to one year.



2.6 Fixed assets

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2015:

in X, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets

Office Computer Furniture and Total

equipment equipment fixtures

Original cost
As at January 1, 2015 7,88,739 1,33,11,636 57,98,904 1,98,99,279
Additions during the year - 76,83,384 - 76,83,384
Deductions /
Adjustments / Retirements during the year 3,090 (9,75,029) 22,719 (9,49,220)
As at December 31, 2015 7,91,829  2,00,19,991 58,21,623  2,66,33,443
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2015 4,60,131 74,08,089 57,79,447 1,36,47,667
For the year 1,34,062 38,23,981 19,099 39,77,142
Deductions /
Adjustments / Retirements during the year 2,289 (9,72,159) 23,077 (9,46,793)
As at December 31, 2015 5,96,482 1,02,59,911 58,21,623 1,66,78,016
Net book value
As at December 31, 2015 1,95,347 97,60,080 — 99,55,427

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2014

in X, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets

Office Computer Furniture and Total

equipment equipment fixtures
Original cost
As at January 1, 2014 6,10,522 80,04,266 58,04,584 1,44,19,372
Additions during the year 1,73,428 51,55,121 = 53,28,549
Deductions /
Adjustments / Retirements during the year - - - -
Deductions /
Adjustments / Retirements during the year 4,789 1,52,249 (5,680) 1,51,358
As at December 31, 2014 7,88,739 1,33,11,636 57,98,904 1,98,99,279
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2014 2,95,656 44,79,328 45,37,696 93,12,680
For the year 1,74,435 28,40,339 11,99,584 42,14,358
Deductions /
Adjustments / Retirements during the year - - - -
Deductions /
Adjustments / Retirements during the year (9,960) 88,422 42,167 1,20,629
As at December 31, 2014 4,060,131 74,08,089 57,79,447 1,36,47,667
4,060,131 74,08,089 57,79,447

Net book value
As at December 31, 2014 3,28,608 59,03,547 19,457 62,51,612

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Management based on internal and external technical evaluation reassessed the remaining useful
life of assets primarily consisting of computers with effect from April 1, 2014. Accordingly the useful lives of certain assets required a change

from the previous estimates.

2.7 Leases n¥
Obligations on long-term, non-cancelable operating leases Liezise olofigetitons pageible s a;(l))le;:ember Bl SOl
The lease rentals charged during the period and the maximum Within one year of the balance
obligations on long-term, non-cancelable operating leases payable as st dkiie 12564470  1,19,57.972
per the rentals stated in the respective agreements are as follows: , Due in a period between one year
in and five years 93,03,735 2,13,91,483
Particulars Year ended December 31, . . .
015 2014 The operating lease arrangements, are renewable on a periodic basis
Tz monilh ooy s and extend upto a maximum of two years from their respective dates
— 12962304 98,17,551 of inception and relates to rented premises. Some of these lease

agreements have price escalation clauses.
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2.8 Long term loans and advances

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income taxes 12,612 12,852
12,612 12,852
2.9 Trade receivables
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Debts outstanding for a period
exceeding 6 months
Unsecured
Considered doubtful 80,94,424 -
80,94,424 —
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 80,94,424 -
Other Debts
Unsecured
Considered good 15,99,73.856 11,93,49,420
15,99,73,856 11,9349 420
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note 2.16) 3,70,94,153 3,86,82,385
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Cash on hand 30,786 71,291
Balances with banks
In current accounts 7,98,90,564 4,69,64,490
7,9921350  4,70,35,781

The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
follows:

in
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
In current accounts
China Merchants Bank (CNY) 7,88,63,513 4,70,71,392
China Merchants Bank (USD) = (1,06,902)
Citibank China (USD) 10,27,051 -
7,98,90,564 4,69,64,490
Total bank balances 7,98,90,564 4,69,64,490
2.11 Short-term loans and advances
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured, considered good
Others
Advances
Prepaid expenses 35,82,901 38,95,502
Withholding and other taxes
receivable — 2,90,79,524
Others ¥ 1,82,21,349 2923577
2,18,04,250 3,58,98,603
Unbilled revenues 14,67 44,740 2,30,57,894
Loans and advances to
employees
Salary advances 12,53,934 4,25,757
Rental deposits 68,08,721 39,59,443
Security deposits 1,02,52,768 1,02,12,757
18,68,64,413 7,35,54,454
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Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note 2.16) 1,37,23,649 2,54,828
2.12 Other income
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Interest received on deposits with
banks and others 1,04,017 13,272
Miscellaneous income, net 3,51,031 19,748
Gains / (losses) on foreign
currency, net (32,40,021) 68,28,530
(27,84,973) 68,61,550
2.13 Expenses
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and bonus including
overseas staff expenses 64,36,47,035 42,18,99,046
Staff welfare 1,19,70,075 84,83,652
65,56,17,110 43,03,82,698
Cost of technical sub-contractors
Technical sub-contractors -
related parties 3,63,688 72,26,821
Technical sub-contractors -
others 48,21,89,637 14,84,29,806
48,25,53,325 15,56,56,627
Other expenses
Office maintenance 20,60,553 21,57,240
Power and fuel 3,29,005 2,56,552
Brand building 5,02,693 2,64,830
Rent 1,29,62,304 08,17,551
Rates and taxes, excluding
taxes on income 62,22,824 29,68,157
Computer maintenance 14,445 5,606,733
Insurance charges 40,326 41,869
Marketing expenses - 82,37,020
Provision for post-sales client
support and warranties 47,05,397 21,24,408
Provision for bad and doubtful
debts and advances 81,03,212 550
Auditor’s remuneration
Statutory audit fees 1,34,001 83,691
Bank charges and commission 2,80,398 1,07,821
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,85,12,758 3,43,078
5,38,67,916  2,69,69,500
2.14 Tax expense
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Current tax
Income taxes - -
Deferred taxes - 2,30,18,674
- 230,18,674

2.15 Quantitative details

The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management
consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy
services cannot be expressed in any generic unit.Hence, it is not
possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information
as required under paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for
preparation of the statement of profit and loss as per revised Schedule
11T to the Companies Act, 2013.



2.16 Related party transactions

List of related parties:
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Name of related party

Holding as at December 31,

2015 2014
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 100% 100%
Name of ultimate holding company Country
Infosys Limited India
Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infosys Public Services) us.
Infosys Americas Inc., (Infosys Americas) U.S.
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. (formerly Infosys BPO s. 1. 0) ¥ Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp Z.0.0 @ Poland
Infosys BPO S.DE R.L. DE.C.V @ Mexico
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC U.S.
Portland Group Pty Ltd™” Australia
Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd® Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC.1® uU.s.
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) @ Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) India
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. © uU.s.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited® Australia
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) © Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH @® Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) © Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) © Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Infosys Consulting s.r.o.(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) © Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) © UK
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. © Netherlands
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. @ Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. © Portugal
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Romania
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova)® U.s.
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) * uU.s.
Panaya Ltd."? Israel
Panaya Gmbh'" Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd."V Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd."? Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)"? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus)™ uU.s.
Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ U.S.
Noah Information Management Consulting Inc (Noah Canada) ** Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO.

@ Under liquidation

& Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
& Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014.

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014

@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

ADWholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

990n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.

9 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015
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The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Trade Receivables
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 1,37,40,596 55,54,757
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 47,78,628 1,02,15,014
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 39,56,383 31,66,758
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) 20,75,661 45,23,544
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 5,943
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) 1,25,36,942 1,52,22.312
Total 3,70,94,153 3,86,82,385
Other Receivables
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 29,34,758 -
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) 1,07,88,891 -
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) - 2,54,828
Total 1,37,23,649 2,54,828
Trade Payables
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 2,23,70,227 13,08,817
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 24,66,330 26,28,512
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) - 79,54,277
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) - 1,99,134
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 1,12,731 83,514
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) - 65,87,218
Total 2,49,49,288 1,87,61,472
Other Payables
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 33,45,00,478 3,21,05,537
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 9,54,47,875  9,50,61,876
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 2,60,758 =
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) - 1,57,05,206
Total 43,02,09,111 14,28,72,619

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are

as follows:
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions:
Revenue transactions:
Purchase of services including shared facilities and personnel
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 2,11,87,111 =
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) - 2,08,061
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 30,069 83,563
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) 3,63,688 69,94,467
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) = 59,46,548
Total 2,15,80,868  1,32,32,639
Sales of services
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 1,50,80,390 60,06,576
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 737,860  5,81,28,764
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 8,66,51,907 4,33,25,233
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) 13,95,48,752 42.51,724
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 24.31,960 =
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) 2,04,40,566 2,27,70,643
Total 26,48,91,435 13,44,82,940

2.17 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are therefore considered to constitute a single

segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 - ‘Segment Reporting’
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Independent Auditor’s report

To the Members of Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.)

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.)
(‘the Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’ preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’ Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

For Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,

Firm’s registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner
Membership number: 202841
Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 789,777 789,777
Reserves and surplus 2.2 3,46,46,911 1,39,20,862
3,54,36,688 1,47,10,639
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 2.3 24,64,617 =
Other current liabilities 2.4 3,30,48,358 1,10,05,046
Short-term provisions 2.5 77,55,456 31,79,490
432,688,431 1,41,84,536
7,87,05,119 2,88,95,175
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2.6 4,30,859 -
Long-term loans and advances 2.8 - 9,22,237
4,30,859 922237
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 2.9 6,25,82,182 95,33,502
Cash and cash equivalents 2.10 1,53,11,394 1,80,11,981
Short-term loans and advances 2.11 3,80,684 4,27 455
7,82,74,260 2,79,72.938
7,87,05,119 2,88,95,175
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report on even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting s.r.0.
(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.1.0.)

Peter Fischer
Director

Robert Boreczek
Director
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in %, except per share data

Particulars Note Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

Income from consultancy services 16,45,72,473 10,01,65,692
Other income 2.12 (87,104) (3,86,291)
Total revenue 16,44,85,369 9,97,79,401
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.13 8,10,19,8901 5,606,79,142
Travelling and conveyance 4,34,60,942 2,87,81,428
Communication expenses 20,20,038 8,76,609
Consultancy and professional charges 91,12,820 31,31,758
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.6 1,52,912 -
Other expenses 2.13 9,62,955 15,51,635
Total expenses 13,67,29,558 9,10,20,632
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 2,77,55,811 87,58,769
Tax expense

Current tax 2.14 62,46,049 16,88,035

Deferred tax 2.14 - -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 2,15,09,762 70,70,734

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Equity shares of par value CZK 1/- each

Basic and diluted 108 35
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic and diluted 2,00,000 2,00,000
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report on even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting s.r.0.

Chartered Accountants (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.1.0.)
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath Peter Fischer Robert Boreczek
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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in%
Particulars For the year ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 2,77,55811 87,58,769
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,52,912 -
Interest and dividend income (565) (567)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities (8,05,803) (13,34,961)
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables (5,30,48,680) 25,57,529
Loans and advances and other assets 9,69,008 (7,64,188)
Liabilities and provisions 2,52,84,823 39,07,609
3,07,506 1,31,24,191
Income taxes paid (24,46,977) (30,09,657)
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (21,39,471) 1,01,14,534
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards capital expenditure (including intangible assets) (5,61,681) -
Interest and dividend income as per profit and loss account 565 567
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (5,61,116) 567
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (27,00,587) 1,01,15,101
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,80,11,981 78,96,880
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1,53,11,394 1,80,11,981
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report on even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys Consulting s.r.o.
Chartered Accountants (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.)

Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Peter Fischer

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

Robert Boreczek

Director
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management
Consultants s.r.0.), (‘the Company’), is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG),
Kloten (Switzerland). The Company renders professional management
consulting services, thereby enabling its clients to enhance business
performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’s reporting currency is Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during
the period. Examples of such estimates may include computation of
percentage of completion which requires the Company to estimate
the efforts expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to
be expended, provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under
employee benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support
and the useful lives of fixed assets.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value-added tax and other
sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.
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The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered.
An expected loss on a contract is recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.

1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the
outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure
is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-timeframe contracts. Costs associated with such support services
are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded and
included in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company estimates such
costs based on historical experience and the estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use. The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed
assets as follows:

Computer equipment 3-5 years

@ For computer equipment, based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects
to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives
as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
(Refer to Note 2.6)



1.11 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

1.12 Benefits to employees

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated
absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
is determined by actuarial valuation by using projected unit credit
method on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance
Sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

1.13 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date.
The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabilities measured at historical cost are translated
at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

1.14 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based
on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability
due to disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company
offsets, on a year-on-year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
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accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situation where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exists, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
Deferred tax assets, other than in situation of unabsorbed depreciation
and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if there is
reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values
at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. Tax benefits of
deductions earned on exercise of employee share options in excess of
compensation charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss are credited
to the securities premium reserve.

1.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of
the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

1.17 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.18 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets
acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever
is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the lease term.
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2 Notes to accounts for the year ended

2.3 Trade payables

December 31, 2015 "
Particulars As at December 31,
2.1 Share capital 2015 2014
in¥ Trade payables 24.64,617 =
Particulars As at December 31, @ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries S -
: 2015 2014 (Refer to Note 2.15) 24,64,369 _
Authorized
2,00,000 (2,00,000) 2.4 Other current liabilities
Equity shares @ CZK 1/- each 789,777 789,777 in%
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
2.00,000 (2,00,000) Particulars As at December 31,
Equity shares @ CZK 1/- each 7,89,777 7,89,777 2015 2014
[Of the above, 2,00,000 Accrued salaries and benefits
(2,00,000) equity shares are Salaries and benefits 39,19,421 32,33,802
held by the holding company, Bonus and incentives 28,24 877 17,74,003
Infosys Consulting Holding AG Other 1via.bihties
(formerly Lodestone holding AG)] 7,89,777 7,89,777 Prqvmon Afor EXPEISES 27,65,733 14,85,854
Withholding and other taxes
The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at payable 83,12,639 21,72,548
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are set out below : Other payables 1,52,25,688 23,38.839
Name of the As at December 31, @ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries e L0
shareholder 2015 2014 Refer to Note 2.15) 1,24,73,687 -
No. of % held No. of % held
: st e 2.5 Short-term provisions
Infosys Consulting in%
Holding AG .
(formerly Lodestone Particulars As at December 31,
Holding AG) 2,00,000 100 2,00,000 100 2015 2014

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount
of share capital as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is
set out below:

Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of Amount No. of Amount

shares shares

Shares at the beginning 2,00,000 7,89,777 2,00,000 7,89,777
Shares at the end 2,00,000 7,89,777 2,00,000 7,89,777

2.2 Reserves and surplus

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Foreign currency translation
reserve — opening balance (7,39,808) 5,95,153
Add: Foreign currency translation
during the year (7,83,713) (13,34,961)
Foreign currency translation
reserve — closing balance (15,23,521) (7,39,808)
Legal reserve 58,464 58,464
Add: Transferred from surplus - -
58,464 58,464
Surplus — opening balance 1,46,02,206 75,31,472
Add: Net profit / (loss) after tax
transferred from Statement of
Profit and Loss 2,15,09,762 70,70,734
Surplus — closing balance 3,61,11,968 1,46,02,206
3,46,46,911 1,39,20,862

U The Company is required to appropriate 5% of the annual profit to legal reserve until this

equals 20% of the paid-up share capital. To the extent it does exceed one half of the share
capital, the general reserve may be used only to cover losses or for measures designed to
sustain the Company through difficult times, to prevent unemployment or to mitigate its

consequences.
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Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences

Other provisions
Income taxes (net of advance tax and
tax deducted at source)

39,12,792  31,35,898

38,42,664 43,592
77,55,456  31,79,490

2.6 Fixed assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the
year ended December 31, 2015:
inX, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets
Computer Total
equipment

Original cost

As at January 1, 2015 6,081 6,081

Additions during the year 5,061,681 5,061,681

Deductions / adjustments /

retirements during the year 24,726 24,726

As at December 31, 2015 5,92 488 5,92,488

Depreciation and amortization

As at January 1, 2015 6,081 6,081

For the year 1,52,912 1,52,912

Deductions / adjustments during

the year 2,636 2,636

As at December 31, 2015 1,61,629 1,61,629

Net book value

As at December 31, 2015 4,30,859 4,30,859




Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the
year ended December 31, 2014
in X, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets
Computer Total
equipment

Original cost

As at January 1, 2014 6,825 6,825

Additions during the year - -
Deductions / adjustments /
retirements during the year (744) (744)
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Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
(Ref to Note 2.15) 3,80,76,104 95,33,502
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
in
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Balances with banks
In current accounts 1,53,11,394 1,80,11,981

Asat Dgcgmber 31, 201.4 - 6,081 6,081 The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
Depreciation and amortization follows-
As at January 1, 2014 6,825 6,825 ' )
in%
For the year - -
Deductions / adjustments during Particulars As at December 31,
the year (744) (744) 2015 2014
As at December 31, 2014 6,081 6,081 In current accounts
Net book value Raiffeisenbank a.s. (CZK) 1,53,11,394 1,80,11,981
As at December 31, 2014 - - 1,53,11,394  1,80,11,981
During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Management, based on 2.11 Short-term loans and advances
internal and external technical evaluation, reassessed the remaining inz
useful lives of computer equipment with effect from April 1, 2014. .
Accordingly, the useful lives of computer equipment required a change Particulars As at December 31,
from the previous estimates. 2015 2014
Unsecured, considered good
2.7 Leases Others
Obligations on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases Advancgs
) i o Prepaid expenses 81,379 1,00,835
The lease rentals charged during the year and the maximum obligations Withholding and other
on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases payable as per the T 2.58.194 2.68.832
rentals stated in the respective agreements are as follows: Ol _ 14.983
in¥ 339,573 3,84,650
Particulars Year ended December 31, Rental deposits 41,111 42,805
2015 2014 41,111 42,805
Lease rentals recognized during 3,80,684 427,455
the year 241222 2,04267 _
nz  2.12 Other income
Lease obligations payable As at December 31, - "2
2015 2014 Particulars Year ended December 31,
Within one year of the Balance i — 2015 2014
et die 60,306 73567 Interest received on deposits with

Due in a period between one year
and five years - -
Due after five years - -

The operating lease arrangement is auto renewable for a term similar
to the current term.

2.8 Long-term loans and advances

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Loans and advances to employees
Housing and other loans = 9,22,237
- 9,22.237
2.9 Trade receivables
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Debts outstanding for a period
not exceeding six months
Unsecured
Considered good 6,25,82,182 95,33,502
6,25,82,182 95,33,502

banks and others 565 567

Miscellaneous income, net 7 -
Gains / (losses) on foreign
currency, net (87,676) (3,86,858)
(87,104) (3,86,291)
2.13 Expenses
in
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and bonus including
overseas staff expenses 8,05,57,350 5,62,96,776
Staff welfare 4,62,541 3,82,366
8,10,19,891 5,66,79,142
Other expenses
Office maintenance 223611 5,08,001
Rent 2,41,222 2,94.267
Rates and taxes, excluding
taxes on income 1,66,417 58,268
Bank charges and commission 53,378 56,557
Miscellaneous 2,78,327 6,34,542
9,62,955 15,51,635
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2.14 Tax expense

in%

Particulars

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014

Current tax
Income taxes
Deferred taxes

62,46,049 16,88,035

62,46,049 16,88,035

2.15 Related party transactions

List of related parties:

Name of the holding company Country Holding as at December 31,
2015 2014
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) Switzerland 100% 100%
Name of ultimate holding company Country
Infosys Limited India
Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia do Brasil Ltda. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. (Infosys Public Services) U.S.
Infosys Americas Inc. (Infosys Americas) us.
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. (formerly Infosys BPO's. 1. 0) ¥ Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp z 0.0. Poland
Infosys BPO S. de R. L. de C. V D@ Mexico
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC ¥ U.s.
Portland Group Pty. Limited @ Australia
Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd © Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC (V16 U.S.
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) @ Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) 7 India
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. @ U.S.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty. Limited © Australia
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) © Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH @® Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S. A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) © Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) © Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. © China
Infy Consulting Company Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) © UK.
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. © Netherlands
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. © Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. @ Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda © Portugal
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly SC Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Romania
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC (Infosys Nova)® U.S.
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) "% U.S.
Panaya Ltd. " Israel
Panaya Gmbh *V Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd. ¢V Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd. "V Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)!? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus) *? U.S.
Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ uU.s.
Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada) Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO

@ Under liquidation

& Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
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& Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014
@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

IDWholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

990n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.

9 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015

The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:

in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014

Trade receivables

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 35,52,612 3,96,984

Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 59,340

Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 5,73,569 -

Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 86,18,395 34,79,825

Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 2,52,72,188 56,56,693

Total 3,80,76,104 95,33,502
Trade payables

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 24,29,587 -

Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 34,782 -

Total 24,64,369 -
Other payables

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 1,06,80,000 =

Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 17,93,687 -

Total 1,24,73,687 -

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are
as follows:

in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions
Transfer of fixed assets
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 5,601,681 -
Total 5,61,681 =
Revenue transactions
Purchase of services
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 3,44,982 1,95,376
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 24,56,886 -
Total 28,01,868 1,95,376
Sale of services
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 50,08,091 1,58,91,592
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 8,09,112 =
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 79,63,150 -
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 1,97,28,579 90,22 ,427
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 11,05,83,023  7,52,51,672
Total 14,40,91,955 10,01,65,691

2.16 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single
segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.

2.17 Quantitative details

The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy services
cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information as required under
paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for preparation of the Statement of Profit and Loss as per revised Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013.
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Independent Auditor’s report

To the Members of Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH. (‘the Company’), which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’ preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’ Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

For Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath
Partner

Membership Number: 202841
Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Balance Sheet

in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 53,93,200 53,93,200
Reserves and surplus 2.2 (2,57,57,842) (2,39,94,900)
(2,03,64,642) (1,86,01,700)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 2.3 1,06,34,406 1,89,97,642
Trade payables 2.4 38,40,084 3,05,117
Other current liabilities 2.5 1,37,39,148 1,97,89,721
Short-term provisions 2.6 13,71,172 29,00,081
2,95,84,810 4,19,92 561
92.20,168 2,33,90,861
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 2.7 - -
Long-term loans and advances 2.8 2,13.878 47,54,150
2,13,878 47,54,150
CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables 2.9 83,438 1,55,37,011
Cash and cash equivalents 2.10 66,63,400 17,26,476
Short-term loans and advances 2.11 22,59 452 13,73,224
90,06,290 1,86,36,711
92.20,168 2,33,90,861

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath Jurgen Bauer

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8 , 2016
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in%
Particulars Note Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014

Income from consultancy services 4.76,53,556 9,72,28,840
Other income 2.12 743 49
Total revenue 4,76,54,299 9,72,28,889
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.13 3,60,43,754 7,62,23,193
Travel expense 1,12,77 316 2,14,88,596
Communication expense 1,69,063 4,19,971
Consultancy and professional charges 24,71,784 21,36,117
Finance cost 1,76,817 3,98,761
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.7 - 20,739
Other expenses 2.13 2,32,460 2,90,398
Total expenses 5,03,71,194 10,09,77,775
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (27,16,895) (37,48,886)
Tax expense

Current tax 2.14 1,22.959 98,860

Deferred tax 2.14 - 60,05,164
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (28,39,854) (98,52,910)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

or Shenoy & Kamath or and on behalf of the Board of Directors o
y

Chartered Accountants Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath Jurgen Bauer

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement

in%
Particulars Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax (27,16,895) (37,48,886)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense - 20,739
Interest and dividend income - (3,787)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities 10,76,912 29,96,176
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables 1,54,53,573 (1,02,83,903)
Loans and advances and other assets 36,40,756 (46,05,827)
Liabilities and provisions (41,62,715) 1,53,95,284
1,32,91,631 (2,30,204)
Income taxes paid 8,529 53,600
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,33,00,160 (1,76,604)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividend received - 3,787
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES — 3,787
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan from parent company (83,63,236) (16,91,324)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (83,63,236) (16,91,324)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 49,36,924 (18,64,141)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 17,26,476 3590,617
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 66,63,400 17,26,476
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH
Firm’s registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Jurgen Bauer

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8 , 2016
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH (‘the Company’) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly
Lodestone Holding AG), Kloten (Switzerland). The Company renders
professional management consulting services, thereby enabling its
clients to enhance business performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’ reporting currency is the Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Examples of such estimates may include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee
benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and the
useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other
sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.
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The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered. An
expected loss on a contract is recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.

1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the
outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure
is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-timeframe contracts. Costs associated with such support services
are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded and
included in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company estimates such
costs based on historical experience and the estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use. The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed
assets as follows:

Computer equipment 3-5 years

@ For computer equipment, based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful life as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects to
use this asset. Hence, the useful life for this asset is different from the useful life as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
(Refer to Note 2.7)



1.11 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

1.12 Benefits to employees
Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences
which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined
by using projected unit credit method on the additional amount
expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in
which the absences occur.

1.13 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair
value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of transaction

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabilities measured at historical cost are translated
at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

1.14 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax, based on the tax
liability computed, after considering tax allowances and exemptions.
Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to
disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company offsets, on
a year-on-year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where it has
a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
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accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situation where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exists, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
Deferred tax assets, other than in situation of unabsorbed depreciation
and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if there is
reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values at
each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have
been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.

1.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

1.16 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.17 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets
acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever
is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the lease term.

2 Notes on accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2015

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified,
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital

in%, except as otherwise stated

Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Authorised capital
EUR 80,000 53,93,200 53,93,200
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
EUR 80,000 53,93,200 53,93,200
53,93,200 53,93,200

2.2 Reserves and surplus

inx
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Foreign currency translation
reserve — opening balance 854,411 (21,41,691)
Add: Foreign currency translation
during the year 10,76,912 29.96,102
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Particulars As at December 31,

2015 2014
Foreign currency translation
reserve — closing balance 19,31,323 8,54,411
Surplus — opening balance (2,48,49,311) (1,49,96,401)

Add: Net profit after tax
transferred from Statement of
Profit and Loss

Surplus — closing balance

(28,39,854) (98,52,910)
(2,76,89,165) (2,48,49,311)
(2,57,57,842)  (2,39,94,900)

2.3 Short term borrowings!"

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured loans 1,06,34,406 1,89,97,642
1,06,34,406 1,89,97,642
@ Includes dues to holding company
(Refer to Note 2.16) 1,06,34,406 1,89,97,642
2.4 Trade payables
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Trade payables 38,40,084 3,05,117
38,40,084 3,05,117
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note 2.16) 38,40,084 3,05,117
2.5 Other current liabilities
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Accrued salaries and benefits
Bonus and incentives - 19,13,250
Other liabilities
Provision for expenses 1,23,80,812 1,39,41,173
Withholding and other taxes
payable 13,58,336 39,35,298
1,37,39,148 1,97,89,721
2.6 Short-term provisions
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 11,16,335 27,63,444
Other provisions
Income taxes (net of advance
tax and TDS) 2,54,837 1,36,637
13,71,172 29,00,081

2.7 Fixed assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the
year ended December 31, 2015:
in%, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets Total
Computer
equipment
Original cost
As at January 1, 2015 3,50,603 3,50,603
Additions / adjustments during
the period - -
Deductions / retirement during
the period 20,508 20,508
As at December 31, 2015 3,71,111 3,71,111
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Particulars Tangible assets Total
Computer
equipment
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2015 3,50,603 3,50,603
For the period = =
Deductions / adjustments during
the period 20,508 20,508
As at December 31, 2015 3,71,111 3,71,111

Net book value
As at December 31, 2015 - —

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the

year ended December 31, 2014:

inx, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets Total
Computer
equipment
Original cost
As at January 1, 2014 3,89,559 3,89,559
Additions / adjustments during
the period - -
Deductions / retirement during
the period (38,956) (38,956)
As at December 31, 2014 3,50,603 3,50,603
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2014 3,68,746 3,68,746
For the period 20,739 20,739
Deductions / adjustments during
the period (38,882) (38,882)
As at December 31, 2014 3,50,603 3,50,603

Net book value
As at December 31, 2014 = _

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Management, based on
internal and external technical evaluation, reassessed the remaining
useful lives of computers with effect from April 1, 2014. Accordingly,
the useful lives of computers required a change from the previous
estimates.

2.8 Long-term loans and advances

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Other loans and advances
Advances to employees —
Non current - 45,26,984
Advance income taxes
(net of provisions) 2,13,.878 227,166
2,13,878 47,54,150
2.9 Trade receivables™
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Debts outstanding for a period
not exceeding six months
Unsecured
Considered good 83,438 1,55,37,011
83,438 1,55,37,011
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note 2.16) — 1,55,00,248




2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
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2.13 Expenses

in% in%
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Balances with banks Employee benefit expenses
In current accounts 66,63,400 17,26,476 Salaries and bonus including
66,63,400 17,26,476 overseas staff expenses 3,60,42,494 7,61,95,604
The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as Staff welfare 1,260 27,589
follows 3,60,43,754  7,62,23,193
ing Other expenses
. Provision for bad and doubtful
Particulars As at December 31, O P — 1334 _
2015 2014 Bank charges and commission 1,92,100 1,59,039

In current accounts Miscellaneous 39,026 1,31,359
Bank Austria 18,77,883 17,26,476 2,32,460 2,90,398
Citibank Austria
(Euro Account) 47,85517 - 214 Tax expense

Total cash and cash equivalents as in%

per Balance Sheet 66,63,400 17,26,476 .

Particulars Year ended December 31,

2.11 Short-term loans and advances 2015 i

in% Current tax
. Income taxes 1,22 959 98,860
Particulars As at December 31, . _ 60,05,164
2015 2014 1,22,959 61,04,024

Unsecured, considered good
Withholding and other taxes 2.15 Quantitative details
receivable 15,69,132 13,73,224 L ) .

Loans and advances to employees The Company is 'pnmarlly engaged in the professional management
Others 5.95,067 _ consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy
Salary advances 95253 _ services cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not

22,59 452 13.73.024 possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information
as required under paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for

2.12 Other income preparation of the Statement of Profit and Loss as per revised Schedule

inz 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Year ended December 31,

2015 2014

Interest received on deposits with

banks and others - 3,787

Gains / (losses) on foreign

currency, net 743 (3,738)

743 49

2.16 Related party transactions

List of related parties:

Name of holding company Country  Holding as at December 31,
2015 2014

Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) Switzerland 100% 100%
Name of ultimate holding company Country
Infosys Limited" India
@ Holding of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) from October 22, 2012

Name of fellow subsidiaries Country

Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India

Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China

Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico

Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB (Infosys Sweden) Sweden

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China

Infosys Tecnologia do Brasil Ltda. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil

Infosys Public Services, Inc. (Infosys Public Services) U.S.

Infosys Americas Inc. (Infosys Americas) U.S.

Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. (formerly Infosys BPO s.r.0) ) Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp. z 0.0. Poland

Infosys BPO S. de R. L. de C. V V@ Mexico

Infosys McCamish Systems LLC ¥ uU.s.

Portland Group Pty. Limited @ Australia
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Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd © Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC (V16 U.S.
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) @ Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) 7 India
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. © uU.s.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty. Limited © Australia
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) @ Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH @® Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S. A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) © Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) © Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) © Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. ©’ Portugal
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. @ China

Infy Consulting Company Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) © UK.
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. © Netherlands
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. © Poland
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly SC Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Romania
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC (Infosys Nova)® U.S.

Panaya Inc. (Panaya) 1© U.S.
Panaya Ltd. 'V Israel
Panaya Gmbh 1 Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd."V Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd. *? Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems) *? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus) ** uU.s.

Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ U.S.

Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada) ©* Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO

@ Under liquidation

9 Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
& Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014

@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

IDWholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

990n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.

9 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

9 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015

The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31,

2014 are as follows:

inx
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Trade receivables
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) — 1,55,00,248
- 1,55,00,248
Trade payables
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 33,81,957 -
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 4,44,349 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 13,778 19,439
38,40,084 19,439

Unsecured loans
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

1,06,34,406 1,89,97,642
1,06,34,406 1,89,97,642
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The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are
as follows:

in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions
Financing transactions
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) (83,63,236) =
(83,63,236) -
Revenue transactions
Purchase of services including shared personnel and facilities
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 4,49,055 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 65,344 1,22,626
5,14,399 1,22,626
Interest expense
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 1,75,740 3,98,761
1,75,740 3,98,761

Sale of shared services including facilities and personnel
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 4,76,53,556 8,84,60,832
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) - 53,86,282
4,76,53,556 9,38,53,114

2.17 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single
segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Infy consulting Company
Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Limited) For the year

ended 31 December 2015

We have audited the financial statements of Infy Consulting Company
Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Limited) for the
year ended 31 December 2015, set out on pages 8 to 21. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditors report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of director and auditors

As explained more fully in the director’s responsibilities statement,
the director is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the company’ circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the director; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non
financial information in the strategic report and the director’ report to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31
December 2015 and of its profit for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the

Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the strategic report and the
directors report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
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We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where
the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or

certain disclosures of director’s remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

Christopher Shepherd (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Blick Rothenberg LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

16 Great Queen Street

Covent Garden

London

WC2B 5AH

14 March 2016
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Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2015

Note 2015 2014

£ £

Turnover 2 63,028,957 56,878,698
Cost of sales (57,911,814) (52,823,779)
Gross profit 5,117,143 4,054,919
Administrative expenses (2,905,422) (2,933,847)
Other operating income 3 38,436 18,500
Operating profit 2,250,157 1,139,572
Interest receivable and similar income 6 38,745 51,666
Interest payable and similar charges 7 (29,778) (97,037)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,259,124 1,094,201
Taxation on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities 8 (569,147) (570,420)
Profit for the financial year 1,689,977 523,781

There were no recognised gains and losses for 2015 other than those included in the profit and loss account.
The notes form intergral part of these financial statements.

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2015

Note 2015 2014
£ i
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 151,116 155,628
151,116 155,628
Current assets
Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year 10 18,063,087 11,931,191
Cash at bank and in hand 11 822,670 1,362,396
18,885,757 13,293,587
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 12 (14,979,600) (11,081,919)
Net current assets 3,906,157 2.211,668
Total assets less current liabilities 4,057,273 2,367,296
Net assets 4,057,273 2,367,296
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 50,000 50,000
Profit and loss account 13 4,007,273 2,317,296

4,057,273 2,367,296

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the sole director.

J Milward
Director

Date: 4 March 2016

The notes form intergral part of these financial statements.

Statement of changes in equity as at 31 December 2015

Share capital Profit and loss Total equity

account
£ £ £
At 1 January 2015 50,000 2,317,296 2,367,296
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year = 1,689,977 1,689,977
At 31 December 2015 50,000 4,007,273 4,057,273
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Statement of changes in equity as at 31 December 2014

Share capital Profit and loss Total equity
account
£ £ i
At 1 January 2014 50,000 17,93,515 18,43,515
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year — 5,23,781 5,23,781
At 31 December 2014 50,000 23,17,296 23,67,296

The notes form intergral part of these financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015

Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

Infy Consulting Company Limited provides management consultancy
services.

The company is incorporated and domiciled in England. The address
of its principal place of business is 14th Floor, 10 Upper Bank Street,
Canary Wharf, London, E14 5NP.

The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102
(“FRS 102”), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United
Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland and the Companies Act 2006.

Information on the impact first time adoption of FRS 102 is given in
note 17.

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure
exemptions in preparing these financial statements, as permitted by
the FRS 102:

» Exemption from the requirement to present a statement of cash
flows (Section 7 statement of cash flows) and Section 3 financial
statement presentation para 3.17(d);

» Exemption from disclosures relating to financial instruments (FRS
102 August 2014 edition Section 11 para 11.39 to 11.48A and
Section 12 para 12.26 to 12.29A);

» Exemption from the requirement of Section 33 related party
disclosures to disclose aggregate key management personnel
compensation.

This information is included in the consolidated financial statements
of Infosys Limited as at 31 March 2016 and these financial statements
may be obtained from www.infosys.com.

The following principal accounting policies have been applied:

1.2 Going concern

After making enquiries, the director has a reasonable expectation
that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence and meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable
future, being a period of at least twelve months from the date these
financial statements were approved. Accordingly, he continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

1.3 Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other
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sales taxes but including expenses and disbursements.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.

The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in the profit
and loss account.

1.4 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their
residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method.

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Leasehold improvements 33% straight line
Fixtures & fittings 33% straight line
Computer equipment 33% straight line

At each reporting date the company assesses whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is determined which is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognised
where the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

1.5 Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

The company’s functional and presentational currency is pound
sterling.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the spot exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated
using the closing rate. Non monetary items measured at historical cost
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
and non monetary items measured at fair value are measured using
the exchange rate when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit and loss account.



Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash
and cash equivalents are presented in the profit and loss account
within ‘interest receivable or payable’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the profit and loss account within
‘operating profit’.

1.6 Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the profit and loss account over the term
of the debt using the effective interest method so that the amount
charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs are
initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated
capital instrument.

1.7 Pensions

Defined contribution pension plan

The company operates a defined contribution plan for its employees. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the company
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the contributions
have been paid the company has no further payments obligations.
The contributions are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss
account when they fall due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals as
a liability in the balance sheet. The assets of the plan are held separately
from the company in independently administered funds.

1.8 Holiday pay accrual

A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay
entitlement which is accrued at the balance sheet date and carried
forward to future periods. This is measured at the undiscounted salary
cost of the future holiday entitlement so accrued at the balance sheet
date.

1.9 Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account using the
effective interest method.

1.10 Taxation

Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except that a change
attributable to an item of income and expense recognised as other
comprehensive income or to an item recognised directly in equity is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

2 Analysis of turnover
The whole of the turnover is attributable to the provision of services.

Analysis of turnover by country of destination:
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4 Operating profit

The operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

2015 2014
& &
United Kingdom 31,95,722 52,93,929
Rest of Europe 37,42,372 54,65,657
Rest of the world 5,60,90,863 4,61,19,112
6,30,28,957  5,68,78,698

3. Other operating income
2015 2014
£ 3
Other operating income 38,436 18,500
38,436 18,500

2015 2014
i, i,
Depreciation of tangible fixed
assets 97,823 75,986
Fees payable to the company’s
auditor and its associates for the
audit of the company’s annual
accounts 15,000 12,383
Fees payable to the company's
auditors and its associates for other
services to the company: - -
- Taxation compliance services 54,854 18,910
Exchange differences 406,174 121,244

During the year, no director received any emoluments (2014 -£NIL).

5. Employees

Staff costs were as follows:
2015 2014
£, £
Wages and salaries 2,67,12,734 3,16,43,238
Social security costs 36,00,471 43,65,708
Pension contributions 11,01,699 13,47,538
31414904 37356484

The average monthly number of employees, including the director,
during the year was as follows:

2015 2014
No. No.
Consultants 265 305
Management 7 13
272 318

6. Interest receivable
2015 2014
£, £

Interest receivable from group

companies 37,301 51,574
Other interest receivable 1,444 92
38,745 51,666

7. Interest payable and similar charges

2015 2014
i i
Bank interest payable 189 51
Interest payable to group
undertakings 29,589 96,986
29,778 97,037
8. Taxation
2015 2014
i %
Corporation tax
Current tax on profits for the
year 5,95,865 5,70,420
Adjustments in respect of
previous periods (26,718) -
5,69,147 5,70,420
Total current tax 5,609,147 5,70,420

Factors affecting tax charge for the year
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The tax assessed for the year is higher than (2014 -higher
than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20.25%
(2014 -21.5%). The differences are explained below:

2015 2014
i £

Profit on ordinary activities
before tax 22,59,124 10,94,201
Profit on ordinary activities
multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of
20.25% (2014 -21.5%) 4,57 473 2,35,253
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 27,625 16,110
Depreciation in excess of capital
allowances 8,828 8,818
Adjustments to tax charge in
respect of prior periods (26,718) -
Other differences leading to an
increase in the tax charge 1,01,939 3,10,239
Total tax charge for the year 5,609,147 5,70,420

Factors that may affect future tax charges

Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were substantively enacted
as part of Finance (No.2) Act 2015 on 18 November 2015. These
include reductions to the main rate to reduce the rate to 19% from 1
April 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020.

9. Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures & Computer Total
fittings  equipment
£, £ £
Cost
At 1 January 2015 1,22,869 2,71,808 3,94,677
Additions — 93311 93311
Disposals - (7,066) (7,066)
At 31 December 2015 1,22,869 3,58,053 4,80,922
Depreciation
At 1 January 2015 84,760 1,54,289 2,39,049
Charge for the period 24,937 72,886 07,823
Disposals = (7,060) (7,066)
At 31 December 2015 1,09,697 2,20,109 3,29,806
At 31 December 2015 13,172 1,37,944 151,116
At 31 December 2014 38,109 1,17,519 1,55,628
10.  Debtors
2015 2014
i £,
Due within one year
Trade debtors 33,94,654 15,02,124
Amounts owed by group
undertakings 1,40,23,927 94 85,744
Other debtors 79,528 417,827
Prepayments and accrued income 296,451 5,14,278
Tax recoverable 2,68,527 11,218
1,80,63,087 1,19,31,191

106 | Infy Consulting Company Limited

11 Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£ £

Cash at bank and in hand 8,22,670 13,62,396
8,22,670 13,62,396

12 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014

£ £,

Trade creditors 3,606,637 1,26,955
Amounts owed to group

undertakings 64,24,684 59,74,704

Corporation tax 6,81,033 3,38,933

Taxation and social security 18,39,626 13,61,633

Other creditors 54,898 5,476

Accruals and deferred income 56,12,722 32,74,218

1,49,79,600 1,10,81,919

13. Reserves
Profit & loss account

The profit and loss account includes all current and prior period
retained profits and losses.

14. Share capital

2015 2014
£ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid
50,000- Ordinary shares of £1
each 50,000 50,000

15. Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS
102 Section 33 “Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing transactions
with entities which are a wholly owned part of the group.

16. Parent undertaking and controlling
party

The immediate parent undertaking is Infosys Consulting Holding AG,

a company incorporated in Switzerland. Group financial statements
are prepared but are not available to the public.

The ultimate parent undertaking is Infosys Limited, a company
incorporated in India. Group financial statements are available from
www.infosys.com.

The immediate controlling party is Infosys Consulting Holding AG, a
company incorporated in Switzerland.

In the opinion of the director there is no ultimate controlling party.

17. First time adoption of FRS 102

This is the first year that the company has presented its results and
financial position in accordance with FRS 102. The last financial
statements under UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 December
2014.The date of transition to FRS 102 was 1 January 2014.

The policies applied under the entity’s previous accounting framework

are not materially different to FRS 102 and have not impacted on
equity or profit or loss.
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Detailed profit and loss account For the year ended 31 december 2015

2015 2014

£ £

Turnover 6,30,28,957  5,68,78,698
Cost of sales (5,79,11,814) (5,28,23,779)
Gross profit 51,17,143 40,54,919
Other operating income 38,436 18,500

51,55,579 40,73,419
Less: overheads

Administration expenses (29,05,422) (29,33,847)
Operating profit 22,50,157 11,39,572
Interest receivable 38,745 51,666
Interest payable (29,778) (97,037)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (5,69,147) (5,70,420)
Profit for the year 16,89,977 5,23,781
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Schedule to the detailed accounts. For the year ended 31 december 2015

2015 2014
£, £,
Cost of sales
Direct wages 2,67,12,734 3,16,43,238
NIC on direct labour 36,00,471 43,65,708
Staff pension contributions 11,01,699 13,47,538
Subcontractors and temporary staff 1,37,58,004 64,28,076
Consultancy costs 8297311 47,10,153
Travel and subsistence 44.26,983 43,25,156
Provision for post sales customer support 14,612 3,910
5,79,11,814 5,28,23,779
2015 2014
£, £,
Other operating income
Other operating income 38,436 18,500
38,436 18,500
2015 2014
£ £,
Administration expenses
Staff training 47,579 13,126
Staff welfare 2,53,478 3,71,519
Entertainment 2,78,652 1,43,540
Printing and stationery 31,088 6,038
Telephone 3,61,391 442,549
Computer costs 10,721 6,774
Advertising 6,273 14,648
Subscriptions 1,237 958
Legal and professional 7,14,787 1,46,610
Auditor’s remuneration 5,009 12,383
Bank charges 3,762 10,797
Bad debt provision (2,38,112) 2,73,110
Difference on foreign exchange 4,006,174 121,244
Sundry expenses 88,951 1,31,026
Rent, service charges and utilities 242,821 2,75,507
Insurance 30,346 16,678
Repairs and maintenance 58,194 1,30,908
Depreciation 97,823 75,986
Management fees 5,05,248 7,40,446
29,05,422 29,33,847
2015 2014
£, £,
Interest receivable
Bank interest receivable - 3
Other interest receivable 1,444 89
Group interest receivable 37,301 51,574
38,745 51,666
2015 2014
£ £,
Interest payable
Bank interest payable 189 51
Group interest payable 29,589 96,986
29,778 97,037
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Independent Auditor’s report

To the Members of Lodestone Management Consultants B.V.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. (‘the Company’), which comprises
the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
For Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath
Partner

Membership number: 202841
Place: Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Balance Sheet

in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 53,27,009 53,27,009
Reserves and surplus 2.2 6,59,14,489 (2,74,86,435)
7,12,41,498 (2,21,59,426)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 23 4.15,97,357 7,40,85,231
Trade payables 2.4 8,00,02,243 4,12,25,759
Other current liabilities 2.5 20,88,24,546 7,74,56,168
Short-term provisions 2.6 4,59,71,738 87,65,572
37,63,95,884 20,15,32,730
447637382 17,93,73,304
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 2.7 25,90,439 14,15,835
25,90,439 14,15,835
Long-term loans and advances 2.8 - 6,068,095
25,90,439 20,83,930
CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables 2.9 19,54,67,337 10,31,88,623
Cash and cash equivalents 2.10 4.45,24,390 3,97,73,964
Short-term loans and advances 2.11 20,50,55,216 3,43,26,787
445046943 17,72,89,374
44.76,37,382 17,93,73,304

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Lodestone Management
Chartered Accountants Consultants B.V.
Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Wouter van der Meer Peter Odman
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in %, except per share data

Particulars Note Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014

Income from consultancy services 86,73,49,144 51,29.41,480
Other income 2.12 (29,65,176) (3,55,928)
Total revenue 86,43,83,968 51,25,85,552
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.13 41,04,59,781 27,94.87,124
Cost of technical sub-contractors 2.13 24.48,53,994 15,63,05,717
Travel expenses 5,76,82,363 4.46,49,872
Communication expense 63,20,720 35,63,788
Consultancy and professional charges 1,64,97,415 2,71,33,162
Interest expenses 2287427 15,83,454
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.7 13,07,372 5,86,762
Other expenses 2.13 97,78,956 48,38,135
Total expenses 74,91,88,028 51,81,48,014
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 11,51,95,940 (55,62,462)
Tax expense

Current tax 2.14 2,53,20,446 4,00,602

Deferred tax 2.14 = 68,72,682
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 8,98,75,494 (1,28,35,746)

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER EQUITY SHARE
Equity shares of par value USD 0.50/- each

Basic and diluted 4,993 (713)
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic and diluted 18,000 18,000
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Lodestone Management

Chartered Accountants Consultants B.V.
Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Wouter van der Meer Peter Odman
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement
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in%
Particulars Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 11,51,95,940 (55,62,462)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense 13,07,372 5,86,762
Provision for doubtful debts 69,53,981 13,64,648
Provision for post-sales client support and warranties (296) 802
Interest and dividend income - (82,560)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of subsidiaries 35,42,968 59,94,943

Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables

(9,92,32,695) (2,66,44,888)

Loans and advances and other assets (17,00,60,334) 71,49,948
Liabilities and provisions 18,14,31,067 3,45,13,009
3,91,38,003 1,73,20,202
Income taxes refund / (paid) 5,99.811 (35,49,308)
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,97,37,814 1,37,70,894
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards capital expenditure (including intangible assets) (24,99,514) (8,73,335)
Interest and dividend received - 82,560
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (24,99,514) (7,90,775)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan received / (repaid) (3,24,87,874) 1,47.26,147
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,24,87,874) 1,47,26,147
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 47,50,426 2,77,06,266
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3,97,73,964 1,20,67,698
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 4,45,24,390 3,97,73,964
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of Board of Directors of Lodestone Management

Chartered Accountants Consultants B.V.

Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Wouter van der Meer

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

Peter Odman
Director
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Lodestone Management Consultant B.V. (‘the Company’) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly
Lodestone Holding AG), Kloten (Switzerland). The Company renders
professional management consulting services, thereby enabling its
clients to enhance business performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP
comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of
the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act
(to the extent notified). Accounting policies have been consistently
applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’ reporting currency is the Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Examples of such estimates may include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee
benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and the
useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other
sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.
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The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered.
An expected loss on a contract is recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.

1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the
outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure
is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-time frame contracts. Costs associated with such support services
are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded and
included in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company estimates such
costs based on historical experience and the estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use. The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed
assets as follows:

Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 - 5 Years
Furniture and fixtures 5 Years

@ For these class of assets, based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects
to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives
as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
(Refer to Note 2.7)



1.11 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

1.12 Benefits to employees

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences
which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by
actuarial valuation under project unit cost method on the additional
amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on
non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period
in which the absences occur.

1.13 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains
or losses resulting from such translations are included in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabilities and measured at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

1.14 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based
on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability
due to disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company
offsets, on a year-on-year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
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aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situations where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exist, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets, other than in situations of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if
there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. Tax
benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee share options
in excess of compensation charged to Statement of Profit and Loss are
credited to the securities premium reserve.

1.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of
the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

1.17 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.18 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets
acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever
is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the lease term.

Infosys Consulting AG | 115



Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

2 Notes to accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2015

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified,
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital

in X, except as otherwise stated

Particulars As at December 31,

2015 2,014

Authorized
18,000 (18,000) Common Stock,
EURO 5/- par value

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
18,000 (18,000) Common Stock,
EURO 5/- par value

[Of the above, 18,000 (18,000)

Common Stock are held by

the holding company, Infosys

Consulting Holding AG (formerly,

Lodestone Holding AG)

53,27,009 53,27,009

53,27,009 53,27,009

53,27,009 53,27,009

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are set out below :

in
Name of the As at December 31,
shareholder 2015 2014
No. of % held No. of % held
shares shares
Infosys Consulting
Holding AG (Infosys
Lodestone) (formerly
Lodestone Holding
AG) 18,000 100 18,000 100

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount
of share capital as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is
set out below :

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
No. of  Amount No. of  Amount
shares shares
Shares at the
beginning of the
period 18,000 53,27,009 18,000 53,27,009
Shares at the end
of the period 18,000 53,27,009 18,000 53,27,009

2.2 Reserves and surplus

in¥

Particulars As at December 31,

2015 2,014
Foreign currency translation
reserve — opening balance (21,33,084) (79,83,729)
Add: Foreign currency translation
during the year 35,25,430 58,50,645
Foreign currency translation
reserve — closing balance 13,92,346 (21,33,084)

Surplus — opening balance
Add: Net profit after tax
transferred from Statement of

(2,53,53,351) (1,25,17,605)

Profit and Loss 8,98,75,494 (1,28,35,746)
Surplus — closing balance 6,45,22,143 (2,53,53,351)
6,59,14,489 (2,74,86,435)
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2.3 Short-term borrowings

in¥
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2,014
Unsecured loan 4,15,97,357 7,40,85,231
4,15,97,357 7,40,85,231
@ Loan from holding company
(Refer note 2.16) 4,15,97,357 7,40,85,231
2.4 Trade payables
in¥
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2,014
Trade payables ) 8,00,02,243 4.12,25,759
8,00,02,243 4.12,25,759
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note No 2.16) 5,83,21,337 3,49.49 422
2.5 Other current liabilities
in¥
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Accrued salaries and benefits
Bonus and incentives 2,24 51817 1,29,42,786
Salaries and benefits - 32,05,291
Unearned revenue 80,87,947 -
Other liabilities
Provision for expenses 3,17,60,792 2,56,06,112
Withholding and other taxes
payable 13,23.87,074 3,57,01,979
Other payables @ 1,41,36,916 =
20,88,24,546 7,74,56,168
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note No 2.16) 1,12,04,025 -
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note No 2.16) 1,40,88,692 -
2.6 Short-term provisions
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated benefits 2,00,51,481 87,65,572
Other provisions
Income taxes (net of advance
tax and TDS) 2,59,20,257 -
4,59,71,738 87,65,572




2.7 Fixed assets
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The changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:

in X, except otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets

Office Computer Furniture and Total

equipment equipment fixtures

Original cost
As at January 1, 2015 1,12,415 20,91,145 5,87,208 27,90,768
Additions / adjustments during the period = 24,99,514 = 24,99,514
Deductions / retirements during the period (59,133) (38,916) (34,348) (1,32,397)
As at December 31, 2015 53,282 45,51,743 5,52,860 51,57,885
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2015 1,12,415 10,30,135 2,32,383 13,74,933
For the period - 11,01,551 2,05,821 13,07,372
Deductions / adjustments during the period (59,133) (45,989) (9,737) (1,14,859)
As at December 31, 2015 53,282 20,85,697 428,467 25,67,446
Net book value
As at December 31, 2015 - 24,66,046 1,24,393 25.90,439

The changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2014 are as follows:

in X, except otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets

Office Computer Furniture and Total

equipment equipment fixtures

Original cost
As at January 1, 2014 1,24,906 14,04,981 6,52,453 21,82,340
Additions / adjustments during the period - 8,73,335 - 8,73,335
Deductions / retirements during the period (12,491) (1,87,171) (65,245) (2,64,907)
As at December 31, 2014 1,12 415 20,91,145 5,87,208 27.90,768
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2014 07,148 6,35,379 1,76,252 9,08,779
For the period 26,911 4,81,941 77,910 5,86,762
Deductions / adjustments during the period (11,644) (87,185) (21,779) (1,20,608)
As at December 31, 2014 1,12.415 10,30,135 2,32,383 13,74,933
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014 - 10,61,010 3,54,825 14,15,835

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Management, based on internal and external technical evaluation, reassessed the remaining
useful life of assets primarily consisting of computers with effect from April 1, 2014. Accordingly, the useful lives of certain assets required a

change from the previous estimates.

2.8 Long-term loans and advances

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

in¥ in¥
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2005
Other loans and advances Cash on hand - -
Advances to employees = 6,68,095 Balances with banks
— 6.68,005 In current accounts 4,45,24,390 3,97,73,964
4,45,24,390 3,97,73,964
2.9 Trade receivables . The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
inx follows:
Particulars As at December 31, in
2015 2014 Particulars As at December 31,
Debts outstanding for a period 2015 2014
not exceeding six months In current accounts
Unsecured ING (Euro) 4.32,67,614 3,97,73,964
Considered good 20,16,86,197 10,31,88,623 Deutsche Bank 12,56,776 =
Debts outstanding for a period Total cash and cash equivalents
exceeding six months as per Balance Sheet 4.45,24,390 3,97,73,964
Considered doubtful 18,32,315 13,34,504
20,35,18,512 10,45,23,127
Less: Provision for doubtful
debts 80,51,175 13,34,504
19,54,67,337 10,31,88,623
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note No. 2.16) 10,23,67,175 8,25,84 435
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2.11 Short-term loans and advances

2.14 Tax expense

in% in%
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Unsecured, considered good Current tax
Others Income taxes 2,53,20,446 4,00,602
Prepaid expenses 58,690 _ Deferred taxes - 68,72,682
Withholding and other taxes 2,53,20,446 72,73,284
receivable 11,97,80,151  1,86,70,071 o .
Salary advance 14,17,936 3,73,805 2.15 Quantitative details
Others 3,79,03,116 = The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management
1591,59,893  1,90,43,876 consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy
Restricted deposits - services cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not
Unbilled revenues 4,58,95,323  1,49,26,653 possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information
Security deposits - 3,56,258 as required under paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for
. 20,50,55,216  3,43,26,787 preparation of the Statement of Profit and Loss as per revised Schedule
(Refer to Note No. 2.16) 3.79.03.116 : 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.
) 2.16 Related party transactions
2.12 Other income _ _
inz List of related parties:
Particulars T - Name of holding company Country Holding as at
December 31,
2015 2014
Interest received on deposits 2 20k
p -
with banks and others — 82,560 I“fOSYS Consulting
Miscellaneous income, net - 5,765 Holding AG (Infosys
Gains / (losses) on foreign Lodestone) (fo‘rmerly ; 0 0
currency, net (29.,65,176) (4.44.253) Lodestone Holding AG) Switzerland 100% 100%
(29,65,176) (3,55,928) Name of ultimate holding company Country
Infosys Limited India
2.13 Expen Ses ) @ Holding of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding
in¥ AG) from October 22, 2012
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and bonus 40,96,29,678 27,82,71,897
Staff welfare 8,30,103 12,15,227
41,04,59,781  27,94,87,124
Cost of technical sub-contractors
- related parties 17,09,48,077 10,12,53,863
- others 7,39,05,917  5,50,51,854
24,48,53,994 15,63,05,717
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Other expenses
Office maintenance 7,379 87,432
Rent 58,268 6,05,903
Computer maintenance 19913 60,139
Insurance charges - 35,031
Provision for post-sales client
support and warranties (296) 802
Provision for bad and doubtful
debts and advances 69,53,981 13,64,648
Bank charges and commission 65,681 72,318
Miscellaneous 26,74,030 26,111,862
97,78,956 48,38,135
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Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia do Brasil Ltda. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. (Infosys Public Services) U.S.
Infosys Americas Inc. (Infosys Americas) U.S.
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o (formerly Infosys BPO s.r.0) ¥ Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp. z 0.0. ¥ Poland
Infosys BPO S. de R. L. de C. V V@ Mexico
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC ¢ Us.
Portland Group Pty. Limited Australia
Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd® Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC V19 uU.s.
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) @ Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) India
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. © Us.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty. Limited @ Australia
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) © Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH @ Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) © Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) © Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Infosys Consulting s.r.o. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. © China
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) UK
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly SC Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) Romania
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. @ Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. © Portugal
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC (Infosys Nova)® uUs.
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) "% U.S.
Panaya Ltd."? Israel
Panaya Gmbh'" Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd."? Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd."? Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)"? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus)"® U.S.
Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ U.S.
Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada) Canada
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO
@ Under liquidation
9 Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
& Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014
© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014
© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014
@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015
190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.
1D Wholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.
120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems
190n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.
19 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah
15 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah
19 ncorporated effective November 20, 2015
The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Unsecured loans
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 4,15,97,357  7,40,85,231
Total 4,15,97,357  7,40,85,231
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Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Trade receivables
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) - 2,90,29,341
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 5495219 2,34,81377
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 6,065,624 -
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 9,43,93,855  3,00,73,717
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 18,12,477 =
Total 10,23,67,175  8,25,84,435
Other receivables
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) 1,77,19,386 -
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 2,01,83,730 =
Total 3,79,03,116 -
Trade payables
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 25,83,728 1,92,29.037
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 13,15,507 3,90,137
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 8,00,252 26,88,543
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 73,36,125 55,67,889
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 2,81,13,789 70,73,816
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 29,55,209 -
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) 1,52,16,727 -
Total 5,83,21,337  3,49,49,422
Other payables
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 35,65,118 -
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 39,060,194 -
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) 66,17,380 -
Total 1,40,88,692 -
Provision for expense
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp Z.0.0 1,12,04,025 -
Total 1,12,04,025 -

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are

as follows:
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions
Loan Taken / (repaid)

Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) (3,24,87,874)  1,47,26,147
Total (3,24,87,874)  1,47,26,147
Purchase of shared services including facilities and personnel

Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. 8,14,58,727 6,70,47,235

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) - 69,76,521

Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 1,72,17,919 2,40,38,016

Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 1,82,12,177 2,10,496

Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 38,46,318 21,73,139

Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formetly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 2,77,44,029 -

Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp Z.0.0 1,11,41,746 -

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 74,13,814 -

Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 1,23,67,710 71,01,363
Total 17,94,02,440 10,75,46,770
Interest expense

Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 6,78,963 15,80,473
Total 6,78,963 15,80,473
Sale of services

Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. - 97,70,358

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 1,65,12,781 86,14,902

Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 2,48,48,053 3,15,62,766

Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 32,99,23,225 14,39,92,108

Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) 19,03,42,051 4,78,84,709

Lodestone Management Consultants Inc 1,06,27,060 46,381,624
Total 57,22,53,170  24,65,06,467

2.17 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single

segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.
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Independent auditor’s opinion
To the Shareholder of Infosys Consulting Sp. z o.0.

We have audited the attached financial statements of Infosys Consulting Sp. z 0.0. (until 14 January 2016 Lodestone Management Consultants
Sp. z 0.0.) with its registered office in Wroclaw, including:

—  introduction to the financial statements,

—  balance sheet prepared as of 31 December 2015, with total assets and liabilities plus equity of PLN 12,209,876.37.

—  profit and loss account for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, disclosing a net profit of PLN 2,73,201.69.

—  statement of changes in equity for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, disclosing an increase in equity of PLN
2,173,201.69.

—  cash flow statement for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, showing a net cash increase of PLN 1,769,307.21.

—  additional information and explanations.

Preparation of these financial statements, compliant with regulations in force as well as the report on activities is the responsibility of the

Management Board of the Company.

The Management Board is obliged to ensure that the financial statements and the report on activities meet the requirements of the Accounting

Act of 29 September 1994 (Dz. U. of 2013 No. 330), further referred to as “the Accounting Act”

Our responsibility was to audit and express an opinion on compliance of the financial statements with the accounting principles (policy) adopted
by the Company and whether the financial statements present fairly and clearly, in all material respects, the financial and economic position as
well as the financial result of the Company and on the correctness of the underlying accounting records.

Our audit of the financial statements has been planned and performed in accordance with:

—  section 7 of the Accounting Act,

—  national auditing standards, issued by the National Council of Statutory Auditors in Poland.

We have planned and performed our audit of the financial statements in such a way as to obtain reasonable assurance to express an opinion

on the financial statements. Our audit included, in particular, verification of the correctness of the accounting principles (policy) and material

estimates applied by the Company, verification — largely on a test basis — of the accounting evidence and records supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements, as well as overall evaluation of the financial statements.

We believe that our audit provides a sufficient basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the audited financial statements of Infosys Consulting Sp. z 0.0. for the 2015 financial year, were prepared in all material aspects :

—  present fairly and clearly the information material to evaluate the economic and financial position of the Company as of 31 December 2015
as well as its financial result in the financial year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015,

—  have been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting principles (policy) arising from the Accounting Act and its executor
provisions, and based on properly kept accounting records,

—  comply with the provisions of law and the articles of association of the Company which affect the contents of the financial statements

The Report on activities of the Company for the 2015 financial year is complete in the meaning of Article 49 clause 2 of the Accounting Act and
consistent with the underlying information disclosed in the audited financial statements.

Piotr kyskawa

Key certified auditor
No. 90051

Bielany Wroctawskie, 29 January 2016

The above audit opinion together with audit report is a translation from the original Polish version. In case of any discrepancies between the Polish and
English version, the Polish version shall prevail.
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For the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

1. Principal activities of the Company

Infosys Consulting Sp. z 0.0. with a registered seat in Wroctaw at
ul. Strzegomska 142A, is registered in State Court Register for the
City of Wroctaw-Fabryczna under the number 0000285441. Its main
operations comprise software implementation.

On 03.07.2015. The company changed its headquarters from ul.
Klecinska 125 in Wroclaw ul. Strzegomska 142A Wroclaw

According to the Company’s Articles of Association the period of
operations is unlimited.

2. Financial Statements
Financial statements are produced on a going concern basis.

Financial statements are presented for the 12-month period from 1
January to 31 December 2015. Comparative data are presented for the
same period of prior financial year.

3. Summary of principal accounting policies

(@) Basis of preparation

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are in accordance with the Accounting Act of 29 September
1994 (Journal of Laws No. 121/591, with subsequent amendments),
which specifies, inter-alia, accounting principles for entities which
have their registered office or place of management on the territory of
the Republic of Poland.

Accounting records are kept on the historical cost basis.
Profit and loss account was prepared using comparative method.

In preparing these financial statements appropriate accounting policies
in respect of the Company’ operations were applied on a consistent
basis in the period ended 31 December 2015 as well as in the period
ended 31 December 2014.

(b) Tangible fixed assets and intangible assets

Tangible fixed assets are assets with economic useful life of more than
one year., ready for the Company’s own use.

Intangible assets include property rights used by the Company in the
operations, with economic useful life of more than one year.

Tangible fixed assets and intangible assets are stated at cost of purchase
or manufacture or revalued amounts, less accumulated depreciation
and permanent diminution in value.

Tangible fixed assets also include third party assets used under finance
lease agreements, if the relevant agreement meets the criteria set out
in the Act. Lease agreements signed by the Company relate to cars.

Fixed assets under construction are new assets during the construction,
assembly or improvement of existing fixed assets.

Prepayments for fixed assets under construction represent cash means
or equivalents paid to suppliers for future deliveries of fixed assets and
fixed assets under construction.

Fixed assets are stated in net book value, which is the initial cost less
accumulated depreciation or amortisation and permanent diminution
in value.

The initial cost of tangible fixed assets includes all costs borne during
the period of construction, assembly and preparation, as well as non
deductible value added tax and the cost of servicing liabilities incurred
to finance them reduced by the applicable income. In particular, finance
costs may include interest, commission and foreign exchange gains or
losses relating to loans as well as trade payables or prepayments during
the construction period.. Income, which reduces such costs, may relate
to interest received on time deposits of cash from loans received.

A write down for permanent diminution in value is made in the event
when it is probable that an asset will not bring a part or a whole of
expected economic benefits. In the event of changes being made to the
existing production process, earmarking the given asset for scrapping,
discontinuing its use for other reasons, which give rise to a permanent
diminution in the value of such tangible or intangible fixed asset, a
write-down is recognised as part of other operating expenses.

Depreciation and amortisation is recognised on the straight line basis.,
starting form the first day of the month following the month of putting
the asset into use. The correctness of depreciation rates and other data
is periodically reviewed by Management . As a result, adjustments
to rates and to depreciation charges are made starting from the first
month of subsequent accounting period.

Annual depreciation rates for the principal categories of tangible assets
are as follows:

Plant and machinery 10%, 30%
Other 20%

Fixed assets under construction, and land, including rights to
perpetual usufruct of land, are not depreciated.

(c) Receivables

Receivables are long term if they are due after more than one year from
the balance sheet date. Receivables are short term if they are due within
one year from the balance sheet date.

Receivables are stated at amounts due at the balance sheet date
including the late interest accrued, carried net of write-downs.
Receivables are adjusted by a write-downs taking into account the
probability of repayment Depending on the type of receivables write
downs are charged to other operating costs or financial costs.
Taxation, state subsidy and social security receivables are stated at
amounts due on the basis of regulations, agreements and other relevant
documentation.

(d) Monetary assets

Monetary assets include cash in hand and cash at bank, bank deposits
maturing within three months of the balance sheet date, cheques,
bills of exchange and similar instruments due within three months
from the date of issue. Monetary assets also include interest due but
not received.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at face value.
Interest received and due is included in financial income.

Financials assets due or maturing within three months from the date
of issue or placement are classified as cash for cash flow reporting
purposes.

Cash flow statement was prepared using indirect method.
(e) Prepayments, accruals and deferred income

i.  Prepayments

Prepayments include invoiced amounts of services to be received in
future periods. The timing and method of recognition in the income
statement should correspond to the nature of the expenses recognised,
taking account of the prudence principle.

ii.  Accruals

Accruals are recognised at amounts of likely liabilities, which relate to
the current reporting period, in particular with regard to:

—  Goods and services provided to the Company by its creditors, if
the amount of liability can be reliably estimated;
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—  The obligation to provide, in the future, goods and services,
relating to current activities, to unknown persons, the amount
of which can be estimated even though the timing of a liability
is not yet known, including amounts relating to guarantee and
warranty service in respect of durable products sold.

Accruals are recognised in the income statement in proportion to the

goods or services provided. The timing and method of recognition in

the income statement should correspond to the nature of the expenses
recognised, taking account of the prudence principle.

iii. Deferred income

Deferred income is recognised by taking account of the prudence
principle and in particular includes the following:

—  Amounts received or receivable from creditors in respect of goods
or services to be provided in future reporting periods;

—  Cashreceived to finance the purchase or manufacture of property,
plant and equipment, including property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction and development costs, if, in
accordance with other acts, it is not credited to equity. Amounts
recognised as deferred income are to be gradually recognised
as other operating income, in line with the depreciation or
amortisation of property, plant and equipment or development
costs financed therefrom;

—  Fixed assets in the course of construction, property, tangible
and intangible assets received free of charge, including
donations. Amounts recognised as deferred income are to be
gradually recognised as other operating income, in line with the
depreciation or amortisation of property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets;

(f)  Services provided on the basis of contracts whose
term exceeds 6 months

Revenue on contractual services in progress, including construction
contracts, whose term exceeds 6 months, which are completed to a
significant extent as at the balance sheet date, is determined as at the
balance sheet date in proportion to the stage of completion.

The stage of completion is measured by reference the number of direct
hours worked on providing the services.

If a service contract, including a construction contract, is:

- A cost-plus contract, then revenue on services in progress is
determined at costs related to the proportion of services provided,
plus the profit;

- a fixed price contract, then revenue on services in progress is
determined in proportion to the stage of completion of the said
services, if the stage of completion of the said services as at the
balance sheet date can be reliably estimated..

Irrespective of the revenue recognition method applied, the expected
loss on providing services is recognised as an expense.

Costs of services in progress, including construction contracts,
comprise costs incurred as from the relevant contract date to the given
balance sheet date. Contract costs incurred prior to the contract date
are recognised as assets if they are likely to be covered by contract
revenue from the engager in the future.

If revenue is determined by reference to the stage of completion of
services in progress other than on the basis of the proportion of costs
incurred as from the contract date to the date of determining revenue
in relation to the total cost of providing the given services, then the
costs to be recognised in the income statement of the Company are
determined as that portion of total contract costs which corresponds to
the stage of completion of the said services, less costs recognised in the
income statements in prior reporting periods, having taken account of
the loss on providing services. Any difference between actual costs and
costs recognised in the income statement is recognised as prepayments
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(g) Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity comprises share capital, supplementary capital
and reserves established by the Company on the basis of legislation,
the Articles of Association and decisions of general meetings of
shareholders, as well as amount of cumulative profits or losses from
previous years.

Share capital is stated at nominal value in the amount specified in
Articles of Association and entered in the Commercial Register.

Share capital not paid up (negative amount) represents amounts due
but not paid by shareholders.

Based on the shareholders resolution describing the date and the
amount of additional shareholders’ contributions, the amount of the
additional shareholders’ contributions is stated as separate item of
equity as long as the contributions are used according to their purpose.
Additional contributions not paid up are stated as a negative amount.

Supplementary capital includes premiums arising on issue of shares,
other amounts determined by legislation or the Articles of Association
and amounts transferred from profit and loss account on the basis of
resolutions of general meetings of shareholders.

Retained earnings (losses) brought forward include cumulative profits
and losses from previous years which have not been distributed or
appropriated by resolution of general meetings of shareholders.

(h) Liabilities

Liabilities are long term if they are due more than one year from the
balance sheet date. Liabilities are short term if they are due within a
year from the balance sheet date.

Liabilities are stated at amounts due in respect of goods or services
received, including the late interest due at the balance sheet date.
Interest is charged to financial costs.

()  Foreign currency transactions

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Polish currency at the balance sheet date using the average rate
determined for that currency by the National Bank of Poland as on
the balance sheet date.

Business transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted
for as on the date they are performed at:

- the average rate determined for that currency by the National Bank
of Poland - in case of foreign currency sales or purchases transactions,
as well as of the debt or liability payment transactions;

-the average rate of a given currency specified by the National Bank of
Poland as on the date previous to transaction date, unless a customs
document indicates another rate — in case of sales and purchases
transactions.

Realised foreign exchange gains or losses as well as gains or losses
arising on translation of foreign currency balances at the balance sheet
date are credited or charged to financial income or costs respectively,
and in justified cases charged to manufacture costs of finished goods
or acquisition cost of goods for resale, fixed assets, fixed assets under
construction or intangible assets.

()  Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised at the time goods are delivered or services
are provided. Sales are recognised net of value-added taxes or any
discounts allowed.

(k) Obligatory charges on the financial result

Obligatory charges on the financial result include Corporate Income
Tax on profit determined in accordance with relevant legislation,
deferred taxation and other mandatory charges on profit of a similar
nature.

Corporate Income Tax charge is based on the reported profit adjusted
in respect of non-taxable income, non-deductible expenses, investment



relief, donations and relief for losses incurred in prior years.

The Company recognises deferred tax provisions and determines
deferred tax assets in respect of temporary differences between the
book values of assets or liabilities and their tax bases, and tax loss
carryforwards.

Deferred tax assets are determined at the amount of corporation tax
recoverable in the future in respect of deductible temporary differences
and the carryforward of tax losses, taking account of the prudence
principle.

The Company calculates deferred tax assets taking into account all
deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward, and at
the same time write downs of these assets are determined if necessary:.

A deferred tax provision shall be recognised at the amount of
corporation tax payable in the future in respect of taxable temporary
differences, i.e. differences that result in a higher tax base in the future.

Deferred tax provisions and assets shall be measured at tax rates
applicable in the period in which the related tax obligation arises.

A deferred tax expense or income recognised in the income statement
is the difference between deferred tax provisions and assets as at
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the beginning and end of a given reporting period, but deferred tax
provisions or assets relating to transactions which are credited or
charged to equity are also credited or charged to equity

Temporary differences include provisions, tax loss carryforwards and
unrealised exchange gains and losses.

In the circumstances when temporary differences arise and reverse in
the periods when different tax rates are applicable, for the purpose
of calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities those temporary
differences which arise at first are assumed to reverse first.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities.

()  Changes in accounting policies

In the year ended 31 December 2015 the Company has not made any

changes in its accounting policies.

(m) Changes in methods for the preparation of financial
statements

In the year ended 31 December 2015 there were no changes in
methods of preparation of financial statements.
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Balance sheet as at 31 December 2015

Amount in PLN

Note Current year Previous year

ASSETS
Fixed Assets 9,27,142.24 11,97,075.90
Intangible assets - -
Development costs - -
Goodwill — =
Other intangible assets - -
Prepayments for intangible assets = -
Fixed tangible assets 1 3,77,331.50 3,64,700.21
Fixed assets 3,77,331.50 3,64,700.21
Freehold land (including perpetual usufruct of land) = =
Buildings and structures - -
Plant and machinery 3,63,135.47 3,62,899.70
Vehicles - -
Other tangible fixed assets 14,196.03 1,800.51
Fixed assets under construction - -
Prepayments for fixed assets under construction - -
Long-term receivables 2 = 70,537.69
Related entities - -
Other entities = 70,537.69
Long-term investments = =
Long-term prepayments 5,49,810.74 7,61,838.00
Deferred income tax assets 5,49,810.74 7,61,838.00
Other prepayments - -
Current assets 1,12,82,734.13 67,31,993.89
Inventories - -
Raw materials - -
Semi-finished products and work in progress = =
Finished products - -
Goods for resale - -
Prepayments for inventories = =
Receivables and claims 3 88,10,599.06 62,28,999.79
Related entities 15 70,28,633.40 44,70,473.44
trade debtors payable within a period of 70,28,633.40 44,70,473.44
- up to 12 months 70,28,633.40 44,70,473.44
- over 12 months - -
other - -
Other entities 17,81,965.66 17,58,526.35
trade debtors payable within a period of 4.,63,774.85 11,03,744.19
- up to 12 months 4,63,774.85 11,03,744.19
- over 12 months - -
taxation, state subsidy and social security receivables 6,77,644.67 5,08,680.61
other debts 6,40,546.14 1,46,101.55
receivables in court — —
Short-term investments 19,35,324.07 1,66,016.86
Short term financial assets 19,35,324.07 1,66,016.86
in related entities - -
in other entities - -
cash and other monetary assets 19,35,324.07 1,66,016.86
- cash in hand and at bank 19,35,324.07 1,66,016.86
- other cash equivalents - -
- other monetary assets — —
Other short-term investments = =
Short-term prepayments 4 5,36,811.00 3,36,977.24
Total assets 1,22,09,876.37 79,29,069.79
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Amount in PLN

Note Current year Previous year

LIABILITIES and EQUITY

Equity 45,57,884.97 23,84,683.28
Share capital (fund) 5 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
Share capital not paid up (negative amount) - -
Entity’s own shares (negative amount) - -
Additional shareholders’ contributions 8,00,000.00 8,00,000.00
Additional shareholders’ contributions not paid up - -
Supplementary capital (fund) - -
Revaluation reserve - -
Other reserves (funds) = =
Retained earnings (losses) brought forward 5,84,683.28 (24,89,918.77)
Net profit (loss) for the year 6 21,73,201.69 30,74,602.05
Write-offs from net profit for the financial year (negative amount) - -
Liabilities and provisions 76,51,991.40 55,44,386.51
Provisions - -
Deferred income tax provision - -
Provision for retirement pensions and similar benefits - =
Other provisions - -
Long-term liabilities - -
Related entities - -
Other entities: - -
loans - -
debentures - -
other financial liabilities = =
other - -
Short-term liabilities 15,87,258.10 22,60,576.27
Related entities 7 5,01,758.65 78,819.91
trade creditors with maturity period of: 5,01,758.65 78,819.91

- up to 12 months 5,01,758.65 78,819.91

- over 12 months - -
other - -
Other entities 10,64,063.91 21,21,159.04
loans - -
debentures - -
other financial liabilities - -
trade creditors with maturity period of: 7 9,80,066.70 7,80,894.57

- up to 12 months 9,80,066.70 7,80,894.57

- over 12 months - -
payments received on account - -

bills of exchange payable - -
Taxation, customs duty and social security liabilities = 13,40,207.25
wages and salaries payable - -
other short term payables 83,997.21 57.22
Special funds 21,435.54 60,597.32
Accruals and deferred income 8 60,64,733.30 32,83,810.24
Negative goodwill - -
Other accruals and deferred income 60,64,733.30 32,83,810.24

- long-term accruals and deferred income = =

- short-term accruals and deferred income 60,64,733.30 32,83,810.24
Total liabilities and equity 1,22,09,876.37 79,29,069.79
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Profit and loss account

for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Amount in PLN
Note Current year Previous year
Sales 9 4.75,40,127.54 3,95,98,707.00
- from related parties 4.48,51,576.99 3,80,65,036.11
Sales of finished goods 4,75,40,127.54 3,95,76,710.70
Movement in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (increase - positive
amount, decrease - negative amount) = =
Manufacturing cost of products for entity’s own use - -
Sales of goods for resale and raw materials = 21,996.30
Operating expenses 4,44,79,175.42 3,57,75,719.42
Depreciation and amortisation 1,91,081.37 94,769.88
Consumption of materials and energy 13,39,892.85 2,69,.893.47
External services 1,37,14,553.36 1,11,64,739.12
Taxes and charges, including 1,56,438.29 1,08,158.42
- excise duty - -
Wages and salaries 1,96,07,062.52 1,57,16,110.47
Employee benefits 30,59,156.25 24,71,110.75
Other expenses 64,10,990.78 59,28,941.01
Cost of raw materials and goods for resale sold - 21,996.30
Gross profit after selling, general and administrative expenses 30,60,952.12 38,22,987.58
Other operating income 46,862.29 48,441.86
Profit from non-financial fixed assets sold 3,047.34 5,602.54
Subsidies received = =
Other operating income 43,814.95 42,839.32
Other operating expenses 6,087.42 10,558.63
Loss on non financial fixed assets sold - =
Revaluation of non-financial assets = =
Other operating expenses 6,087.42 10,558.63
Operating profit 31,01,726.99 38,60,870.81
Financial income - 489.05
Dividends received, including those - -
- from related entities - -
Interest received, including interest - 489.05
- from related entities - -
Profit from investments sold - =
Revaluation of investments - -
Other - -
Financial expenses 51,349.04 1,15,540.30
Interest, including interest payable 628.57 1,936.29
- to related entities - -
Loss from investments sold - -
Revaluation of investments = =
Other 50,720.47 1,13,604.01
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 30,50,377.95 37,45,819.56
Result of extraordinary events - -
Extraordinary gains - -
Extraordinary losses - -
Profit before tax 30,50,377.95 37,45,819.56
Income tax 10 8,77,176.26 6,71,217.51
Other mandatory charges - -
Net profit 21,73,201.69 30,74,602.05
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Statement of changes in equity

for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Equity at the beginning of period
- fundamental errors adjustments
Equity at the beginning of period after adjustments
Share capital at the beginning of period
Changes in share capital
increase (due to)
- share issue
decrease (due to)
- redemption of shares
Share capital at the end of period
Share capital not paid up at the beginning of period
Changes in share capital not paid up
increase (due to)
decrease (due to)
Share capital not paid up at the end of period
Entity’s own shares at the beginning of period
increase (due to)
decrease (due to)
Entity’s own shares at the end of period
Additional shareholders’ contributions at the beginning of period
increase
decrease (due to)
Additional shareholders’ contributions at the end of period

Additional shareholders’ contributions not paid up at the beginning of period

increase (due to)
decrease (due to)
Additional shareholders’ contributions not paid up at the end of period
Supplementary capital at the beginning of period
Changes in supplementary capital
increase (due to)
- share premium
- distribution of profit (statutory)
- distribution of profit (above the minimum statutory value)
decrease (due to)
- loss coverage
Supplementary capital at the end of period
Revaluation reserve at the beginning of period
Changes in revaluation reserve
increase (due to)
decrease (due to)
- disposals of fixed assets
Revaluation reserve at the end of period
Other reserves at the beginning of period
Changes of other reserves
increase (due to)
decrease (due to)
Other reserves at the end of period
Profit (loss) brought forward at the beginning of period
Profit brought forward at the beginning of period
- changes in accounting policies
Revaluation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
Deferred taxation
- other adjustments
Profit brought forward at the beginning of period, after adjustments
increase (due to)
- distribution of profit brought forward
decrease (due to)
- coverage of loss
Profit brought forward at the end of period
Loss brought forward at the beginning of period
- changes in accounting policies
Revaluation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

23,84,683.28 (6,89,918.77)
23,84,683.28 (6,89,918.77)
10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
8,00,000.00 8,00,000.00
8,00,000.00 8,00,000.00

(24,89,918.77)

5,84,683.28
5,84,683.28

5,84,683.28
(24,89,918.77)

(14,61,081.54)

(14,61,081.54)
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Current year

Previous year

Deferred taxation
- other adjustments
Loss brought forward at the beginning of period, after adjustments
increase (due to)
- loss coverage
decrease (due to)
- distribution of profit brought forward
Loss brought forward at the end of period
Profit (loss) brought forward at the end of period
Net profit (loss) for the year
Net profit for the year
Net loss for the year
Write-offs from net profit for the year
Equity at the end of period

(24,89,918.77)

24,89,918.77

(14,61,081.54)

(10,28,837.23)

- (24,89,918.77)
5,84,683.28 (24,89,918.77)
21,73,201.69 30,74,602.05
21,73,201.69 30,74,602.05
45,57,884.97 23,84,683.28

Equity at the end of period, after proposed distribution of profits (coverage of losses)

Cashflow statement

for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Operating cash flows
Net profit (loss) for the year
Total adjustments:
Depreciation
Foreign exchange gains (losses)
Interest and shares in profits (dividends)
Investment profit (loss)
Change in provisions’ balance
Change in stocks’ balance
Change in liabilities’ balance
Change in short-term liabilities” balance, with the exception of loans
Change in prepayments and accruals’ balance
Other adjustments
Net operating cash flows
Investment cash flows
Cash inflows
Disposals of intangible and tangible fixed assets
Disposals of immovable property and intangible assets investments
From financial assets, including:
assets in related entities
assets in other entities
- financial assets disposals
- dividends and shares in profits
- repayment of long-term loans granted
- interest
- other inflows from financial assets
Other investments inflows
Cash outflows
Purchases of intangible and tangible fixed assets
Purchases of immovable property and intangible assets investments
For financial assets, including:
assets in related entities
assets in other entities
- purchases of financial assets
- long-term loans granted
Other investment outflows
Net investment cash flows
Financial cash flows
Cash inflows

Net inflows from issuing shares and other instruments and additional capital contributions

Loans

Issue of debt securities

Other financial inflows
Cash outflows

21,73,201.69
(2,03,229.16)
1,91,081.37

(3,047.34)

(25,11,061.58)
(6,73,318.17)

30,74,602.05
(38,82,433.12)
94,769.88

(5,602.54)

(7,12,342.29)
(41,06,728.77)

27,93,116.56 8,47,470.60
19,69,972.53 (8,07,831.07)
69,417.23 67,469.01
69,417.23 67,469.01

(2,70,082.55)
(2,70,082.55)

(4,05,180.88)
(4,05,180.88)

(2,00,665.32)

(3,37,711.87)
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Current year

Previous year

Acquisition of entity’s own shares
Dividends and other payments to shareholders/owners

Current year

Previous year

Distribution of profit other than payments of dividends to shareholders/owners
Loans repaid
Debt securities redeemed
Other financial liabilities
Payments of finance lease liabilities
Interest
Other financial outlays
Net financial cash flows

17,69,307.21

Total net cash flows (11,45,542.94)
Balance sheet change in cash balance, including: 17,69,307.21 (11,45,542.94)
- change in cash balance due to foreign exchange differences
Cash as at the beginning of period 1,66,016.86 13,11,559.80
Cash as at the end of period, including: 19,35,324.07 1,66,016.86
- cash with limited disposability - -
Notes to the financial statements
for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
1 Tangible fixed assets
Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

(a) Analysis of tangible fixed assets
Fixed tangible assets including:
freehold land (including perpetual usufruct of land)
buildings and structures
plant and machinery
vehicles
other tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets under construction
Prepayments for fixed assets under construction

3,77,331.50

3,64,529.62

12,801.88

3,64,700.21

3,62,899.70

1,800.51

Total tangible fixed assets

3,77,331.50

3,64,700.21

(b) Tangible fixed assets by title

Current year

Previous year

The Company’s own tangible fixed assets 3,77,331.50 3,64,700.21
Tangible fixed assets used under rent finance lease or similar agreements and included in the
Company’s assets — —
Total balance sheet tangible fixed assets 3,77,331.50 3,64,700.21
Other tangible fixed assets used under rent, operating lease or similar agreements excluded
from balance sheet 3,95,778.00 3,95,778.00
(c) Tangible fixed assets - movements during the year
Plant and Other tangible Total
Machinery fixed assets

Cost at the beginning of period 7,75,912.92 11,371.38 7,87,284.30
Additions- purchase 2,52,441.74 17,640.81 2,70,082.55
Disposals- sale (73,196.08) (73,196.08)
Cost at the end of period 9,55,158.58 29,012.19 9,84,170.77
Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of period 4,13,013.22 9,570.87 4,22,584.09
Addition- depreciation for the period 1,84,441,93 6,0639.44 1,91,081.37
Disposal -sale (6,826.19) (6,826.19)
Accumulated depreciation at the end of period 5,90,628.96 16,210.31 6,06,839.27
Net book value at the beginning of the period 3,62,899.70 1,800.51 3,64,700.21
Net book value at the end of period 3,64,529.62 12,801.88 3,77,331.50

As at the balance sheet date the Company had no liabilities to State budget or budgets of territorial self government units by virtue of acquired

ownership rights to buildings and structures.

During the year there were no fixed assets write downs.

The Company has not incurred manufacturing costs of fixed assets under construction and fixed assets for entity’s own during the year.
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2 Long-term receivables

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Gross receivables as at the balance sheet date
Write downs balance at the beginning of period

Increase

Utilisation

Release

Write downs balance at the end of period

70,537.69

Net long-term receivables

70,537.69

3 Receivables and claims

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Gross receivables as at the balance sheet date
Write downs balance at the beginning of period

Increase

Utilisation

Release

Write downs balance at the end of period

88,10,599.06

62,28,999.79

Net receivables and claims

88,10,599.06

62,28,999.79

4 Short term prepayments

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Prepaid insurance 237.82 713.56
Prepaid subscriptions - 4,116.67
Non -invoiced sales 5,36,573.18 3,32,147.01
Other - -
Total short-term prepayments 5,36,811.00 3,36,977.24
5 Equity
Amount in PLN
Current year Previous year
Shareholders Number of shares Nominal value  Number of shares Nominal value
Lodestone Holding AG 10,000 10,00,000 10,000 10,00,000
Total 10,000 10,00,000 10,000 10,00,000
6 Net profit (loss) for the year
The Management Board proposes to transfer current year profit to reserve capital.
7 Short terms payables according to over the period
Amount in PLN
No Age Value
1 Current 14,81,825.35
a Related entities 5,01,758.65
b Other entities 9,80,066.70
2 Overdue 1,88,809.86
a Related entities -
Until 90 days -
90-180 -
180-360 -
Over 360 -
b Other entities 1,88,809.86
Until 90 days 1,88,809.86
90-180 —
180-360 -
Over 360 —
Total 16,70,635.21
8 Accruals and deferred income
Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

(a) Short-term accruals
Services provided not invoiced
Unused holidays accrual

1,73,101.90
10,70,421.00

1,12,349.81
7,53,084.00
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Current year

Previous year

Annual bonus provided 9,52,770.67 6,98,054.11
Accrial for salaries 17,11,675.86
Other 7,92,372.93 8,646.46
Provision for expense 30,76,066.80
Total short-term accruals 60,64,733.30 32,83,810.24
9 Sales revenue
Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

(@)

Analysis of sales revenue
Sales of finished products
Sales of services

Sales of goods for resale

4,75,40,127.54

3,95,76,710.70
21,996.30

Total sales revenue

4,75,40,127.54

3,95,98,707.00

(b)

Sales analysis by geographical area
Domestic sales
Export sales

26,88,550.55
4,48,51,576.99

20,33,987.52
3,75,64,719.48

Total sales

4,75,40,127.54

3,95,98,707.00

10

Corporate Income Tax

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Current Taxation 6,61,316.00 7,26,709.00
Deferred Taxation 2,12,027.26 (55,491.00)
Total 8,73,343.26 6,71,218.00

(a)

Current Taxation

Current year

Previous year

Profit / (loss) before tax 30,50,377.95 37,45,819.56
Income which is exempt from tax under taxation legislation: - -
unrealised fx gains - -
Costs and losses which are excluded from income-earning costs by taxation legislation,

including: 36,95,848.81 26,17,512.80
unrealised fx losses 1,16,161.54 67,036.50
interest on overdue tax - 1,936.29
annual bonus accrued 9,52,770.67 6,98,054.11
unused holidays accrual 3,17,337.00 1,28,870.44
other cost accrual 75,422.36
contribution for handicaped people 1,24,761.00 91,806.00
salaries not paid - 13,56,560.42
social fund contributions not paid 1,45,777.30 1,11,649.42
amortization (19,964.90) (27,605.92)
other 20,59,006.20 1,13,783.18
Costs incurred in prior year, related to current tax year: 22,63,949.91 15,36,881.85
paid social fund contribution 14,68,209.84 1,03,490.76
paid bonuses 6,98,054.11 9,54,648.09
reversal of other accrual 97,685.96 4,78,743.00
reversal unused holidays accrual - -
Profit / (loss) after adjustment for permanent differences 44,82,276.85 48,26,450.51
Taxable income 44.82,276.85 48,26,450.51
Prior period losses (10,01,666.51) (10,01,666.51)
Tax base 34.80,610.34 38,24,784.00
Corporate Income Tax 6,61,316.00 7,26,709.00

()

Deferred Taxation

Current year

Previous year

unused holidays accrual 2,03,379.99 1,43,086.00
annual bonus accrual 1,81,026.43 1,32,630.00
unrealised fx differences 203.00
social fund contributions not paid 27,697.69 2,78,959.00
assets 2,092.63 2,313.00
other costs 1,35,614.00 14,330.00
tax losses carried forward = 1,90,317.00
Total deferred tax assets 5,49,810.73 7,61,838.00

The Company did not make any write downs for deferred tax assets.
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11 Analysis of cash balance for the purpose of cashflow statement

Amount in PLN
Current year Previous year
Cash in bank 19,35,324.07 1,66,016.86
Deposit — —
Total 19,35,324.07 1,66,016.86

12 Average number of employees

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Office employees 9 4
Other 103 86
Total 112 90
13 Rates used for year end revaluation
Amount in PLN
Current year Previous year
EUR 4.2615 4.2623
CHF 3.9394 3.5447
GBP 5.7862 5.4648

14 Transactions with members of the Management Board

There were no transactions with members of the Management Board.

15 Transactions with related parties

The Company is part of Lodestone Holding Group. The group consolidated financial statements are prepared by Lodestone Holding AG,

Switzerland.

Intercompany transactions were as follows:

Amount in PLN

Current year

Previous year

Lodestone Management Consultants AG, Szwajcaria

Debtors 24,49,885.82 9,64,879.73
Creditors 3,09,104.15 67,890.31
Incomes 2,24,57,193.58 1,77,90,923.70
Costs 8,13,192.27 9,50,370.58
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd., Wielka Brytania
Debtors 6,26,953.72 12,21,067.83
Creditors 1,91,004.00 10,929.60
Incomes 25,96,201.14 48,56,865.93
Costs 4,723.60 50,020.85
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.,Stany Zjednoczone
Debtors 7,09,356.76 52,831.55
Incomes 31,01,140.72 2,36,856.64
Lodestone Management Consultants, Belgia
Debtors 4,385.21 2241.11
Incomes 26,331.88 26,643.59
Lodestone Management Consultants, Czechy
Debtors 2,043.15 -
Incomes 20,112.95 10,086.07
Lodestone Management Consultants, Rumunia
Debtors 2,942.13 -
Incomes 31,806.50 28,763.48
Other Incomes 21,996.30
Lodestone Management Consultants, Francja
Debtors 10,43,171.39 4,01,183.13
Incomes 6,63,872.20 13,56,201.93
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH, Niemcy
Debtors 26,95,660.46 16,42,704.16
Incomes 1,55,76,143.98 1,35,05,159.42
Costs 95,090.74
Lodestone Management Consultants, Australia
Debtors 14,315.59 5,409.58
Income 72,540.56 59,998.08
Costs
Lodestone Management Consultants, Austria
Debtors 816.25 1,080.53
Incomes 3,846.87 6,359.84
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Current year Previous year
Lodestone Management Consultants, Holandia
Debtors 77,932.87 21,686.32
Incomes 2,23,468.23 1,15,069.22
Lodestone Management Consultants, Portugalia
Debtors 25,919.00 7,421.07
Incomes 18,497.93 23,072.64
Lodestone Management Consultants, Singapore
Debtors 6,047.71 3,941.27
Incomes 60,263.34 47,218.48
Lodestone Management Consultants, Chiny
Debtors 1,46,109.62
Incomes =
Lodestone Augmentis AG, Szwajcaria
Debtors (82.46)
Incomes 157.11 1,817.09
Lodestone Management Consultants (Canada) Inc., Kanada
Debtors 1,46,109.62 =
Incomes =
16 Auditors’ fees paid or accrued for the year:
Amount in PLN
Current year Previous year
Obligatory audit of financial statement 35,000.00 36,000.00

17 Post balance sheet events
On 14.01.2016 Company changed its name from Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. o.0. at Infosys Consulting Sp. z o.0.

18 Significant prior years’ events reflected in the financial statements

Until the date of the financial statements for the fiscal year, that is, 29 January 2016 r. no events concerning previous years that have not been,
and should be included in the books of account.

19 Other information
All other disclosure requirements contained in Schedule 1 of the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994 are not applicable.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda.
(‘the Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions

of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’ preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’ Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b)  in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

For Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’s registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 4,86,00,885 4,86,00,885
Reserves and surplus 2.2 (7,26,41,162) (5,37,77,619)
(2,40,40,277) (51,76,734)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 2.3 2,16,45,446 =
Trade payables 2.4 33,08,711 1,33,06,726
Other current liabilities 2.5 1,09,18,811 1,80,41,858
Short-term provisions 2.6 3,43,04,171 2,54,56,691
7,01,77,139 5,68,05,275
4,61,36,862 5,16,28 541
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2.7 - -
Long-term loans and advances 2.8 48,43,327 2,18,20,378
48,43,327 2,18,20,378
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 2.9 3,14,59,712 2,70,62,818
Cash and cash equivalents 2.10 51,58,710 11,65,703
Short-term loans and advances 2.11 46,75,113 15,79,642
4.12,93,535 2,98,08,163
4,61,36,862 5,16,28,541
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath
Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone Management
Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda.
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Statement of Profit and Loss

ing,
Particulars Note Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014
Income from consultancy services 20,42,34,299 265,750,484
Other income 2.12 (13,78,479) 142,329
Total revenue 20,28,55,820 265,892,813
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.13 14,18,48,195 146,307,526
Cost of technical sub-contractors 2.13 - 15,537,122
Travelling and conveyance 6,73,95,947 79,859,805
Telephone expenses 28.,68,520 2,696,406
Consultancy and professional charges 4427958 1,811,834
Depreciation and amortization expenses - 40,079
Interest expenses 12,564 -
Other expenses 2.13 470,314 2,148,348
Total expenses 21,70,23,498 248,401,120
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (1,41,67,678) 17,491,693
Tax expense
Current tax 2.14 39,12,485 12,401,378
Deferred tax 2.14 - 18,399,444
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (1,80,80,163) (13,309,129)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone Management

Chartered Accountants Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda.
Firm’s registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath Ralph Biumle

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax (1,41,67,678) 1,74,91,693
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Provision for post sales client support - 6,189
Depreciation and amortization expense - 40,079
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities (7,83,380) 6,30,959
Interest on loan from parent company 12,564 -
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables (43,96,894) (62,40,855)
Loans and advances and other assets 1,43,09,807 (1,89,35,808)
Liabilities and provisions (1,15,78,686) 87,10,736
(1,66,04,267) 17,02,993
Income taxes paid (10,35,608) (23,16,403)
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,76,39,875) (6,13,410)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest on loan from parent company (12,564) -
Loan from parent 2,16,45,446 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,16,32,882 -
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 39,93,007 (6,13,410)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 11,65,703 17,79,113
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 51,58,710 11,65,703
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lodestone Management
Chartered Accountants Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda.

Firm’s registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Ralph Biumle

Partner Director

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda
(‘the Company’) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting
Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG), Kloten (Switzerland).
The Company renders professional management consulting services,
thereby enabling its clients to enhance business performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’ reporting currency is the Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Examples of such estimates may include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee
benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and the
useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets.

Accounting estimates could change periodically. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
based on changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates and
are reflected with material effects, if any, in the financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits
may flow to the Company. Revenue is measured as the value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, value-added
tax and other sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year-end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.

The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered.
An expected loss on a contract is recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.
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1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably that may
require an outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligation. A
disclosure for a contingent liability is made when no possible or
present obligation that may require an outflow of resources.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-timeframe contracts. Costs associated with such support
services are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded
and included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
estimates such costs based on historical experience and the estimates
are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and
likelihood of occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use. The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed
assets as follows:

Computer equipment 3-5 years

@ For computer equipment, based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful life as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects to
use this asset. Hence, the useful life for this asset is different from the useful life as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual

values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

(Refer to Note 2.7)

1.11 Impairment

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal
sources, that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s
net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset
and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if,
and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an
asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been



determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

1.12 Benefits to employees

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated
absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is
determined by using projected unit credit method on the additional
amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

1.13 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date.
The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction

Revenue, expense and cash flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

1.14 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax, based on
the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability
due to disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company
offsets, on a yearly basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where it
has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets in situations where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exist, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets, other than in situations of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if
there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to
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set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the
deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

1.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash-on-deposit with
banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with
a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of up to three months
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

1.16 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.17 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets
acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever
is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight line basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the lease term.

2 Notes to accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2015

The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified,
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

2.1 Share capital

inX, except as otherwise stated

Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Authorized capital
EUR 700,000 4,86,00,885 4,86,00,885
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
EUR 700,000 4,86,00,885 4,86,00,885
4,86,00,885 4,86,00,885
2.2 Reserves and surplus
in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Foreign currency translation
reserve — opening balance 22,75,483 16,46,596
Add: Foreign currency
translation during the year (7,83,380) 6,28,887
Foreign currency translation
reserve — closing balance 14,92,103 22,75,483

Surplus — opening balance (5,60,53,102)
Add: Net profit after tax
transferred from Statement of
Profit and Loss

Surplus — closing balance

(4,27,43,973)

(1,80,80,163)
(7,41,33,265)
(7,26,41,162)

(1,33,09,129)
(5,60,53,102)
(5,37,77,619)
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2.3 Short-term borrowings Particulars As at December 31,
in% 2015 2014
Particulars As at December 31, Salary advance - 39,53,808
2015 2014 Withholding and other taxes
Unsecured loan 2,16,45,446 — payable 47,83,277 78,89,817
2,16,45,446 — Provision for expenses 34,36,186 -
@ Includes dues to holding company Other payables @ — 22.97,700
(Refer to Note 2.16) 2,16,45,446 - 1,09,18.811 1,80,41,858
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
2.4 Trade payables (Refer to Note 2.16) — 22,997,700
in¥
Particulars As at December 31, 2.6 Short-term provisions
2015 2014 inx
Trade payables 33,08,711  133,06,726 Particulars As at December 31,
33,08,711 1,33,06,726 2015 2014
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries ProviS(Om [or Cmolovas EnEms
(Refer to Note 2.16) BN 1,32,03.100 Compensated Sbeences 196,13,174  1,40,70,798
2.5 Other current liabilities Ot?er DS o
) ncome taxes (net of advance
in% tax and tax deducted at
Particulars As at December 31, source) 1,46,90,997 1,13,85,893
2015 2014 3,43,04,171 2,54,56,691
Accrued salaries and benefits
Bonus and incentives 26,99,348 39,00,533

Other liabilities

2.7 Fixed assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2015:

in X crore, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets Total
Computer
equipment
Original cost
As at January 1, 2015 8,90,884 8,90,884
Additions - -
Deductions / retirement during the period / adjustments during the period (52,111) (52,111)
As at December 31, 2015 8,38,773 8,38,773
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2015 8,90,884 8,90,884
For the period - -
Deductions / adjustments during the period (52,111) (52,111)
As at December 31, 2015 8,38,773 8,38,773

Net book value
As at December 31, 2015

Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2014

in X crore, except as otherwise stated

Particulars Tangible assets Total
Computer
equipment
Original cost
As at January 1, 2014 9,890,871 9,890,871
Additions - -
Deductions / retirement during the period / adjustments during the period (98,987) (98,987)
As at December 31, 2014 8,90,884 8,90,884
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2014 9,47,720 9,47,720
For the period 40,079 40,079
Deductions / adjustments during the period (96,915) (96,915)
As at December 31, 2014 8,90,884 8,90,884

Net book value
As at December 31, 2014

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Management, based on internal and external technical evaluation, reassessed the remaining useful
life of computers with effect from April 1, 2014. Accordingly, the useful lives of computers required a change from the previous estimates.
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2.12 Other income

in% in%
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Unsecured, considered good Miscellaneous income, net 2,02,007 72,803
Advances to employees Gains / (losses) on foreign
— Non-current 27,60,682  2,01,65,960 currency, net (15,80,486) 69,526
Advance income taxes (13,78,479) 1,42,329
(net of provisions) 20,82,645 16,54,418
48,43,327  2,1820,378 2.13 Expenses
in%
2.9 Trade receivables Particulars Year ended December 31,
in? 2015 2014
Particulars As at December 31, Employee benefit expenses
2015 2014 Salaries and bonus 14,16,75,749  14,61,40,431
Debts Outs[anding for a period Staff welfare 1,72,446 1,67,095
not exceeding six months 14,18,48,195 14,63,07,526
Considered good © 3,14,59,712 2,70,62,818 Cost of technical sub-contractors
31459712 2,70,62,818 Technical sub-contractors —
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries related parties — 1,55,37,122
(Refer to Note 2.16) 3,14,59,712 2,70,62,818 _ 1,5537,122
. Other expenses
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents Rates and taxes 1,714 (10,118)
inx Rent = 64,844
Particulars As at December 31, Bank charges and commission 31,790 2,56,773
5015 2014 Provision for post sales client
: support - 6,189
Ballances with banks Others 436,810 1830,660
n current accounts 51,58,710 11,65,703 170314 5148 348
51,58,710 11,65,703 — T
The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as
follows: 2.14 Tax expense
in% in%
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
In current accounts Current tax 39,12,485 1,24,01,378
Santander Totta - 11,65,703 Deferred taxes - 1,83,99 444
Citibank 51,58,710 - 39,12,485  3,08,00,822
Total cash and cash equivalents
as per Balance Sheet 51,58,710 11,65,703 2.15 Quantitative details
The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management
2.11 Short-term loans and advances ‘ consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy
in¥ services cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not
Particulars As at December 31, possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information
2015 2014 as required under Paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for
Unsecured, considered good preparation of the Statement of Profit and Loss as per revised Schedule
Others 11T to the Companies Act, 2013.
Withholding and other taxes
receivable 2,88,003 4.23,033
Others = 11,56,609
2,88,003 15,79,642
Loans and advances to employees
Salary advances 43,87,110 -
46,75,113 15,79,642
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2.16 Related party transactions

List of related parties:

Name of holding company Country Holding as at December 31,
2015 2014
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) Switzerland 100% 100%
Name of ultimate holding company Country
Infosys Limited®” India
@ Holding of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) from October 22, 2012
Name of fellow subsidiaries Country
Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO) India
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia do Brasil Ltda. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. (Infosys Public Services) U.S.
Infosys Americas Inc. (Infosys Americas) Us.
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o (formerly Infosys BPO s.r.0) Czech Republic
Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp. z 0.0. Poland
Infosys BPO S. de R. L. de C. V V@ Mexico
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC " uU.s.
Portland Group Pty. Limited Australia
Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd © Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC V19 uU.s.
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) ) Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) @ India
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. © uU.s.
Lodestone Management Consultants Pty. Limited Australia
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) © Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG @© Switzerland
Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH @© Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S. A. @ Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) © Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) ©) Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) © France
Infosys Consulting s.r.o.(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) © Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH © Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. @ China
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) © UK.
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. @ Netherlands
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. Brazil
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. @ Poland
Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) © Argentina
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.(formerly SC Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) @ Romania
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.® Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC (Infosys Nova) U.S.
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) "% U.S.
Panaya Ltd. 1 Israel
Panaya Gmbh ®V Germany
Panaya Pty Ltd. ¥ Australia
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd. *V Japan
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)"? India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus) @ U.S.
Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥ U.S.
Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada) 1 Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO

@ Under liquidation

9 Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

® Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014

@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

1D Wholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

120n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

190n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.

19 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah
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The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:

in<
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Trade receivables
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 1,91,16,326  1,23,41,128
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 64,67,654 1,30,79,771
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 14,44,407 16,41,919
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 44 31,325 —
3,14,59,712 2,70,62,818
Trade payables
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 4,46,391 =
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) - 1,30,67,958
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 26,05,605 -
30,51,996 1,32,03,100
Other payables
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) - 22,97,700
- 22,97,700
Unsecured loan
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 2,16,45,446 -
2,16,45,446 =

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are
as follows:

in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions
Unsecured loan taken
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 2,16,45,446 -
2,16,45,446 -
Revenue transactions
Purchase of services
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 3,13,994 -
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 26,30,176 -
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) - 65,86,507
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formetly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 10,585

29,54,755 1,55,37,122
Sale of services

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 13,35,19,086 17,93,30,931
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 3,98,74,282 5,29,63,234
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 77,82,547  2,02,34,177
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. 2,30,58,383

20,42,34,298  25,25,28,342

Interest expense
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) 12,564 -
12,564 -

2.17 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single
segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management
Consultants S.R.L.) (‘the Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2015 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b)  in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account; and

d) in our opinion, the standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

For Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants,
Firm’s Registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath
Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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Balance Sheet
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in%
Particulars Note As at December 31,
2015 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 2.1 93,64,193 03,64,193
Reserves and surplus 2.2 4.49,54,260 3,77,09,536
5,43,18,453 4,70,73,729
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 2.3 44.05,742 8,55,682
Other current liabilities 2.4 48,04,218 51,72,214
Short-term provisions 2.5 1,27,80,308 74,00,759
2,19,90,268 1,34,28,655
7,63,08,721 6,05,02,384
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2.6 7,94,608 12,01,039
7,94,608 12,01,039
Long-term loans and advances 2.7 - 10,44,396
7,94,608 2245435
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 2.9 3,20,02,828 5,10,50,388
Cash and cash equivalents 2.10 4,23,30,637 40,68,437
Short-term loans and advances 2.11 11,80,648 31,38,124
7,55,14,113 5,82,56,949
7,63,08,721 6,05,02,384
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath

Partner

Membership number: 202841

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016

Cristin Florescu

Robert Boreczek
Director

for and on behalf of Board of Directors of S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.
(formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in X, except per share data

Particulars Note Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014

Income from consultancy services 20,47,38,039 22.96,76,767
Other income 2.12 5,07,866 80,03,403
Total revenue 20,52,45905 23,76,80,170
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.13 12,08,38,635 12,94,41,528
Cost of technical sub-contractors 2.13 43,17,570 82,41,901
Travelling and conveyance 4.91,57,787 4,63,53,421
Communication charges 27,47,550 1191273
Consultancy and professional charges 2.13 84,42,137 23,39,.205
Finance cost - 67,163
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.6 12,59,860 11,39,997
Other expenses 2.13 27,20,919 47,29,213
Total expenses 18,94,84,458 19,35,03,701
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,57,61,447  4,41,76,469
Tax expense

Current tax 2.14 58,38,766 62,16,448

Deferred tax 2.14 = =
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 99,22,681 3,79,60,021

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Shares of 100 RON par value each

Basic and diluted 708.76 2,711.43
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share

Basic and diluted 14,000 14,000
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of Board of Directors of S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.

Chartered Accountants (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)
Firm’ registration number: 006673S

M. Rathnakar Kamath Peter Fischer Robert Boreczek
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Cristin Florescu
Director

Place : Bangalore
Date : January 8, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement

in%
Particulars Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 1,57,61,447 4,41,76,469
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense 12,59,860 11,39,997
Finance cost - 67,163
Other non-cash item 2,03,671 6,508
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities (26,14,352) (38,85,665)
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables 1,90,47,560 (2,45,11,346)
Loans and advances and other assets 19,57,476 42,333,697
Liabilities and provisions 55,49.212 (80,02,824)
4,11,64,874 1,32,23,999
Income taxes paid 19,85,640 (72,60,844)
NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,91,79,234 59,63,155
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards capital expenditure (including intangible assets) (9,17,034) (10,18,232)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (9,17,034) (10,18,232)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan repaid to parent company - (54,60,034)
Finance cost = (67,163)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES — (55,27,197)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,82,62,200 (5,82,274)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 40,68,437 46,50,711
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 4,23,30,637 40,68,437
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for Shenoy & Kamath for and on behalf of Board of Directors of S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.

Chartered Accountants (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.)
Firm’ registration number: 0066735

M. Rathnakar Kamath Peter Fischer Robert Boreczek
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 202841

Cristin Florescu
Director

Place : Bangalore
Date: January 8, 2016
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Significant accounting policies and notes on accounts

Company overview

SC Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly S.C. Lodestone Management
Consultants S.R.L.) (‘the Company’) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG),
Kloten (Switzerland). The Company renders professional management
consulting services, thereby enabling its clients to enhance business
performance.

1 Significant accounting policies

1.1 Accounting year

The accounting year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use

1.3 Reporting currency

The Company’s reporting currency is the Indian rupee.

1.4 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the
period. Examples of such estimates include computation of percentage
of completion which requires the Company to estimate the efforts
expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts to be expended,
provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee
benefit plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and the
useful lives of fixed assets.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured as the value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, value added tax and other
sales taxes.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in the period
in which the services are provided in accordance with the terms of the
contract. At each year end revenue from unbilled services provided
are included within accrued income and any amounts invoiced in
advance are deferred to the accounting period when those services
will be provided.
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The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the actual
completion of a proportion of the total services to be rendered. An
expected loss on a contract is recognized immediately in the profit
and loss account.

1.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company
has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the
outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure
is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

1.7 Post-sales client support and warranties

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales
support for corrections of errors and support on all its fixed-price,
fixed-time frame contracts. Costs associated with such support services
are accrued at the time when related revenues are recorded and
included in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company estimates such
costs based on historical experience and the estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of
occurrence.

1.8 Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract.

1.9 Tangible assets and capital work in progress

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until such assets are
ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

1.10 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition
of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development
costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial
feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits
are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete
and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.

1.11 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line
method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for
its use. The Management estimates the useful lives for the other fixed



assets as follows:

Plant and machinery 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 2-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

1.12 Provision for impairment

The Management periodically assesses using, external and internal
sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of the asset’s net selling price and value in use, which means the present
value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years.

1.13 Benefits to employees

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated
absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is
determined by actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method
on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

1.14 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at
historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date
of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement
of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled.

The translation of financial statements to Indian rupee is performed
for monetary assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect
at the Balance Sheet date and for revenue, expense and cash-flow
items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency
translation reserves under reserves and surplus.

1.15 Income taxes

Income taxes are accrued in the same period that the related revenue
and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax, based on the tax
liability computed, after considering tax allowances and exemptions.
Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to
disallowances or other matters is probable. The Company offsets, on
a year-on-year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where it has
a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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The differences that result between the profit considered for income
taxes and the profit as per the financial statements are identified, and
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded
for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one
accounting period and reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the
aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on
the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax
assets, in situations where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business loss exist, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realized. Deferred tax assets, other than in situations of unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if
there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
values at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. Tax
benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee share options
in excess of compensation charged to Statement of Profit and Loss are
credited to the securities premium reserve.

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with
banks and corporations. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three
months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash to be cash equivalents.

1.17 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.18 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets
acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever
is lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight line basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the lease term.

1.19 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after
tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of
the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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2 Notes on accounts for the year ended

Particulars

As at December 31,

2015 2014
Decem ber 31 ! 2015 Surplus — opening balance 2,14,30,560 (1,63,85,433)
The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified, Add: Net profit after tax
wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation. (eamGiermedl o SiEiemet oF
. Profit and Loss 99,22 ,681 3,79,60,021
2.1 Share capital
in X, except as otherwise stated Amount transferred to legal
’ reserve (14,60,684) (1,44,028)
Particulars As at December 31, Surplus — closing balance 2,98,92,557 2,14,30,560
2015 2014 44954260  3,77,09,536
Authorized
14,000 (14,000) equity shares 2.3 Trade payables
of RON 100 par value, fully in%
paid . " 93,64,193 93,064,193 Particulars As at December 31,
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
14,000 (14,000) equity shares 2015 2014
’ ’ Trade Payables 44.05,742 8,55,682
of RON 100 par value, fully 1705742 355682
paid 93,64,193 93,64,193 @ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries — —
93,604,193 93,604,193 (Refer to Note 2.16) 43,32,970 =
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at T
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are set out below : 2.4 Other current liabilities nz
inx,
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014 — 2015 20,
- 5 - 5 ccrued salaries and benefits
ARG L= ACHGE LD Bonus and incentives 4435897 34,36,919
shares shares -
Tnfosys Prnglon 'for expenses - 11,35,649
Gomsllig Withholding and other taxes
Tl payable - 4,07,334
A [T Other payables 3,68,321 1,92,312
Lodestone) B 48,04,218 51,72,214
@ Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries
(formerly (Refer to Note 2.16) 241,431 —
Lodestone Holding
AG) holding 2.5 Short-term provisions
company 14,000 100% 14,000 100% in¥
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the Particulars As at December 31,
amount of share capital as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2015 2014
2014 is set out below: Provision for employee benefits
ing Compensated Benefits 97,69,478 74,00,759
Particulars As at December 31, Income taxes (net of advance
5015 2014 tax and TDS) 28,08,730 -
No. of  Amount No. of  Amount Post-sales Ch,em support
and warranties and other
shares shares .
Shares at the provisions 2,02,100 —
o 1,27,80,308 74,00,759
beginning of the
period 14,000 93,64,193 14,000 93,64,193 The movement in provision for post-sales client support and warranties
Shares at the end is as follows:
of the period 14,000 93,64,193 14,000 93,64,193 in%
22 R d | Particulars As at December 31,
. eserves an surp us , 2015 5014
in¥ Balance at the beginning - -
Particulars As at December 31, Provision recognized (reversal) 2,03,671 6,508
2015 2014 Provision utilized - -
Securities premium account 1,24,85,591 1,24,85,591 Exchange difference during the
Foreign currency translation period (1,571) (6,508)
reserve — opening balance 32,48,878 72,81,471 Balance at the end 2,02,100 —
Add_" Foreign currency translation Provision for post-sales client support and other provisions are
during the year (26,77.957)  (40,32,593) expected to be utilized over a period of six months to one year.
Foreign currency translation
reserve — closing balance 5,70,921 32,48,878
Other reserves — opening balance 5,44,507 4,00,479
Add: Additions during the year 14,60,684 1,44,028
Other reserves
— closing balance 20,05,191 544,507
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2.6 Fixed assets
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Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2015:

in%
Particulars Intangible assets Total
Computer Furniture and Total Intellectual Total
equipment Fixtures property rights
Original cost
As at January 1, 2015 36,29,994 1,43,031 37,73,025 17,578 17,578 37,90,603
Additions / adjustments during the
period 9,17,034 - 9,17,034 - - 9,17,034
Deductions / retirement during the
period (8,14,226) (9,818) (8,24,044) (1,206) (1,206) (8,25,250)
As at December 31, 2015 37,32,802 1,33,213 38,660,015 16,372 16,372 38,82,387
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2015 24,70,024 1,01,962 25,71,986 17,578 17,578 25,89,564
For the period 12,47,085 12,775 12,59,860 - - 12,59,860
Deductions / adjustments during the
period (7,53,415) (7,024) (7,60,439) (1,206) (1,2006) (7,61,645)
As at December 31, 2015 29,63,694 1,07,713 30,71,407 16,372 16,372 30,87,779
Net book value
As at December 31, 2015 7,69,108 25,500 7,94,608 — — 7,94,608
Following are the changes in the carrying value of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2014:
in%
Particulars Total Intangible assets Total
Computer Furniture and Total Intellectual Total
equipment Fixtures property rights
Original cost
As at January 1, 2014 31,34,639 - 31,34,639 19,542 19,542 31,54,181
Additions / adjustments during the
period 8,70,791 1,47,441 10,18,232 - - 10,18,232
Deductions / retirement during the
period (3,75,436) (4,410) (3,79,846) (1,964) (1,964) (3,81,810)
As at December 31, 2014 36,29,994 1,43,031 37,73,025 17,578 17,578 37,90,603
Depreciation and amortization
As at January 1, 2014 16,64,907 - 16,64,907 19,542 19,542 16,84,449
For the period 10,34,179 1,05,818 11,39,997 - - 11,39,997
Deductions / adjustments during the
period (2,29,062) (3,856) (2,32,918) (1,964) (1,964) (2,34,882)
As at December 31, 2014 24,70,024 1,01,962 25,71,986 17,578 17,578 25,89,564
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014 11,59,970 41,069 12,01,039 - - 12,01,039

During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Management, based on internal and external technical evaluation, reassessed the remaining useful
life of assets primarily consisting of computers with effect from April 1, 2014. Accordingly, the useful lives of certain assets required a change

from the previous estimates.

2.7 Long-term loans and advances

in¥
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Advance income taxes - 10,44,396
= 10,44,396

2.8 Leases
Obligations on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases

The lease rentals charged during the year and the maximum obligations
on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases payable as per the
rentals stated in the respective agreements are as follows:

in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Lease rentals recognized during
the year 15,71,527 18,02,222

in%
Lease obligations payable As at December 31,
2,015 2,014
Within one year of the Balance
Sheet date 2,822,520 2,98,287

Due in a period between one year
and five years - -

The operating lease arrangements, are renewable on a periodic basis
and for most of the leases extend up to a maximum of five years from
their respective dates of inception and relate to rented premises. Some
of these lease agreements have price escalation clauses.
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2.9 Trade receivables

2.13 Expenses

in% in%
Particulars As at December 31, Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Outstanding debts not exceeding Employee benefit expenses
six months Salaries and bonus 12,07,76,060 12,94,18,081
Unsecured Staff welfare 62,575 23,447
Considered good 3,20,02,828 5,10,50,388 12,08,38,635 12,94,41,528
Considered doubtful Cost of technical sub-contractors
(Others) = = Technical sub-contractors -
3,20,02,828 5,10,50,388 Related Parties - 65,08,416
Less : Provision for doubtful Technical sub-contractors -
debts (others) — = others 43,17,570 17,33,485
3,20,02,828 5,10,50,388 43,17,570 82,41,901
3,20,02,828 5,10,50,388 Consultancy Charges
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries Consultancy and Professional
(Refer to Note 2.16) 2,98,99,797 _ 4,60,02,900 Charges-Related Parties 48,49,735 23,39,205
. Consultancy and Professional
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents Charges-others 35.92.402 _
in% 84,42,137 23,39,205
Particulars As at December 31, Other expenses
2015 2014 Rent 15,71,527 18,02,222
Cash on hand 142 152 Repairs to plant and machinery - 7,225
Balances with banks Provision for post-sales client
In current accounts 4,23,30,495 40,68,285 support and warranties 2,03,671 6,508
42330,637 40,68,437 Bank charges and commission 5,86,010 5,26,944
Donations 8,515 3,882
The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as Miscellaneous expenses 237617 23.82.432
follows: 27,220,919 4729213
in%
Particulars As at December 31, 2.14 Tax expense
2015 2014 in%
In current accounts Particulars Year ended December 31,
Raiffeisen Bank S.A. (RON) 4,23,30,495 40,68,285 2015 2014
In current accounts 4,23,30,495 40,68,285 Current tax
Income taxes 58,38,766 62,16,448
2.11 Short-term loans and advances Deferred taxes = -
in 58,38,766 62,16,448
Particulars As aztoli;cember L 3014 2.15 Quantitative details
Unsecured, considered good The Company is primarily engaged in the professional management
Others consultancy services. The production and sale of such consultancy
Prepaid expenses 6,65,026 9,94,615 services cannot be expressed in any generic unit. Hence, it is not
Withholding and other taxes possible to give the quantitative details of sales and certain information
receivable 1,52,047 10,57,892 as required under paragraphs 5 (viii)(c) of general instructions for
Others ¥ 144 - preparation of the Statement of Profit and Loss as per revised Schedule
8,17,217 20,52,507 1II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Salary advances 2,90,177 9,62,842
Rental deposits 73,254 122,775
11,80,648 31,38,124
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries
(Refer to Note 2.16) 144 —
2.12 Other income
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Miscellaneous income, net 191 82,82,189
Gains / (losses) on foreign
currency, net 5,07,675 (2,78,786)
5,07,866 80,03,403
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2.16 Related party transactions

List of related parties:
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Name of holding company

Holding as at December 31,

2015 2014

Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

100% 100%

Name of ultimate holding company

Country

Infosys Limited

India

@ Holding of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) from October 22, 2012

Name of fellow subsidiaries

Country

Infosys BPO Limited (Infosys BPO)

Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China)

Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico)

Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB (Infosys Sweden)

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai)

Infosys Tecnologia do Brasil Ltda. (Infosys Brasil)

Infosys Public Services, Inc. (Infosys Public Services)

Infosys Americas Inc. (Infosys Americas)

Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o (formerly Infosys BPO s.r.0) )

Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp z 0.0.

Infosys BPO S. de R. L. de C. V V@

Infosys McCamish Systems LLC ¥

Portland Group Pty. Limited @

Portland Procurement Services Pty Ltd ©

Infosys BPO Americas LLC P19

Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) @

EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) 7

Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. ©

Lodestone Management Consultants Pty. Limited ©

Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) @
Lodestone Augmentis AG @©

Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH @®

Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A. @

Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) ©
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd.) ©
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) ©
Infosys Consulting s.r.o.(formerly Lodestone Management Consultants s.r.0.) ©
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH ©

Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. ©

Infy Consulting Company Limited (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) ©
Lodestone Management Consultants B.V. ©

Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda.

Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z 0.0. ©

Infosys Consulting S.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants S.R.L.) ©
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. ©

Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd. @

Infosys Nova Holdings LLC (Infosys Nova) ©

Panaya Inc. (Panaya) 1©

Panaya Ltd."?
Panaya Gmbh"?
Panaya Pty Ltd.V

Panaya Japan Co. Ltd."?

Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems) *?

Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus) >

Noah Consulting LLC (Noah) ¥

Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada) 1

India

China
Mexico
Sweden
China
Brazil

uU.s.

U.s.

Czech Republic
Poland
Mexico
U.S.
Australia
Australia
U.s.
Australia
India

U.S.
Australia
Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerland
Belgium
Germany
Singapore
France
Czech Republic
Austria
China

UK
Netherlands
Brazil
Poland
Argentina
Portugal
Canada
U.s.

u.s.

Israel
Germany
Australia
Japan

India

u.s.

U.s.
Canada

O Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys BPO

@ Under liquidation

& Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
& Wholly-owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Ltd. Liquidated effective May 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)
@ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014

© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporated effective December 19, 2014

@ Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

190n March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Panaya Inc.

IDWholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

920n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Skava Systems

190n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interest in Kallidus Inc.
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9 0n November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interests in Noah
19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah
19 Incorporated effective November 20, 2015

Related party transactions

The details of amounts due to or due from as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:

in%
Particulars As at December 31,
2015 2014
Trade receivables
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 1,14,51,318 37,38,543
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 1,73,05,059 3,99,72.241
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 53,969 20,32,891
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 8,48,020 =
Infosys Consulting Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 2,41,431 2,59,225
Total 2,98,99,797 4,60,02,900
Other receivables
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 145 -
Total 144 -
Trade payables
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 42,83,558 -
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 49,412 -
Total 43,32,970 -
Other payables
Infosys Consulting Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) 2,41,431 -
Total 241,431 -

The details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are

as follows:
in%
Particulars Year ended December 31,
2015 2014
Capital transactions:
Transfer of fixed asset
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 9,17,034 —
Total 9,17,034 -
Revenue transactions:
Sale of services
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 5,72,75,986 7,00,46,407
Infosys Consulting GmbH (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH) 12,32,67,979  9,55,92,131
Infosys Consulting SAS (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants SAS) 35,12,673 84,81,713
Infosys Consulting Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) - 21,63,737
Lodestone Management Consultants Ltda. 8,34,419 =
Total 18,48,91,057 17,62,83,988
Purchase of services
Infosys Consulting Ltd. (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Ltd.) - 65,08,416
Lodestone Management Consultants Sp. z.0.0. 5,42,097 5,56,475
Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) 43,07,638 -
Total 48,49,735 70,64,891
Interest expense
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Lodestone Holding AG) - 67,163
Total - 67,163

2.17 Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in providing consultancy services in a single geography:. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single

segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 — ‘Segment Reporting’.
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Independent auditors’ report

Member of the Company
Infosys Consulting Pte. Ltd.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Infosys Consulting Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Lodestone Management Consultants
Pte. Ltd.) (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the statement of comprehensive income
and statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, as set out on pages FS1 to FS18.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial
statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’ internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2015 and the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with

the provisions of the Act.

KPMG LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
8 April 2016
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Statement of financial position

Particulars Note As at 31 December
2015 2014
$ $
Non-current asset
Plant and equipment 4 90,273 99,657
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 4,448,266 1,389,599
Cash and cash equivalents 6 280,668 311,236
4,728,934 1,700,835
Total assets 4,819,207 1,800,492
Equity
Share capital 7 100,000 100,000
Accumulated losses (8,452,335) (7,324,061)
Total equity (8,352,335) (7,224,061)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 13,171,542 9,024,553
Total liabilities 13,171,542 9,024,553
Total equity and liabilities 4,819,207 1,800,492

Statement of comprehensive income

Particulars Note As at 31 December
2015 2014
$ $
Revenue 28,038,628 10,900,984
Cost of services (26,198,837) (10,153,881)
Gross profit 1,839,791 747,103
Other income 12,900 25,640
Depreciation expense 4 (45,784) (20,210)
Staff costs (1,816,678) (1,364,808)
Other operating expenses (871,939) (113,137)
Results from operating activities (881,710) (725,412)
Interest expense (160,746) (110,246)
Loss before tax 9 (1,042,456) (835,658)
Tax expense 10 (85,818) =
Loss for the year (1,128,274) (835,658)
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax = =
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,128,274) (835,658)

Infosys Consulting Pte. Ltd. | 163



Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2015-16

Statement of changes in equity

Particulars Share capital ~ Accumulated Total
losses

$ $ $

At 1 January 2014 100,000 (6,488,403) (6,388,403)

Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year = (835,658) (835,658)

Total comprehensive income for the year (835,658) (835,658)

At 31 December 2014 100,000 (7,324,061) (7,224,061)
At 1 January 2015 100,000 (7,324,061) (7,224,061)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year = (1,128,274) (1,128,274)
Total comprehensive income for the year = (1,128,274) (1,128,274)
At 31 December 2015 100,000 (8,452,335) (8,352,335)

Statement of cash flows

Particulars Note As at 31 December

2015 2014

$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (1,042,456) (835,658)
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 160,746 110,246
Depreciation of plant and equipment 4 45,784 20,210

(835,926) (705,202)
Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables (3,058,667) 160,447
Trade and other payables 1,857,619 630,066
Cash generated from operations (2,036,974) 85,311
Tax paid (85,818) —
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (2,122,792) 85,311
Cash flows from investing activity

Purchase of plant and equipment 4 (36,400) (108,258)
Net cash used in investing activity (36,400) (108,258)
Cash flows from financing activity

Loan from immediate holding company 2,128,624 41,266
Net cash generated from financing activity 2,128,624 41,266
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (30,568) 18,319
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 311,236 292917
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6 280,668 311,236
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Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2016.

1 Domicile and activities

Infosys Consulting Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Lodestone Management Consultants Pte Ltd) (the Company) is incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore and has its registered office at Level 43, Unit 2, Suntec Tower 2, 9 Temasek Boulevard, Singapore 038989.

The principal activities of the Company are to carry on the development of e-commerce applications and IT consulting.
The immediate holding company is Infosys Consulting Holding AG, a company incorporated in Switzerland. The ultimate holding company is
Infosys Limited, a company incorporated in India.

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding the deficiency in net assets, as the holding company has
confirmed its intention to provide such financial and other support to the Company to continue operations and meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due.

2.2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).

2.3 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars which is the Company’ functional currency.

2.5 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainties and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies.

2.6 Adoption of new and revised financial reporting standards

The Company has adopted the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations, which became effective for the current financial year. The adoption
of the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations to FRSs did not result in substantial changes to the Company’s accounting policies and has no
material effect on the amount reported for the current financial year.

3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting pol